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Dear Sir,

RE: THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
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1, The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited and Subsidiaries Audited
Annual Report and Financial Statements as at 31 December 2016.

2. Co-op Trust Investment Services Limited Audited Annual Repert and
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and Financial Statements as at 31* Decembar 2016,

4, Kingdom Securities Limited Audited Annual Report anc Financial
statements as at 31° December 2016.

Please acknow!edge receipt on the attached duplicate copy.
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Mirectors: 5.C Muchin [Chairman); J. Rungu [Vice Charmany, Dr, Gideon Murivki {Managing DirEct;;w & CEQ); b Sitiened; Benedict Simiyy;
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CODP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGEMCY LIMITED
REPCRT OF THE MRECTDIRS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
Cecember 2016, In 2ccordance with Section 42 of the Sixth Schedule, Transitional and Saving
Prouisions, of the Kenvan Companies Act, 2015, this repart has been prepared in accordance with
Section 157 of the repealed Companies Act, as if that repeal had not taken effect.

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The company cffers financial aduisory and traming services to savings and ¢redil co-ocperative
sociefies and Danc assurance services,

2. HESULTS
The results far the vear are set out on page 8.
3. DIVIDEND
The directors da not recommend the paument af a dividend (2D15: Nil},
4,  RESERVES
The reserves of the company are set out on page 9 of these financial statements.
5. DIRECTORS
The directors who serued during the yvear and 1o Lhe date of this report were:-

%, . Muchiry, EBS Croup Chairman

Cr.G. Murivki, MBS Group Managing Director & CEG
P.K. Githendu

G. Mburia

Gr. J. Kahunyo

5. CdhiamDo

0. M. Muriuki

Jo N Mjiry

P, Gichuki

P. Gichuki Fetired gn ¥ December 2016
M. N, Mungai {Mrs} Appointed on 7 December 2016

7. AUDITGRS

The company's auditers, Ernst & Young LLP, haue expressed their willingness o cantinue in
office in accordance with the Benyan Companies Act, 2015

By order of the Board /é—'
“QLQG‘V&/\N 17



CO-OP COMSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
STATEMENT DF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

OM THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 requires the directars to prepare financial statements for sach
financial year that give a true and fair view of the financial pasition of the company as al Lhe end of the
financial vear and of its profit or 10ss for that year. 1t also reguires the directors te ensure that the
company maintains proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions of
the company and disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the company. The
directars are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company, and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these finandial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan
Companigs Ack, 2015, They also accepl responsibility for:

{iy designing, implementing and maintaming such nlernal control as they determing necessary to
ernable the presentation of financial slalements that are free frem materiar misstatement, whether
due to fraud ar grror;

(i} selecting suitable accounting pelicies and applying them consistently; and

(iiiy making accounting estimates and judgements that are reascnabie in the circuomstances,

Having made an assessment of the company's ability to centinue as a going cencarn, the dirgctors are
not aware of any material uncertainties related to events or canditions that may cast doubt upon the

company’s akility to centinye as a going concern.

The dirgctors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relisve them
ol Lheir responsibilities,

Approved by the board or directors on \k{‘\/hlfk\ 2017 and signed onits behalf by:

L

GROUP CHAIRMAN

[rate
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPDRT

TG THE SHAREHCLGERS COF

CO-GP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
REPCRT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Co-op Consultancy Elnsurance Agency Limited, set out on
Page 7T to 32 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
statement of profit or loss and ether comprefensive income, statement of changes in egquity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, aad notes to the linancial statements, including &
summary of significant accounting pesicies,

in gur gpinen, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the
linanoal position of Co-op Consultancy & Insurance Agency Limited as at 31 Gecember 2016, and its
lingncial performance and its cash flaws for the year then ended in accordance with Internationas
Financial Reperting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act 2015

Basis for Opinson

We rconducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As), Qur
rasponsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Beard for Accountants’ Code of ERigs for
Professioral Accountants {IESBA Caode}. We have fulfiled our ather ethical respansibilities in accordance
with the IESDA Code, and in accordance with other ethical requirements appiicable to performing audits
af finangial statemants in Kenya. We believa that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Other Information

The directars are respensibie for the gther infarmation, The gther information comprises the Girectors®
Report as required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, The ather information does not include the
lnancial statements and our auditor's repart thereon,

Dur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the other mlarmation and we do not express gn
audit cpmien ar any form af assarance conclusiaon therean,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
imfarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is mateciaily mcensistent with the
financial statements or our knewwedge ebtained in the audit, or etherwise appears to he materially
misstated.

If, based an the weork we have perfermed on the ether infermation ehtained prier to the date of this
auditer's repert, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required bo report that fact. We have nothing Lo repert in this regard.

When we read the Annual Repert, if we conclude that there is @ material misstatement therein, we are
requirad to communicate the matter to those charged with governance

BT e O DR T oot e
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in
arcordance with IFRSs, and for such internal contrel as management determines is necessary te enable the
preparation of financial statements that are [ree fram material misstatement, whather due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Financial statements, management 1s respensible far assassing the entity’s abitity te centinue
as a guing concern, disclesing, as applicable, matlers related tq going cencern and using the grIng cencern
basis of accounting unkess managemeant either intends to liquidale the Cempany ar to cease operations, or
has no realishic alternative but to do so.

1hase charged with governance are responsible for eversesing the Company’s financial reparting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Char ohjectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a while
are free from material misstatement, whether due to traod or errer, and te issug an auditor's report that
incrudes our opinion. Reassnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nat 2 guarantee that an audit
randucted in accordance with 1SAs will glways detect a material misstatemnent when it exists, Misstatements
can arise fram fraud ar error and are considered material if, individualty or in the aggregate, they Couid
reasonably be expected to influence the econemic decisiens of users taken on the Basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15A5, we oxercise professianal judgment and maintain professiangl
scepticism threughout the audit, We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement af the annual financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respensive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far aur epinien. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting rom Fraud is higher than for ene resuiting fram errer, as fraud may
invalve collusien, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentatians, or the everride af internal
contral,

. Optain an understanding of internal cantrel relevant ta the audil in erder to design gudit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpese of exgressing an opinion an the
effectiveness of the Company's internal central,

. Evaluate the appropriatencss ef accounting policies used and the reasenableness of acceunting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude an the appropriateness of management's use of the going cancern basis of accounting aed,
based on the audit evidence obrained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenls or
conditions that may cast significant deubt en the Company’s ability ta continue as a going cencern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required le draw attention in our auditar's
report te the related disclaosures in the anpnual financial statements ar, il such disclosurgs are
inadequate, to medify qur opinien. Gur conclusions are based en the audit evidence gbtained up to the
date of our auditar's reparl. However, future cvents or Conditions may cause the Campany te cease to
continue s a gaing cenoern,

v Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and centent of the annuat financial statements, inchuding
the disclosures, and whether the anpual financial staternents represent the underlying transackiens and
gvenls in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain suFficient apprepriate audit evidence regarding the financial intormation ef the entitips o1
husiness achivitios within the Company e express an opinien on the annual financial ctaterments. We
are roesponsible far the direction, supervision and perfermance ot the Company's audit. We remain
salely responsible for our audil epinien,
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We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, amang ather matters, the planned
scope and timing of she audit and sigaificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
snternal contral that we wdentify during aur audit,

We also prouide those charged with governance with a statement that we have camplied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding indegpendence, and to caommunicate with them all relatianships and ether
matters that mav reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appiicabie, reiated
sateguards.

From the matters communicated with thase charged with gavernance, we determing those matters that
were of mast significance in the awdit of the annual financial statements af the current period and are
therefare the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in ouwr auditar's repart unless law ar
requlatian precludes pubsic disclosure about the matter of when, in extremely rare Circumstances, we
determing that a matter should not be communicated in our repart because the aduerse consgguances
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pubuc interest benelits of such
communicatian,

REPORT O OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
&5 required by the Kenyan Campanies Act, 2015 wo repart to vou, based on our audit, that!
il We haue obtained all the infarmation amd explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

heligf were necessary lor the purposes of aur audi,

il In our opinian proper beoks of account have been kept by the company, 5o far as appears from
our examination of those hooks;

I3 The company's Statement of Financial Position and Statement aof prafit ar loss and gther
Camprehensive Inceme are im agreement wilh the bosks of account,

The engagemenl partner respansible far the audit reswting in this independent auditar’s repart is CPA
Joseph K Cheborar Practicing Certificate Nu 1145,

CJ #,,,JEK H_ﬂ__,{ -,

Nairobi(. o C_"'/
24 T

............ LT 20107

¥

*In accardance with Section 42 of the Sixth Schedule, Transitianal and 3aving Prauisions, of the Kenyan
campanies Act, 2015, the company's finangial statements and this repart have been prepared in
accordance with Sections 147 to 163 of the repealed Companies Act, as if that repeal had nat taken
elfoct.



CO-0OP CONSULTANCY & IMSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCEAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment
Intangibile assots
Deferred tax

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and cther receivables
Tax recoverabie
Cash and short term deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital
Retained sarnings

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Tax payable

Amount duoe to a related party
Trade and other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIASILITIES

Mote

L I

EB{ay
B{a)
16

aia)
Tib)
10

2016
K53hs

5,085,189
12,586,301
13,384,052

31,055,542

164,204,798

12,317,785
2N2,220,244
398,742 B27

42% 796, 369

70,000,000
339,531,751

409 531,751

2,084,550
11,182,068

20,266,618

429,798,369

215
KShs

6,276,046
16,362,192
797521

30,615 759

228,700,199
BT, 139,90%
285,640,108

316,459,867

70,000,000
201,312 878

271,312,878
32,113,137
A676,732
4,387,120

45,146,989

316,459,867

The financial statements were approved by the Soard of Directors unkq}\J\ML\EDlT

and signad on its behalf by

5. C. Muchiri, EBS

I3r.G. Muriuki, MBS

Groug Chairman

Group Managing Director & CEDQ




CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENTY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHEMNSIWE INCOMFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

INCOME

OTHER INCOME

EXPEMGES:-
ddrministrative and other operaling expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE VEAR

Other Comprehensive Incame

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Earnings per share (K5hs)

Mote

11

Jpd

i3

14

&b}

15

2016
K5hs

360,414,425
25,294 659

385,709,084

{1B3 087,427}
{188 087,427
197 621,657
(29,402, 7843

138,218,873

136,218,873

E9v

2015
K5hs

336,010,261
31,309,754

367,326,015

(190,844,716}
(190,644,716}
176,481,299

{53,460,750)

123,020,549

123,020,549

176



CO-0P COMSULTAMCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBFR 2016

Balance as at 1 January 2015
Profit tor the year

Balance as at 31 December 2015

Balance as at 1 January 2016
Frafit for the year

Balance as at 31 December 20146

Sharg
Capital
H.5hs

FO.0I0 000

70,000,000

0,000,000

70,000,000

Retained
earnings
Kihs

TB, 252,329

123,020,545

201,312,878

201,312,878

138,218,873

339,531,751

Tetal
KShs

148 252 329

123,020,549

271,312,878

271,312,678

138,218,873

406,531,751



CO-OPF COMSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

dperating activities

Profit before tax
Adpustments for:-
Cepreciation of praperty and equipment
Amortizaticn of intangible asset
Gain on disposal of asset
Interest expense
Alowance far had and doubtful debts

Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase f {decrease) in related company balances
Increase / {dacreasa) in trade and gther payables
Tax paid

et cash flows generated from operating activities
Investing activities

Purchase of property and equiprment

Purchase af scliware

Proceeds on disposal of asset

Met cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid

Met cash flows used in financing activities

Met (decrease} f increase in cash and cash eguivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINMING DF THE YEAR

CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END DF THE YEAR

10

Note D16
KShs

197 621,657

2 2.079,907
3 3,775,891

S(h) 15,240,823
218,668,275
29,254, 57hH

407, B18
5,824,949

255,155,620
B3] (109 238,235)

145,917,385

2 (B3T.050)
3 -

(837,060

2015
KShs

176,481 299

1,850,3
2517260
{60,800}
39,889
2110877

182,938 826

(136,02 3,405)
(19,448,772}
1599 350

26,867,293
(35,545, 393)

(8,678,100

(1,815552)
(18,8979,.452)
76,200

(20,618 504)

145,080,335
57,135,509

t6 202,220,244

(39,889}

{39,589}
(259,336,493)
86,476,402

57.139.909



CO-OF COMSULTANCY & INSURAMCE AGEMCY LIMITED
MOTES T THE FINAMCEAL STATEMEMNTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 OECEMBER 2016

1

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adepted in the preparation of the financial staternents are set out
below. These policies have been cansistently apmied over the years presented unless otherwise siated:

(al Basisef preparation of financial statemenls
(i} Basis of preparation

The Company financial statements are prepared in complfiance with International Financial
eporling Standards (FRSs) and interpretations issued by the inlernational Financial
Repeorting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC). The finanoal statements are presented in Kenya
Shiflings {KShs), raunded to the nearest thousand which is bolh the functional and presentation
currency and prepared on the historical cost basis, except where otherwise stated in the
accounting podicies below,

For the Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes. in these financial statements, the balance
sheet is represented byfis equivadent to the statement of financial posiion and the profit and
loss accounl is presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

(i) Changes in atcounting pelicies and discipsures
Mew and amended standards and interpretatinns

The accounting poficies adopted are consistent with those of the previous fmancial year,
except for the folluwing amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2016, The adoption of
the standards, interpretations or improvements is described below:

Arnendrients to IFRS 1O, iFRS 12 and |A% 28: Effeclive for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016,

Key requirements

The amendments address three issues that haye arisen in applying the investment entitics
exception under IFRS 19 Consolidated Financial Starements.

The armendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption in paragraph 4 of IFRS 10 from
presenting consalidated financial statements applies to @ parent entity that is a subsidiary of an
investrent entity, when the investment entity measures ks subsidiarkes at fair value.
Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that only a subsidiary of an investment entity
that is not an investrment entity itself and that provides support services to the investment
entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair value.
The amendments ta [AS ZB Investments in Assoriates and Jeoint Yentures allew the investor,
when applying the eguity method, lo retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture fo its interests in subsidiarigs.

Transzitlon
The amendments must be appiied retrospectively. Early application is permitted and musl be
disclosed,

Impact

The amendments ta IFRS 10 and IAS 28 provide helplul clarifications that wil assist preparers
in applying the standards more consislently. However, it may stili be difficult to idenbiby
investment entities in prackice when they are port of a mult-ayered group structure

11



CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBFR 2016

1

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (continued)
(ay Basis of preparation of financial statements

¢iir Changes in accounting policies and disclgsures {continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)
A5 1: Effective for annual peripds heginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Key requirements
The amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements ¢larify, rather than significantly
change, Lhe existing AS 1 requirements.

The amendments clarify:

The rmateriality requirerments in 1AS 1: That speciflic line iterns in the statements) of profit or loss
and OCI and the statement ot bnancial postion may be disaggregated. That entities have
flexibility as to the order in which Lhey present the notes to financial statements. That the share
of OC| of gsspciates and joinl ventures accounted far wsing the equity method must he presented
in agaregate as a single line itern, and classificd between those items that will wr will not be
suhsequently reclassifred to profit or Inss.

Furthermare, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are
presented in the statement of financial poasition and the staterment{s} ef profit or loss and OCIL

Transition

Earty application s permitted. Entities do not need to disclose that fact because the Board
considers these amendments tg be clarifications onty that do not affect an entity’s accounting
pricies ar accounting estimates,

Impact

These amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgement when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in [FRS, and do not affect recogmition and
measurement, Although Lhese amendments clarify existing requirements af 1A% 1, the
clarifications may facilitate enhanced disclosure effectiveness.

Amendments to 145 1& and |45 38 Fffective for annuar periods heginning on or after 1 January
2016

Key requirernents

The amendments clarify the principle in 14% 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and A5 38
Intangitte Assets that reuenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are gererated from
pperating a business {of which the asset is part) rather than the ecomomic beretits that are
consumed through use of the asset. As a result, the ratio of revenue generated to total revenue
expected to be generated cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
anly be used in very limiked circumstances to amartise intangible asseis.

Transltion
The amendments are effective prospectiery. Early application is permitted and must be
disclosed.

Impact

Fntilies currently using revenue-based amaortisation methods for property, plant and
equipment will meed to chanmge their approach to an acceptable methed, such as the
diminishing balance method, which would recognise increased amaortisation in the early part
of the asset's useful life

12



CO-OF COMSULTAMNCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
MBTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATFMENTS (conlinueds
FBF THE ¥YEAR ENRED 31 PECEMBER 2016

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES (Cantinued}
{a1Basis of preparation of financial statements (continued)

(i Changesin accounting policies and disciosures {continued}

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint speration constitutes a business,
must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principtes for business combinations accounting. The
amendments alsa clarify that a previousiy held interest in a joint operation is not rfemeasured
pn the acquisition of an additiona interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to speciby that the
amendments ¢ not apply when the parties sharing joint contral, including the reporting
entity, are under commaon contral of the same ultimate contrailing party. The amendments
apply 1o both the acquisitien of the initial interest in a oint operation and the acquisition of
any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 Janoary 2016, wilh early adoption permitted. These
amendments arc not sxpected to have any impact on the company,

Amcandments to 165 16 and 145 3B: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amaoartization

The amengments clarify the princiale in 1AS 18 and |AS 38 that revenuc refllects a pattern of
aconomic bensfits that are generaled fram operating a busimess (of which the asset 15 part}
rathor than the economic benefils that are consumed through use of the asset, As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and sguipment and may
oniy be used i very limited circumstances to amortise intangifie assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on ur after 1 January 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the carnpany
given that the company has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its nen-current
assels,

amendments to |AS 27 Eguity Method in Separate Fimanctal Stalements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity methed Lo account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financia! statements. Entities
already applying tFRS and edecting to change to the eguity method in its separate financial
statements will have te apply that change retrespectively. For first-time adopters of IFRS
electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be reguired to
appky this method from the date of transition to IFR5. The amendments are effective for
annual poriods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will ngt have any impact an the company’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 145 28 Sale or Contributicn of Assets between an invaskor and
its Associate or Joint Yenture

The amendments address the conflict between tFRS 10 and 145 28 in dealing with the loss of
contral of a subsidiary that is sobd or coetributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clariby that the gain or toss resuiting from the sale or cantribubion of assets that
constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor ang its associate or joint
ventura. is recognised in full, Amy gain or l0ss reswiting from the sale or contribution of assets
thal do not constitute a business, howeyer, is recognised only to the extent of urwelated
inyestors’ interests in the associate or jnint venture. These amendments must be appiisd
praspectively and are

13



CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING PDLICIES {Continued}

(a1 Hasis of preparation of financiar statements (combinued}

{iiy

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (centinued)
Amendments te A5 1 Disclosure [nitiative

The amendments fo IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarily, rather than
significantly change, existing 145 1 requirerments, The amendments clarify:-

The matarianty requirements in A3 1

That specilfic line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and GC1 and the statement of
financial position may be disagaregated

That entities have flexibility as to the erder in which they present the notes to financial
statements

That the share of OC1 of associates and joint venlures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that
will oy will net be subsequently reclassiflied to profit or loss

Furthermere, the amendrents clarify the requirements that apply when additional subilotals
are presented in the statement of financial position and the statement{s) of profit or loss and
Ol These amendments are effective [or annual perigds beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with early adoplion pormitted. These amendments are nat expected to have any impact
an the company.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IEES 12 and 1AS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

1he amendments address issues thal have arisen in applying the invesiment entities exception
under IFRS 10, The amendments ta IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption from presenting
consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an
investment entity, when the investmant entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair valus.
Furthermere, the amendments ta IFRS 1D clarify that only a subsidiary of an investmant entity
that is not an investment entity itselt and thar provides support services to the investment
entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment enlity are measured at fair
value, The amendments to 145 2B allow the investor, when applying the eguity method, to
retain the fair vaiue measurement appied by Lhe inuestment entity associate or joint venture
to its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments must be applied retrospectivery and are
effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 January 2D1&, with early adoplion
permitted. These amendments are not expacted to have any impact on the company,

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cyoe

These improvements are effective For annual pericds beginning un or alter 1 January 2015
They include;

IFRS 5 Non-current Assers Held for Sale and Discontinued Oporations -Assets {or disposal
groups) are generaly disposed of either throwgh sale or distribution to owners. Tre
amendment clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other would not
be considered a new plan of dispoesal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is,
therefure, ne interruption of the application of the requirements in 1FR3 5. This amendment
must be applisd prospectively.
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CO-OP COMSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGEMCY LIMITED
WGOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OECEMEER 2016&

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd:
{a} Basis of preparation of financial statements (continued)

{iiyChanges in accounting pelicies and disclosures (continued:

Annuar improvemants 2012-2014 Cycle {continued)

IFRE 7 Financial instruments, Discloswres -The amendment clarifies that a seruicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute cantinuing inucivement in a financiar asset. An entily musl
assess the nature of the fee and the arrangement against the guidance for continding
invelvement in IFRS 7.030 and ITRS 7.42C in order to assess whether the disclesures are
required, The assessment of which servicing contracts censtitute continuing invglvement
myst he done retrospectively. However, the required disclosures wowmd nol need to be
provided for any period beginning befare the annual penigd in which the entity first applies
ihe amendments. The amendment aisa clarifies that the offsetting disclosure requirements
do not apply to condensed interim financial statements, unless such disclosures provide g
significant update to the infarmation reparted in the most recant annual repert,

145 19 Emptoyvee Benefits -The amendment clarifies thal market depth of high quality
corporate honds is assessed hased on Lhe currency in which the chigatien is denaminated,
rather than the country where the cbligaticn is [Dcated, When there is no deep market for
high guality corparate honds in that currency, gevernment bond rates must be used,

IAS 34 nterim Financial Reporting -The amendment clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross:
reference hetween the interim financial statements and whereuer they are included within
the interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The ather
infgrmation within the interim financial report must be avaiable o users en the same terms
as Lhe interim financial statements and at Lhe same time, These amendments are not
eypected bo haue any impact on the company.

IFRS 16 L edses -The 1ASB issued IFRS 16 Leases on 13 January 2016, Tha scope of the new
standard includes leases of afl assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined as a
contracl, or part of 3 contract, that conveys the right ko use an asset {the underlying asset)
far a pericd of time in exchange for censideration,

Koy leatures

. The new standard requires lessees to account fer all leases under a single on-halance
sheet mode! (subject to certain exemptions) in a similar wauy to finance leases under 1AS
17.

. Lesseas recoqgnise a liabiliby to pay renlals with a correspending asset, and recognise
interest expense and dapreciative separatery,

r The new standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-
value' assets (g.q., personal computer) and shorb-term leases {i.e., eases wilth a lease
term of 12 months or less).

r Reassessmenl of certain key consideraktions e.q.. lease term, uariable rents hased on
an index of rate, discount rate) by the lessee is required upon certain events.

v Lessor accounting is substantially the same as today's lesser accounting, using 1As 1775
duarclassification gppreach.

The new standard is affective for annual perieds beginning on or after 1 January 201%. Early

application is permitted, but nat before an entitu applies IFRS 15, The new standard permits a
lesses ta cheose either a full retrosnective or g modified retrospective transition approach.
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CO-0Rf COMSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued?

ta} Rasis of preparation of financial statements (continued)

Cik)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures {continued}

Mew and amended standards and interprelations {continued)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolic exception in IFRS5 13
can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also te other contracts
within the scope of 1AS 3%, The company does not apply the portfolio exception in IFRS 13,

185 A% Invastment Proparty

The description of ancillary services in 1A% 40 differgntiates betwaen investment property
and pwner-gccupied property (e, property, plant and equipment). The amendment is
applied prospectively and clarifies that IFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary services in
IAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or a business
combinatian, The company has no investment property and thus the standard has no impact
to the company financial statements,

Slandards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the campany's financiat skatements are disclosed below, The company intends ho
adopt these standards, if applicable, whan they hecome eflective.

IFRS 2 Financial Insframents

In July 2014, the 1ASE issued the final version of IFRS 3 Financial Instruments that replaces
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of
IFRS S, IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments
project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accownting. IFRS 9 s
effective for annual peripds beginning on gr atter 1 January 2018, with early application
permitted, Except tor hedge accounting, retrospective application is required but providing
comparative informalion is notb compalsory, For hedge accounting, the requirements are
generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions. The company plans fo adopt
the new standard on the required affective dato.

Classification and measurement

The company does net expect a significant impacl on ils statement of financial position or
equity on applying the classilication and measurement requirements of IFRS 9. It expects to
continue measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at fair value. Oeht
securities are expected to be measurpd at fair value through OC| under IFRS % as the
company expects nob anly to hold the assets to caltect contractual cash flows but also to sell
a significant amount on a relatively frequent Basis. The company expects b apply the option

Classification and measurement (continued)

Te present far value changes in OC1, and, thereflore, believes the application of IFRS 2 would
nnt have a signilicant impact, Trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and
are expected to give rise ta cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.
Thus, the Group expects that these will continue to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS
9. However, the company will analyse the contractual cash flow characteristics of those
instruments in mora detail hefore concludew whekher all those nstruments meet the criteria
tor amorhised cost measaremeni under IFRS <,
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CO-OP COWSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 3 {cantinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. ESIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Basis of preparation of financial statements (cantinued)

{iiv Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continuad)

Stapdards issued bul not yat effective (cantinued)

impairmenl

IFRS 2 requires the company to record expected credit losses on all of its debt securities,
Ipans and trade receivables, gither on a 12 month or lifetime basis. The company expects o
apply the simplified approach and record nfetime expected losses on all trade receivables. The
company expects a significant impact an ils equity due to unsecured nature of its loans and
receivables, but it will need to perform a mare detailed analysis which considers all reascnable
and supportable infarmation, including forward-looking elements to determine the extent of
the impact.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFR% 14 is an oplional standard that allows an entisy, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, to continue applying most of its esisling accounting policies for requlatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoplion of IFRS. Entities that adopt IFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate ling items on the statement of financial
position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in the
statement of profit or loss and OCL The standard requires disclosure of the nalure of, and
risks associated with, the entity's rate-requiation and the etfects of that rale-regulation on its
financial statements. IFRS 14 is effective tor annual pesicds bedinning an or atter 1 January
2016, Since the campany is an existing IFRS meparer, this standard would not apply.

ITRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes 3 five-step model to account for revenus
arising fram contracts with customers, Under (FRS LS, revenue is recognised at an amaount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled i exchange for
transferring goods or services to a custamer, The new revenue standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS, Either a full retrospective application
ar a madified retrospective application is required for annuat periods bedimning on or aftar 1
January 20018, whan the 1ASBE linalises their amendments to defer the effective date af IFRS
15 by one year. Early adoption is permitted, The company plans to adoot the new standard on
the required effective date using the full retrospective method. Furthermore, the campany is
considering the clarifications issued by the IASE in am exposure drafl in July 2015 and will
monitor amy furlher developments,
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COOP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGFMCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FENAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1.

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued

{0

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the wse of cartain critical
accounting estimates. 1t also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the company's accounting poicies. The areas invalving a higher degree of judament or
complosity, or where assumphions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are as
follows:

(il

€}

Ciii}

(v

v}

£l

Property and equipment and intangible assets

Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining depreciation and amartization rates
far property, eguipment and intangible assets. The rates used are set out in Lhe accounting
poicy (d} and {e} belaw,

Impairment of assets

Impairmant exists when the carrying valug of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less casts to sed and ils value in use, The fair value less casts to sell
calculation is based on avallable data from binding sales transactions, conducted al arm's
tength, for similar assets or observable market prices ess incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use is the net book value. In the process of apphing the company's
accounting policies, Directors have made judgements in determining whether assels are
impaired,

Going concern

The Directars have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied Lhal the Campany has the resources to continug in business for the
foreseeahle future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt wpen the Company's abimty to continue 3s a gging concern.
Therelare the financial statements continue to he prepared on the going concern hasis.

Fair value of financial inskruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and linancial liabiities recorded on the statement of
financial positian cannot be measured based on guated prices inactive markets, their fair value
is determined using a variety of vawatian technigues that include the use af mathematica
madeis, The inputs to these modals are derived from observable market data wherg possibe,
but if this is not avaiable, judgement is required to estabish fair values, The judgements include
considerations of liguidity and madel inputs such as walatility for longer-dated derwvakives and
discount rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset-backed securities. The
valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail innote L.

impairment of avadable-far-sale imvestmants

The Company reviews its debt securities classified as available-for-sale investments al each
reporting date to assess whether trey are impaired, This reguires similar judgment as applied to
the individual assessment 0f 10ans and advancas.

The Company also records impairment charges on available for-zale equity investmants when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost. The
determination of what is ‘signilicant” or ‘prolongsd’ requires judgroent. in making this judgment,
the bank evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is 1iess than its cost.

Deferrad taxation assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the estent il is probalile that tasable income win be
availale in future against which they can be utilized, Future tazable profits are estimated hased
@n business plans which inelude eslimates and assumptions regarding Bronnic growth,
interest, inMation and laxatian rates and competitive farces,
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CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2G16

SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cantinued)

1.

(dyIncame racognition

Management fees and inlerest income are recagnised in the pralit or loss en acoruan basis in the
periad in which they are earned, Management fee relates to fee charged to cients, for managing
their funds. 1L is based an the market value of the fund balance and charged on the agreed rate as
per the management agreements while interest income is recognised from bands using effective
interest method and from fized and call deposits,

{e1troperty and equipment and depreciation

(f

et

Property and equipment are stated at cost, wess accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, it any, Depreciation is calculated an the straight-line basis, at annual rates
estimated to write off carrving vahres of the assets gver their expected useful lives, The annual
depreciation rates in use are. -

Fixluras, fittings and eguipment 2a%
Computers 20%
Wator vehicie 20%

An item of property and equipment is derecagnised upon disposal or when oo future econgmic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss afising on derecognitian of the
asset fealculated as the difference hetween the net disposal praceeds and the carrying amaunt of
the assethis included in the income skglement when the asset is derecognised.

The resitdual vatues, useful lives and metheds of depreciation of property, plant and eguipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adpasted prospactively, if appropriate,

Intangible asseks and amortisabion

Imtangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
ipsses, il any. Amortisation is calculated on straight line basis at an annual rate of 20% estimated
to amartise the carrying values of the assets aver their expected useful lives,

(g} Financial liakilities

The Compary's financial tiabilities incwde trade and other payables All financial Habilities are
recognised imtialy at fair value and subsequently at amodtised cost

& financial liability 15 derecogrised when the ochbligation under the liability s discharged or
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liakility is replaced by ansther fram the same
lender on substantially different terms, of the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the derecegnition of the ariginal liakility
ant the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recogmised in toe statement af prafit or loss.

th) Relirement benefit costs

The Company contributes to a defined contribution benetits pensign seheme for all its employces.
The scheme is spoansared by the parent company, The Co-operative Bank ot Kenya Limited, The
ascets of the scheme are held in a separate truslee administered fund that 1s funded By bath the
group companies and employees.

The Company alsg contributes to a statulery defined contrigution pensicn scheme, the Natianal
Social Security Fund (N3SF). Contributions are determined hy local statute and are currently
limited to K5hs 200 per empoyes per manth,

The Company's contribulions to the above schemes are charged ta the profit and less account in
the vaar lo which they relate,
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CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1.

SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES (Continuad}

{iy Taxation

(i

Current income tax assets and liabilities Tor the current perigd are measured ab the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the lazation authorities, The tax rates and tax aws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method, tor all temporary differences arising
hetwoon the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying value, for financiar reporting
purposes,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary diferences, carry forward of
urused tax losses and wnused Lax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differances unused tax [osses and
the unused tax credits can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred bax assets is raviewed al each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probatie that sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to he utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assesserd at
gach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the delerred tax asset t0 be recovered,

Deferred bax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the vighility is sellled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
tiave heen enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial asscts at fatr value through
profit or loss, wans and receivales, held-to-maturity investments, auvatlate-tor-sale financial
assets, or as derivatives. All financial assets are recognised inittally at fair value plus, in the casa
of financiar assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributahle to the arquisition of the financial assel.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
estatished by regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades} are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Financial assets classified as tair value through profit ar toss include investments held for trading
and sybsenuently measured at fair value {guoted market bid pricas). All related realised and
unrealised gains or losses are included in profit and loss in the slalement of comprehensiue
income,

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative tinancial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fized maturities. Financial assets are classified as held to maturity when the
Company has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity, They are cist
subsequently measyred at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premiurm  on acqguisition  The amaortisation and |osses arising from impairment of such
investrments are recagnised in protit and loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Available for sale investments are inibially recognised ab cost plus tramsaction costs and
subsenuently re-measured at fair value (quoted market bid prices). Unrealised gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value are recogmized in in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in an Auvaitable-for-Sale reserve until the asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equity shall be reclassified to prolit and foss
in the statement ef comprehensive income,
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CO-OF CONSULTAMCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDRED 31 OECEMBER 2016

1. SHIMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ikl

(h

[mj

Management fces receivable

Management fees receivable are carried at original inueiced amaunt less an estimate made for
doubtful receiuabies based an a review of all outstanding ameounts at year end. tor better
managament of the Management fees receivable The Company records Changes in the canying
amount based on the numhber of days they have been outstanding, The Company then makes
provisions lor bad and douhtful debts in its statement of comprehensive income for debts which
have been autstanding for over bwo years. Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are
identified,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classitied as
available-for-sale, a sipnificant ar prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is ohjective evidence of impairment resulting tn the recognition of an impairment loss. It any such
evidence exists for availabte-for-sale financial assets, the cumalative wss - measured as the
difference hetween the acguisition cast and the current fair uawe, less any impairment [oss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or foss  is removed Irom the avaiable-for-sae
reserye and recognised in profit or loss, Impaicment losses recogaised in profit or [oss on equity
instruments are not reversed throudh profit or woss but recognised as ather comprebensive
income and accumulated in the available-for-sale reserve {a separate component of equity} if, in
a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as gvailable for sale increases
angd the increase can be abjectively related to an event occurring after the impaicment |0ss was
recognised in profit of loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

Fimantial assets
Financial assels carried at amortised cost include weld-to-maturity investments.

For financial assets carried at amertised cost, the Company first assesses whether impairment
exists individually Tor financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no ohjective evidence
of impatrment esists for an individuaily assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
ingludes Lhe asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
angd for which an impairment 1©ss is, or conlinues to be, recognised are not included in @
colleclive assessment of impairment. The amaunt of any impairment loss identified is measurad
as the difference hetween the asset's carrying amount and the present uaiwe of estimated future
cash llows cexcluding future expected credit [Bsses that have not yel been incurred), The present
valug of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s ariginar effactive
interest rate,

The carrying armount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
lvss is recognised in statement of profit or loss, interest ncome (recorded as finance income in
the statement of profit or loss) continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued wsing the rate of interest used to discounl the future cash flows for the purpose of
maasuring the impairment wss. . in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment 1055 increases or docreases hecause of an eveat occurring after the impdairmenl was
recognised, Ihe previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account, IF @ write-offl is lator recouered, the recovery is eredited to finance costs in
the statement of profil or loss,
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CO-OP CONSULTANCY B INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEp 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{n) Drerecoanttion

& financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecagnised (i.e. remaved from the group's consalidated statement
of financiar position} when:

The rights to receive cash flaws trom the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash llows frem the asset ar has assumed an
ohligation ta pay the received cash flaws in fule withaut material detay to a third party under a
‘pass-through' arrangement; and either {ay the Company has translerred substantially atl the
fisks and rewards of the asset, or by the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred cantrel of the asset,

foiOffsetting af financiar instruments

Financial assets and tinanowal liabilities are offset and the net amaunt is reported in the
cansolidated staterment of financial position if there is a currently enforceable kegal right to affset
the recognised amounts and there is anntention to sette on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the rahilities simultaneausy.

(piF air values

The Company's [air value measuremenl is based an the prosumption that the tramsaclion to selr
the asset or transfer the liabitity takes place either:

- In the principal market far the assel or liabilitv, or
. in the gbsence of a principas market, in the most advantageous market far the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible ta by the Campany.

The fair vame of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumplions that market
participants wowd use when pricing the assel or rigbility, assuming that market participants act
in their econamic best interest.

& fair value measurement al a non-financiar asset takes inte account a market participant’s
ability to generate ecanamic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
ta another market participant that wauld use the asset inits highest and best use.

The Company usas valuakion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and far which
sufficient data are available to measure fair vawe, maximising the use of relevant observabe
inputs and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

(g) Cash ang cash equivalents

Cash and rash equevalents are defined as cass on hand and in bank accounts, and averdrawn
bank batanges. For Lhe purposes of the statement of cash flaws cash and cash eguivalents
camprise cash on hand, hank halances, bank averdraft.

{r) Impairment ef non-fimanciatr assets

At mach reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing far an asset is
reguired, the recoverahte amount of the asset is estimated. nn asset's recoverable ameount is the
nigher of an asset's or cash-generating units {CGU} fair value 1ess costs af dispasal and ils value
in use. . Pecoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, uneess the asset does nat
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those fram ather assets or groups of
assels. When the carrying amount of an assat or COU exceeds its recaverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverabee amount.
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CO-0P CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
NWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coantinued}

I

Impairment of non-financial assets {continued

In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects courrent market assessments of the time value of
mnrey and Lhe risks specific to the gsset. In determining Fair value less costs of disposal, recent
marke! transactions are taken into account, IF no such transactions can be idenlified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a penod of five years. For lsnger
perigds, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied 1o project future cash flows after the
fiith year.

Impairment lnsses are recognised i profit or Ioss in cxpense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset except for assets previously revalued with the revaluation taken to
ather comprehensive income. For assets, the impairment is recognised in nther comprehensive
income up to the amount of any previous revaluation,

&n assessment is made at each reporting date Lo delermine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. IF such indication
exists, the company estimates the assel’s or CCU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used o
determine Lthe assel's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrving amount of the asset does not excesd its recoverable
amaunt, ner exceed the Carrying amount that would have been determined, net ol depreciation,
had no impairment loss been récggmsed for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognized
in profit or loss unless the assel is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase,
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CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGEMCY LIMITED
MOTES TS THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OECEMBER 2016

2. PROPERTY aMND ECVUVIPMEMT
Office Fixfures,
gquipment Fittings and Computers Total
paintings
K.5hs K.5hs KShs K.5hs
COsT
At 1 January 2016 792,400 3,382 820 7.8921,201 11,656,421
Additions 354,616 193,309 289,125 837,050
&t 31 December 2016 1,107016 3576,129 7,810,326 12,493 471
OERRECIATION
At 1 January 2016 458,502 1,942, T&8 2,976,705 5,384,245
Charge for the year 122 008 462 407 1,438,497 2,029,907
At 31 Oecember 2016 5E0,910 2,412,170 4,415 202 7,408,282
MET BOOK VYaLUE
a4t 31 December 2016 526,106 1,163,955 3,395,124 5,085,189
Fistures,
Office fittings and
equipment paintings Computers Totas
KShs K.5hs EShs EShs
COsT
At 1 Jdanuary 2015 431,520 3,382,820 6,105,029 9,919,369
Aadditions 320,880 - 1494 673 1,B15 552
Dispasals - - LR S00) £ 78,500}
At 31 Decemher 201% F5 2,400 3. 382,820 7,521,202 11,656 421
GEFPRECIATION
at 1 January 2015 410,021 1,482 676 1,698,177 31,590,874
Charge for the year 48,881 460,092 1,341,328 1,850,301
Charge on dispasal . - (62,8007 (62,8003
A1 21 December 2015 458 902 1,942 768 2,976,705 5 378,375
NET 800K YALUE
At 31 December 2015 293,497 1,440,052 4 544 457 6,278,046
3. INTAMGIBLE ASSETS 2016 2015
K5hs EShs
COsT
ab 1 January 18,B79.4%2 -
additions - 18879 452
At 31 Cecember 18,879 402 18,879,452
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2,517,260 -
Charge for the year 3,775,891 2.517,260
At 31 December 5,293,151 2,517,280
MET 800K vALUE
at 31 December 12,586,301 16,262,192

Intangible assets relate to computer soflware which is amortised aver the term of its useful life.
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CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGEMCY LIMITED

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YFAR ENDEG 31 GECEMBER 2016

4.

DEFERRED TAX

The provision for deferred tax comprises,

Excess of depreciation gver tax wear and
tear allowange
Leave pay provision
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Prouision of staff bonus

The provision for deferred tax comprises:
Excess of depreciatian ouer tax wear and
tear aligwance

Leave pay provision
Allowance for bad and doubtful Jebts

TRADE AMD GTHER RECEIVABLES

(@) Trade recewables

Balance as at
1.1.201a
K.ohs

(373,.346)
199 3985
B,152,.882

T.979,521

Balance as at
1.1.2015%
K.5hs

49,655
103,960
7519 617

76726

Commission & cansultancy fee receivables

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Het trade receivables
{ther receivables

{b) Allowance for bad and daubtful debts
At 1 January
Additignal during the year

At 31 December

Statement of
comprenensive
income

K5hs

(1,013,773}
240,022

4 572,248
1,606,034
5,404,531
Statement of
comprehensive

income
k.3hs

(423.00%)
Da,025
633,265

306.285%

2016
K5hs

194,037,900
(AZ 417,097

121,620,803
12,583,995

184,204,798
27,176,274
15,240,823

42,417 097

Balance as at
31.12.2016
k5hs

{1,387,.11%
AA0, 007
12,725,130
1,606,034
13,384,052
Halance as at

31122015
K5hs

{373,346)
199,985
B 152 882

7,979,521

2015
K5hs

218,425,125
(27,176,274)

191,252,851
27.447 348

228,700,199
25,045,397
2 110,877

27,176,274

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally an terms of 30 to 90 davs, The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximates the fair value

as at 31 Oecember, the ageing analysis of trade receivables was as follows:-

Total <30 days A0-a0 days

K.5hs KShs
2016 28,5919 07a 14,377,866
2015 13,830,223 19,623,536

25

HH-S0days
KShs

6,939,954

15,113,133

=90 days
K5hs

144,201,004

169,792,231

Total
KEShs

194,037,900

218,459,125



CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGEMCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINAMCEAL STATEMENTS {Conlinued?
FOR THE YEAR EMOED 31 CECEMBER 2416

= TAXATION
(a) Staterment of financial positian

Balanre broughi Farward
Charge Tar the year

Tax paid

Quer proVISion in Previaus years
Tax payable [ (recaverable’

Tax recoverable is due to withholding tax on fees to ¢lents.
{hy Statement of comprehensive income;

Current tax at 30% (2015 20 % an the taxable profit
Deferred tax credit - (Note 42

Duer provisian

Tax charge f(credit}

Recanciliation of taxation expenses to tax base on aceounting
profit:-

Accounting prefit before taxatian

Tax appucable rate of 30%

Tax effects on items nal deductible for tax
Under pravisian in pricr year

tAdjustments in respect af current income tax far)
prey iaus years

7. RELATEQ PARTY TRANSACTIONS atD BALANCFS

intercompany balances

2016
KShs

32,113,137
06,475,340
{109 238,235}
(1,668,027)
(12,317,785

66475 340
{5,404,529)
(1,668,027
59 402,784

197,621,657
59, 2B& 4927
1,804,314
©1,6B6,027)

59,402,784

2015
K5hs

13.B91,495
53,767,035
(35,545,393}

32,113,137

53,767,035
(306, 2895)

53,460,750

176,481,299
52,944 390

516,360

53,460,750

The financial statements inciude the allowing balances relating to transactions entered into with other

group companies; -

2016
KShs
far Dwie from a retated party:-
CAC Imsurance Group Limited
(b} Dueto arelated party:-
The Co-operative Sank of Kenya Limited 9 084,500

2015
K5hs

8,676,732

The amount due to Co-cperative Bank of Kenya Limited relales to expenses paid on the

company's behalf.

Amaunts due from and due to reated parties are non inlerest bearing and current. No collateral

is hewd for these balances.
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CO-DP COMNSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conténued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 21 DECEMBER 2016

¥.

10,

11.

RELATED FARTY TRANSALCTIDMS AND BALANEES (Continued)

Directors and senipr management persannel 2016 2015
compensations KShs Kahs

Directors emeluments;
As directors 5,682,589 5,925,473
A5 greculives - -

5,682,589 5025471
Key management personngl:
Salaries and other henefits 5,869,534 4,678,623
Post-employment pension _B& B9G 396,370
0,956,432 5,076,993
SHARE CAPITAL
Authansed, issued and Mully paid:-
FO0,000 grdinary shares of Kahs 100 each 70,000,000 F0.000,000

699,999 ordinary shargs arge held by The Cooperative Bank of Kenya Limited, while 1
wrdinary share is hed by Cp-opt rust Investments Secvices Kenya Limited.

RETA:MED EARMINGS 2016 2015

KShs KShs
At 1 January 201,312,878 TB.292 329
Profit far the year 138,218,873 123 020,549
At 31 December 339,531,751 201,312,876

The retained earnings available ror distribution tp the sharehoiders of the Company. The
movement inreserves is shown on page 8.

2016 015

TRADE AMD DTHER PAYABLES K 5hs Kahs
Trade payabees 1,560,613 2,198,100
Cther payahlgs 9.621,455 £,158.020
11,182,066 4,357,120

The carrying amaunts of trade and other payables approximate to their Tair values.

INCOME 2016 2015
KShs k.5hs

Consultancy fees 22 030,272 0,124 694
Traimng fees 42,972,741 46 588 3R
INSurance cammission 295,411,412 259,303,205
3A0,414,425 336,016,261

Consultancy fee arise from advisory services and Front Difice Services Activities (FDDA)
rendered, The tratning fees arise from trainings rendered to savings and credit cooperative
soristies. Insurance commission arise from sale of insurance products an agendy basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

12. OTHER INCGME 2016 2015
Kohs K5hs
Interest on fixed deposit 25,294,659 31,309,754

25,294,659 31,309,754

13, ADMINISTRATIVE ANG OTHER GPERATING EXPENSES

Slafl cost 95, 666 939 108,543,555
Depreciation 20249907 1,850,301
Amartisation of software 3,775,890 2,517,260
Auditars’ remuneration 1,013,376 Ba4, 480
Directors emolument s 5,682,589 927,473
Allowances [or had and daubtful debts 15,240,823 2,110,877
Rent 3,730,852 2,264,028
Hiring of venues is,692 982 37, 3dg, 380
Travelling 4,156038 16,881,366
NSUrance 5,386,822 3,244,303
Othors 15,711,209 9,317,693

188,087,427 90,344,716
14. FROFIT BEFORE TAX

The profit before tax is stated after charging:-

Depreciatian 2,029,907 1,850,301
Amortisation of software 3,775 890 2517260
Qirectors' emaluments 5,682 589 59254713
Auditors' remunoration 1,013 376 Ed4,480

And atter crediting:-
Interest income 25,294 659 31,309,754

L5, EARMINGS PER BHARE

Earnings per share are calculated on the prafit after tax and on the number of shares inissue
during the year,

16, CASH ANO GHORT TERM DEPOSITS 2016 2015
KShs Kohs

Cash at banks 56, 560,244 13,479,909

Short term deposits 145 660,000 43,660 000
202,220,244 57.139,909

Cash at bank earns interest at banks interest at floating rates hased on daily bank deposit rates.
Shart-lerm deposits are made for varving periods of between one day ta three months, depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the company and earn interest at the respective short-
term depaosit rates.

Cash and cash eguivalents included in the statement of cash flow comprises of the cash and bank
balances and short Lerm deposits ak year end.
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CO-OP CONSULTANCY & INSURANCE AGENCY LIMITED
WOTES TO THE FHNANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

17, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main business risks faced by the company in respecl of its principal noen-derivatiue financial instruments
are [fguidity risk, interest rate and credit risk. The directors review and agree poticies for managing thess
risks, These policiss have remained unchanged since incarporation. The companu maintains a conseruative
policy regarding currency {anly K5hs) and interest rate risks. The company does not engage in speculation in
the markets.

The company's prinCipas financial mstruments comprise cash and short-term depaosits, trade receivables, trade
payables and amount due from related parties,

The company does not enter inta derivative transactions. It is, and has been throughout the year under
review, the company's palicy that no trading in financial instruments shalt be undertaken.

The main risks arising rom the company's financial instruments are liguidily risk, interest rate risk and credit
risk.
Ligqurdity risk managemeanf

The company's shjective is te maintain 8 baante between continuity of funding and fexibility through the use
of bank overdraft. In the course of its operations Lhe company inuests its working capstal in forms that vary in
liguidity ranging from trade receivables, deposits, due from resated companies balances and trading
inuestments, Simultansously it carries current liabisties in form of trade payables, due to resated companies
batances and bank overdrafts the maturity of which necessitates liquidation. The antity matches sts currenl
assets to the current kabilities faiting due to mitigate the risk of ow dauidity,

The company manageas its liguidiy risk by:-

. Matching payment terms of Creditors and other lenders ta cash receipts from its clients.

. Matching its nperational expense pauments to ils cash recesved from operations,
Any shartfall in cash resources from Llime to tine is financed by bank overdraft.

The table below analyses the company's undiscounted financial assets and labililies into retevant groupings
based on the remaining period at 31 December to the contractual maturity dates:

A= at 31 December 20146

O-1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Tt al
K Shs K5hs K5hs KShs KShs
Financial assets
Trade recewvables 28,915,076 21,317,821 144 201,004 - 194 037 901
Cash and bank basances 56,560,244 - - 56,560,244
345,079,320 21,317,821 144,201 004 - 250,598,145
Financial tiabilities
amaount due tu related
partigs 9,084,550 - 9.084,550
Trade and other payables 11,182,068 - _- _ 11,182,068
20,266 618 - - 20,266,018
Net liquidity gap 64,812,702 21,317,821 144 201,004 - 230,331 527
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17, HINANCIAL BISK MANAGEMENT

Liquicity risk management (cpntinted)

As at 21 Qecember 2015

G-1month  1-3months 312 months 1-5 years Total
KShy K5k KEhs K3hs K3hs
Financral assefrs
Trade receivables 13,830,225 34,736,669 16%,792,231 - 218,359,125
Cash and bank balances 57,135,905 - - 57,139,909
0,970,134 34,736,660 169 792,231 - 275499 034
Firrancial Hiabiities
Armount dua tp ralated
parties B.&7HTIZ - - - B.ETATIZ
Trade and other payables 4,357,120 . . - 4,357,120
13,023,852 - - - 13,033,852
Met liquidity gap RT, 935,287 24736669 169,792,231 - 262,465,182

Credit risk management

The largest concentrations of credit exposure within the company relate to cash and cash equivalents held
with banks, trade receivables and amogunts due from retated parlies.

The company only ptaces significant amounts of funds with recognised financial institukions with skrong
credit ratings and does not consider the credit risk expasure to e signiticant. Amounts due from relaled
parties do not expase the company to sigmificant credit risk. The company is exposed to credit risk in its
trade receivables and a provision for impairment of trade recefvables is established when there s objective
evidence that the company will not be able to collect all the amounts due acearding to the areginal terms of
the trade debts,

The company deals only with recognised, ereditworthy third parties. Receivahble Balances are monitared on
an ongaing hasis since the company trades only with recognised third parties management deems there is
no requirement for collateral,

The amaunt that hest represents the Company's maximum egposure 1o credit risk at 31 Dgcember 4 made
up as follows:

2016 2015
K5hs '000 K.5hs ‘000

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

yabue yalue valye value

Cash and bank balances 56,5R0 La, LED 57,140 57,140
Trade and other receivables 1B4, 205 1B4, 205 228,700 228,700
Amgunt due from related parties - - - -
240, Ths 2410, Th. 285,840 285,840

For financial assets Lhal have a shart term maturity (1ess than three monthst it is assumed that the carrying
amounts approximate their fair value, This assumption is alsp applied to cash and bank balances, trade and
ather receivables and amounts due from related parties.
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17,

18.

19,

FINAMCIAL RI5K MAMAGEMENT (Continued)
interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value and cash flows of a financial instroment win fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates,

The lollowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to g reasonahty possible change in the interest rate,
with all other variables held constant, on the Company’s profit before tax,

Appreciation f (depreciation} of Efiecl on profit before Effect on profit before
Interest rate tax

Year 2016 kShs

Short-term depoasits 1%/ 1 %) +/- 1,456,600

Year 2015

Short-term deposits 1%1%) +{- 436600

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary ohijective of the company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating amd healthy capital ratios in arder to support its hosiness and maximise shareholder
valug, The campany manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic condilions and requirements of its sharehalders. The company has no debts hence not
geared,

OPERATIONA HISK

Operational risk is the fisk of direct or indirect 10ss arising from & wide variety of causes associated
with the campany™s processes, personnegl, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors
athar than credit, market and liguidity risks such as those arising from legan and reguiatory
requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.

The company's objective is 1@ manage operational rish 50 as W0 Dalance the avoidance of firancial
losseos and damage o the campany's reputation with overall cost effectivenass and to avoid conkrol
praceduras thiat restrict initiative and creativiky.

The primary responsibility for the development amd impementation of contrais to address
operational risk is azsigned to senior management,

This responsibility is supported by the dewvelopment of overall company standards for the
management of operational risk in the foullowing areas;

. requirements for appropriate segredation of duties, inciuding the independent authorisation of
transactions

. compliance with regulatary and other 1iegal requirements

. documentation of controls and procedures

. reguirements [or the perindic assessment of aperationan risks faced, and the adeguacy nf
contrals and procedures to address the risks identified

. requirements for the reporting of aperational 1osses and proposed remeadial ackion

- development of contingency plans

. trainirg and professianal development ethical and Dusiness standards
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20

21.

22,

23,

24,

COMMITMENTS 2h1fA 2015
K.Shs ¥5hs
Capital: Authorised but not contracted for 25 603,926 17,571,600

Capital commitrmants in the current year relates to computer software, computar equipment,
meLhanicat mobile filing system, workslations and high back chairs.

IMCORFORATION

The company is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act.

FPARENT COMPANY

The parent company of Co-op Consultancy & Insurance Agency Limited is the Co-operative Bank
of ¥enya Limited. The ultimate holding company is the Co-op tlolding Cg-operative Sociaty
Limited incorporated in Kenya under the Co-operative Societies Act.

CURRENLY

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs),

EVEMTS AFTER THE REPOQRTING PERIDD

The directors are not aware of events alter the reperting date that require disclosure in or
adjustments to the financial stabements as at the date of this report.
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THE CO-OFERATIVE BANK QF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
REPORT DF THE DIRECTORS
FDR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The directors submit their report toaether with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
Cecamber 2016, In accordance with Section 22 of the Banking Act {Cap 488) and Section 42 of the
Sixth Schedutle, Transitional and Saving Frovisions, of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, this report has
becn prepared in accofdance with Section 157 of the 1epealed Companies Act, as if that repeal had not
taken effect.

1. FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Group offers banking and related seruices and is licensed under the Banking Act,
2. GROUF OPERATIONS

The financial posilion and performance of the Bank's subsidiaries, Co-optrust investment Services
L imited, €o-op Consultancy & Insurance Agencu Limited, Kingdom Securities Limited Co-gperative
Bank of South Sudan and Co-operative Merchant Limited have been incuded in the Group financial
statements, Co-op Consulfancy & Insurance Agency Limited oflers financial advisory and insurance
agency sorvices. Co-opirust Inuestment Services Limited is involved in the business of fund
management. Kingdom Securities Limited provides stock broking and investment advisory seryvices,
Co-operative Bank of South Sudan offers banking and related services. Co-operative Merchant
Limited is dormant,

3. RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out from page 12.

4. DIVIGEND

The directors recommend payrment of a first and final dividend of K5hs 0.80 (2015 - KShs 0800
for every ordinary share of K5hs 1, The dividends wili be paid on or about 30 June 2017 to the
shareholders registered on the Bank's register at the close ol business on 26 May 2017, The
register will remain closed for one day on 29 May 2017 for the preparation of dividend warrants.

The Directnrs have giso approved and recommend a bonus share issue, one 1) for every five (53
ordinary share held. The bonus subject to Capital Markets Authority approuar wil be credited to
the shares on the register at the ciose ol business on 30th June 2017,

5. RESERYES
The mouerment in the Group's reserves is shown on page 17 of these financial statements,
&, GRDUF DIRECTORS

The directors who serued during the year and to the date of this report were; -

Co-operative Bank of Kenya and Kenyan subsidiaries:-

S. €. Muchiri, EBS - Group Chairman

Jo M. Riungu - Vice Chairman

Or. G. Muriuki, MBS - Group Managing Direclord CEQ

L., Karissa Chairman, Board Risk Commitiee
J.K. Murugu Chairman, Board Credit Sub Committes
R. Simani (kirs) - Chairperson, Board Audit Commiftee
W, Ongoro, HSC

Wanyambura Mwambia - Representing PS5, National Treasury
J. Sitienei

R. L. Kimanthi

M. Malonza

5. Odhiambo £Mrs)
Cr. J. Kabunuyo
P.K._ Githendu

G K Mburia

B.W. Simiyu



THE CO-DPERATIVE BANK DF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
REPCRT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

&, GROUF MRECTORS (Continued)

Ca-aperative Bank af Kenya and Kenyan subsidiaries (continued):-

J.H. Njiru

.M. Muthigani

F_ Gichuki . (Retired 7 December 20160

M. N. Mungai {Mrs) - (Appainted an 7 Doccember 2016}

Co-cperative Bank of South Sudan:-

Williarm Mayar Wal Chairman
Zacharia Chianda - Managing Direclor
Frot, Mathew Gordon Udo

Wani Buyu Dyori

5. C. Muchiri, EBS

J M. Riungu

Or. 4. Muriaki, MBS

Fasematry Githaiga {Mrs)

7. AUDITORS

The company's auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, have expressed their willingness to continue in affice
in accardance with the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015,

8. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were appraved by the Beard of Directors on 15 March 2017

Gzreup Managing Director & CEO



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF DIRECTDRS' RESPOMNSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2016

The Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 requires the directars to prepare financial statements For each
tinancial year that give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at the end of the
tinancial year and of its prafit or [oss for that year. It also requires the directors to ensure that the
comparyy maintains proper accounting records that are sufficient ko shaw and explain the transactions of
the coampany and disclase, with reasonable accuracy, the financiar popsition of the company. The
directors are ais0 respoensible for safequarding the assets of the company, and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection af fraud and cther irregularities,

The directars gocept respansibiity [gr the preparation and presentation of these financiad statements in
accardance with Internatienal Financial Reporting Standards and in thé manner required by the Kenyan
Campanies Act, 2015, They alse accept responsibility for:

(i) designimg, implementing and maintaining such internal contrel as they determing necessary to
enahble the presentation of financial stalements Lthat are free [rom material misstatament, whather
due ta fraud or error;

(i selecting suitabie accounbing palicies and applying them consistentty; and

(ikiy making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonahble in the Circumstances.

Having made an assessment of the Bank's ahility ta continue as a going concern, the directors are not

aware af any material uncertainties related Lo events ar conditians thal maw € ast doubt uppon the Bank's

ahility to continue as a Qoing cencern.

The directors acknowledne that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relicue them
af their responsibilities.

|
D\.ﬂ‘[/\ 2017 and signed on its behaif bu;

Approved by the board of directors an \S

GROUP CHAIRMAN

COMBANY GECRETARY
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INDEFENDENT AUCNTOR'S REPORT
T THE SHAREHCOLDERS OF
THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED

REPDRT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Chainion

We have audited the consohdated and bank's financial statements of The Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Limited ¢the Banky and its subsidianics (together. the Group?, seb out on page 11 to 99 which caomprise the
consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the cansolidated
and separate statements of comprehensive incame, consclidated and separate statements of changes in
equity and consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes Lo the
consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of signilicant accounting palicies.

In our apinion, the accompanying consalidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, Lhe tonsolidated and separate finandial pasition of the Group and the Bank as at 31
December 201&, and its cansolidated and separate financial perfarmance and its conscidated and separate
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards and the
requirements af the kenyan Companies Act, 2015,

Basis for Opinicn

We conducted aur audit in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (15As), Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated and separate Financial Statements sechion of our report. We are independent of the group in
accordance with the Inkernational Ethics Standards Board for Accountanks Code of Ethics tor Professional
Accountants (IESEA Coade). We have fulfilled aur other ethical responsibilitics in accardance with the IE5BA
Code, and in accordance with other cthical requirements applicable to performing audits of tinancial
staternents in Kenya. We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o
pravide a basis far aur apinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance m our
audit of the cansalidated and separale financial statements of 1he current period. These matters were
addrossed in the context uf qur audit of the consolidaled and separate annual finandial statements as 4
whale, and in farming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our descriptian of haow our audit addressed the malter is provided in Ehat context,

We have Fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audilor's responsibilities for the audit of the financia
statements seclion of our report, including in redation to these matters, Accordingly. our audit included the
perfarmance of procedures designed 1o respaond to gur assessment of the risks of matenial misstatement of
the financial statements. The rosults ot our audit procedures. including the procedures performed to
address the mallers pelow, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial
statements.
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Hey Auvdit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Credlt risk and Impairment of ioans and advances fo
customers

Laans and advances constitute 66% of the tatal assets of

the group in the statement of financia! position as at 31
December 2016,

Management performs an annual impairmenl assessmeni
as required by the Central Bank of Kenya prudential
guideiines and the nternatienal Acceunting Standard
{145 39 Financial  Instruments:  Recoqnitienn  and
Keasurement, This process is subjective in nature, due to

the judgement invoived in estimating the amount and .

timing of expected fulure cash flows of leans and |

advances,

In addition to specihc provisions against individualy
impaired Ioans and advances, the group also makes a
coliective impairment provision against the remainder aof
the 1gans and advances in reiation to which specific
pravisions For mpairmeant osses have ngt been made,
The group, as disciesed in nate 2 (d) and 2 (n}, assesses
impairment  callectivery  tar  portfaios  with  similar
econamic characteristics and for specific counterparties
which is based upon the directors' best estimate of the
present vaiue of expected future cash flows.

Acceordingly, the impairment assessment of loans and
advances is considered to be a key audit matter due ta the

" rewaluation gain af

Qur audit pracedures included but were nat limited
fe:-

Assessing key controds over the approval,
recording and monitaring of 1cans and
advances {o custemors;

Evaluating the methedolegies used by the
graup in Lalculating  Codlectively assessed
impairments  for  complianee  with the
requirements of the Central Bank of Kenya
prutdential guidelines and the internationa
Financial Repeorting Standards ;

Reviewing the inputs and management’s key
assumptiens abeut the ameunt and timing of
experted future cash MNows and net realizable
value of sefurities herd by the greup with

respect fo specific counterparties on a
sampie basis.
Assessing  the adequacy of  impairment

dilewances for some individually assessod
lgans and advances selected using sampiing
methads, and;

Assessing whether the financia statement
disciosures inciuded in netes 3(ay and 1300
in the Minancial statements appropriately .
refiect the graup's credit risk experience and
impairment pravision on lgans and advances
te cusiomers.

Vajuation of land and bulidings

The bank's land and buildings are carried in the bagks of
acCount using the revaluation made| as per the pravisions
af the International Accounting Standards (AS) No 16 -
Property, Plant and Equipment. The Bank revalued its
land and buildings as at 31 December 2016 resulting in 3

cansidered significant to the financial statements.

We alzo focused on this areas becquse the vauation of
the land and buiidings was based on open market value
assessed  using  the  investment, cost o and  market
camparisan analysis appraaches, which invalve significant
estimates and require application of judgment,

Kshs 1,227,693,694 which we |

We designed aur audit procedures o address this
matter in the fonowing ways:

Assessing fhe rationale used by the external
valyer in determining the market value ¢f the
fand and buldings

Evaluating the exfernal valuer's
gualifications, independence, comptence
and capacity ta perform the vauatian.
Evaluating and lesting key assumptions used
in the waluation to determine whether they
were supparted by the availahie evidence in
as far as market prices are concernead,
Cenparing the open market wvalues with
those af similar properties 1n the same
Incation

Assessing Lhe adequacy of the disciasures
inciwded In nates & and 19 to the finanaal
statements.

investment in banks under receivership

The group, through Cu-Op Trust Investments Services

e —

Qur audit precedures inchuded hut were nat

=)
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Key Audit Matter

Limited, had invested KSns 923 million in Chase Bank (Kenya) |

Limited on behaff of its customers. This bank was put unger
recaivershup on 7 Aprl 2016 and re-opened on 27 April 2016,
under a Recejiver MWanager (KCB Bank  Limiteds, The
investments, mainly fixed depasits, were paid ta the custamers
by the Co-operative Bank on behalf of Co-Oplrust investiment
Limited.

In addition, the group, through Ca-op Trust investment, has
invested KShs 274 millign in Imperial Bank Limited an behalt of
pension schemes. This Bank was also put under receivership on
13 Octaber 2015 and consequently branches re-opened ender
NIC Bank Limited on 26 July 2016, The risk on the investment is
carried by the individual pension scheme,

There is uncertainty involved in relation to the recoverahility of
these investments as the industry reguiater continues to fock
into the affaire of the two  financial ishitubons, The
management assessment on recoverghility of Chase Bank
investments is disclosed in note 12,

Accordingly, we considered this a key matter due to the ievef of
uncertainty inyolved,

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Climited to:

. Reviewing on a  sampie basis,
payments made by the Co-operative
Bank o©n  behalf of Co-op Trust
Investment Services Limited,

. Aszecsing tne judgement appiied by
management on future recoverabibity
af the Chase Bank investments;

s  Reviewing of the <cofrespondende
between the Group and the market
requiator  {the  Capital  Markets
Authorityl on the treatment of the
inwastments;

¢  Assessing the pregress made by the
requiator (Central Bank of Kenya) in
reviving  the two  banks  under
receivership; and

* Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosure on this matter, included in
mate 12 of the financial statements,

Reporting In hyperinflationary economies by Co-Operative
Bank of South Sudan

With effect from 2016, the 5South Sudan economy  was
considered  to be  hyperinflaticnary  in accordance  with
International Practices Task Ferce (PTFY which required all
registrants in South Sudan to repoerl in accordance  with
Intermational Accaunting Standard (AS) 29 -Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Ecenemies. As a result, the financial
staterments of Co-Operative Bank of South Sudan, which are

Sanghuded an o the Graup consolidated finanas statements, have

been restated to reflect the changes in general purchasing

 power of the South Sudanese Found as required by 145 23.

We consider this to be a key audil matler due to effecl of
restatement on the Group Financialk Statements as a resut of
adjusting  Co-Qperative Bank  of  Sputh  Sudan  Financial
staterments to reflect the general change in purchasing power 8s
disciosed in note 33 (o)

The matn inputs used in restatement of Co-Operative Bank of
Southy Sudan financial statement are the comnsumer price mdes
COPI) between 2015 and 2016 and conversion coefficient
derived from the CPI. The conversion coefficient derived from
the consumer price index (CP1 in the Repuhiic of Seuth Sudan

and the corresponding CPI are disclosed in note 33(c).

Our audit precedures included;

» Assessing the agcuracy of restated
financial statements for Co-Cperative
Bank of South Sudan by reviewing the
AL 29 workings prepared by
management  and  evaluating  the
reasonableness of the inputs used in
the restalement.

* Assessing whether the Group finangial
statement disclosure in note 33 {c)
appropriatery  reflect the impact of
tryperninfiation reporting in o
Operative Bank of South Sudan.
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Other infermation

The directars are responsibie for the other information. The other infoermation eomprises the Directors'
Report as required by the Kenyan Companies Act of Kenya, 2015, Other information dees not include the
censolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor's report theragn,

Cur opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does ot cover the other information
and we do net express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conciusiaon thereon,

In connackien with our audit of the conseiidated and separate financial statéements, cur responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing s¢, consider whether the other infermation is materially
inconsistent with the consoiidated and separate financial skatements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed on the other infermation obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we condiude that there iz a material misstatemeant of this ofher infermation, we are
required to report that fact, We have nothing o report in this regard.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conglude that there is 0 material misstatoment therein, we are
required 1o communicate the matter to those charged with governance

Responzibilities of the directors for the consolitated and separate financial statements

The directors are responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated and separate
annual financial statements in accordance with [FRSs, and Tor such inlernal eantror as directors
determings is necessary Lo enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due [o fraud or errar.

In preparing the conzelidated and separate financial statements, directors are respensible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accountling unless the directors either intends 1o iquidate
the Group or to cease cperaticns, or has nd realistic atternative hut to de so.

The directors are responszible for averseeing the Company's finandial reporting processes,
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Conscolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated and <eparate annoal
linancial statements as a whole are freg from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror, and to
issue an auditers report that includes our epinian, Reasonable assurance is 4 high level of assurance, fuk is ngt
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with 15As will always detect a material misstatement when
it axists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material (f, individually or in the
agoregate, they could reasonably be expecled to inflluence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consalidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545, we exercise professional judgment and maintain protessional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s ldentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the cansolidated annual Fnangcial siatements,
whether due ta fraud ar errof, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those nisks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion, The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulling from fraoud is higher than for one resulting from ercor, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, inkentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal contral,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order Lo design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinian on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal contral.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasanableness of accounting csbhimates
and related disclosures made by management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the geing concern hasis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a8 material uncertainty exists related to events or caonditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ahility to continue as a going coneern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
tisClosures in the consalidated annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our apinion, Gur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
repart. Howewer, future events or conditions may cause the Group ko cease o continue as a8 going concern.

+ FEvaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the consalidated annual financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated annual financial statements represent the
unoerlying transactions and events in a manner bhat achigves fair presentation.

« Oftain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infarmation of the entities or busingss
activities within the Group to express an opinign on the consolidated annual financial statements, We are
respansible for the direction, supervision and perfarmance of the group audit, We remain solely responsitile
for our audit opinion.

We cammunicake with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scopa and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controt that
we identify during our audit.

We also pravide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied with relevant ethicat
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thaught to bear an our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From Ehe matkers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consatidated annual tinancial statements of the current perigd and are
thergfore the key audit mallers, We describe these matters in our auditer's report unless law of regulation
prectudes public disclosure about the makter or when, in extremely rare circamskances, we determine that a
matter should nat be communicated in our repart hecause the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected (o outwesgh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on other legal and reguiatory requirements

Asrequired by the Kenyan Campanies Act, 2015 we report to you, based an cur audit, that;

il we haue ohigined all the information and explanations which, to the best of cur knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpases of cur audit;
i) In cur opinion proper books of account have been kepl by the company, so far as appears froam

our examination of those books, and
{iin} the company's statement of Fnancial position and statement of comprehensive incvme are in
agreement with the books of account.

The engagement partner responsible for the audit resutting in this independent auditor's report s Jaseph
Cheboror - P, P.1145

pRadhs ~mt

——
Mairobi, Kenya
. ] -
2 s
RN~ s
/

“In accordance with Section 42 of the Sixth Schedule, Transiticnar and Saving Provisions, of the Kenyan
Companites act, 2015, the company's financial statements and this report have been prepared in
accordance with Sections 147 to 163 of the repealed Companies Act, as it that repeal had not taken
effect.

10



THE CO-QPERATIVE BAMKE QF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMEER 2016

Maote 2016 2015
K5hs'000 KShs'000
ASSETH
Cash and balances with Central 8ank of Kenya K 25,682 704 29,455,691
Deposits and balances due from banks B 5,017,303 13,977,237
Hedd-for-Lrading investments g 147 206
Available-for-sala invastmeants i0 24,758,148 28,771,862
Derivative tinancial instruments 11 126,776 621,737
Other assets 12 12,242 438 12,130,498
Laans and advances to customers 13¢a3) 232,307,329 208.571920
Held-ta-maturity investments 14 37,158,762 36,154,555
Investment in associate 16 2,409 2467 2,267,230
Intangibtle assets 17ca) 1713118 1,605 067
Prepaid lease rentals 18 36,352 36,964
FProperty and equipment 190a) 8,308,698 8,020,778
Deferred tax asset 20 1087507 BB& 055
TOTAL ASSETD 351,828,577 342,499 809
LIASILITIES
Deposits and balances due to banks 21 3,411 977 3,421 219
Custamer depasits 22(an 260,153,437 265 398 BT
Leans and borrowings 23 19 B13 260 19271212
Tax payable 240 1,221,025 171,328
Provisions 25 141,251 110,191
Other liabilities 26 5.926R8,630 4,306,703
Government grants 27 458 R42 17,317
TOTAL LIAEBILITIES 231,208,452 293,196,507
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TOEQWITY HOLOERS OF PARENT
Share capital 28 4,889 317 4 GB9.317
Share premiym 29 2. 889,769 2,889,789
Revaliation reserve 30¢a) 1,336,103 459,414
Retained earnings 30(b) 48,208,633 39,574,448
Available-for-sale reserve 30¢c) (1,158,031} (1,870,841
Statutory reserve 306d7 ¥36,416 TEd4,381
Forgign currency translatian reserve 30(e) - (9482100
Proposed dividends 1 3,911,453 3911,453
60,815,682 49 69,748
Mon-contrelling interest kY {195,957 (386 496)
TOTAL EQLITY 60,620,125 49 303 25%2
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQULITY 351,828,557 342,493,809
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on }"

2017 and signed on its betalf by -

5.C. Muchiri, EBS Group Chairman

J.M. Riungy Yice Chairman

Dr. G, Muriuki, MBS Group Managing Director & CEQ

R. M. Githaiga {Mrs.) Company Secretary

11



THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AMD SUBSIDIARIFS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Interest incgrne
Interest expense

NET INTEREST iNCOME

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expanse

MET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

et trading income

Ameortisation of government grants

Qther operating iNcoms

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

OPERATING INCOME

Met impairment (0sses on 10ans and advances
Amaortisation of intangible assels
Amortisation of leasohold land

Depreciation of property and eguipmont

Employee costs
Other operating expenses

OPERATING EXPEMSES

OPERATING PROFIT
Share of profit of an associate
PROFIT BEFQRE TAX

INCOME TAX EXPEMSE
FROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Altributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Hon-controlling interest

Basic earnings per share (KShs)

Diluted earnings per share {KShs)

Wote

33
34

35
35

36
27
37

L2y
170
1B
1%{a)
£1;)
3

l&

240a)

40

40

2018
K5hs'000

i17,349,B57
{12,768, 30D}

24,581,557

9,787 .5OY
(248 482)

9,539,027
5,277,360
18,476
2,854,511
8,150,347
42,276,931
(2.599,671)
{485, 506)
(611)
(1,936,699

(9.403. 4413
(10,219,017

24 644,945}

17,625 986
97 546
17,723,632
(5,047 322)
12,678,210
12,927,768
(251 5587
12,676,210

2.64

£.20

2015
KShs'000

33,370,039
13,586 911

1%, 783,128

9,501,634
(57,944}

9,443 890

5,412,502
18,4756
1,731,784
T 162,761
36,385,779
{2.019.255)
{399 950)
(006)

(1,825 444

(B,927,12B)
(8,219 255)

{21,391,678)

14,998,101
_3B4,991
15,383,092

(3,677,533
11,705,559
11,288,763
416,750
11,705,555

2.31

152



THE CQ-OFERATIVE BAMKE QF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDNARIES
CONSOLIDATEDR STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Mote

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREBEMSIVE INMCOME, NET OF TAX

Gther comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit
or 1oss in subseguent pericds:
Netl movement on available-for-sale investments 41
Exchange differences on translation of a foreign
operation
Qther camprehansive incame of assaciates
-Fair walue loss on available tor sale investments
Other comprenensive income pot to be reciassified to
grofit or joss in subsequent perigds:
Revahiation af land and buikding
Other comprehensive income of associates
- Revaluation of building

OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME, HNET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR MET
OF INCOME TAX

Attributatle to:-
Equity halders of the parent
Hon-contrelling interest

2016
KShs'Q00

12,676,210

08,015

1,855,258

B39 386
ri7e

3,434,415
16,110,625
15,464,337

£46, 2838

16,110,625

2015
KShs'T0D

11,70% 559

(1,026,494
(1,8290,682)

(40,270

...54,042

{2,903,404]

B.BDZ, 155

9.z288,411

(486, 256}

8,802,155



THE CQ-OPERATIVE BANK OF KEMYA LIMITED
DANE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

ASSETS

Cash and halances with Central Bank of Kenya
Oeposils and Balances dueg from banks
Hetd-for-trading investmants
Availale-for-sale investments
Derivative financial instruments

Other assets

Loans and advances b cuslomers
Held-to-maturity investments
Investment in sebsidiaries

Inyeast ment inassociate

Intangitte asscts

Frepaid lease rentals

Froperty and equipment

Deferred tax asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Oepasits and balances due to banks
Customer deposits

Laans and borrowings

Tax payable

FPravisions

(hher liatrilities

Gavernment grants

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Sharg preamium
Revaluation reserve
Retained earnings
Availablga-for-sale reserves
Statutory reserve
Froposed dividends

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIARILITIES & EQUITY

andl signed an its behalf by:-
2. €. Muchiri, EB% Group Charman
J.M. Riungu Vice Chairman
Or. &, Muriuki, M35

E. M. Githaiga {(Mrs)

Company Secratary

MNate

10
11
12
L3a)
14
15
Lo
17(b)
18
1%k
20

21
22{a)
23
24017
25
25
27

28
25
30a)
3005
3Q¢c)
300
a1

Group Managing Oirector & CEQ

14

2016
KShs'G00

24,457 720
5,352,891
147
24,624,756
L26,776
13,071,271
231,770,171
37,003,530
2,512,920
To5, L8
1,410,156
36,352
7.817.715
1,061,187

349 99T TE2

3,402,823
259,471,749
19,813,260
1,248,6%4
132,190
5,876,131
4G5, 841

290,450, 770

4.88% 317
2 889 TEY
1,256,445
456,970,978
{1,088.834)
717,844
3,911,453

59,546 992

349,887,762

2015
K5hs"000

27,173,645
13,869,273
149

28.641 0531
621,737
12,018,559
208,074,513
35,999 971
2,207 370
755,118
1,461,590
36,964
7.B12,740
B76,614

335,543,811

2905 405
263,709 415
19,271,212
157,596
110,190
4,085 215
317,317

250,756,350

4 889 317
2,882 789
397,055
37.850,868
£1.842 869
717,844
3,911,453

48,753 161

339,545,811




THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED ANG SUBSIDIARIES
BAMHK, INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OECEMEER 20116

Note
Interast income a3
Interest expense 34
MET INTEREST INCOHME
Fees and eommission incoma 15
Fees and Commission @xpense as
MET FEES ANO COMMISSION INCOHE
et trading inCome 3G
Amaortisation of government grants 27
CHher operating incoms 37
TOTAL OTHER {NCOME
GPERATING INCOME
Net impairment losses on leans and advances 12(c)
Amortization al intangible assets 17(b)
Amortisation of leasehold tand 18
Depreciation of property and eguipment 15k
Employee costs i
tHher operating expenses a9
OJPERATING EXPENSES
PROFIT BEFQRE TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24{a}
FROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Basic earnings per share (K5hs) 40
Qiluted garnings per share (KShs) A0

15

2016
K5hs' Qo0

37,181,204
12,727,244

24,453 960

8.B1B.0BO
{248,481)

B,5&6%, 599
5.076,446
18,475
2832717
7.987.639
431,011,198
{£,594,567)
(447 371
(6113
(1,B34 722)
{B,944,7864)
(5,168,736)
(22.990,793)
18,020 405
{4, 96B,B41)
13,051,564
2.67

£2.2¢

2015
KShs'000

33,098,293
(13,564 779)

12,533,514

B.647 Ti5
_. {&7,944)

8,589,791
4,100,649
18,479
1,785,689
_5,504,B13
34,028,118
2007357
(377503
(Ada)
(1,795 458
(B,a10,131)
(7.3659,545)
(159 956 ,660)
14,071,458
{3,599 Ba()
10,471,598
2.14

1.78



THE CQ-QPERATIVE BAMK OF KEMYA LIMITED AND SUBSIMARIES
BANK STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Mote
FRQFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Cther comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit ar
loss in subsequent perfods;
Met lossfgain on available-for-sale investments 4]

Cther comprehensive income not to be reclassified te
profit or las5 in sunseguent periods:
Revaluation ofand and huilding

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET
OF INCOME TAX

16

2016
KShs'000

12,051,564

754,035

_B5%, 385

1,613,421

14,664,585

2015
K5hs'00O

10,471,598

11,046, 807)

(1,048,807}

9422,791



THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KEMYA LIMITED AND SUA5IDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUNTY

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Foreign
currency Hen-
Share Share Reualuatlon Statutory  Avaiatee-for- translation Praposad Retalned controlling
capital Premium TESErYE reserye sale reserve reserve dividends earmings Tata interest Total equity
KShs'DOO  HShsDOD KShs'DOU  KShs'DOD WShsooD  WShsBDO  wepepon KS$hs'000 K5hs'000  KShs'OO0 KShs OO0
A5 at 1 Jamuary 2015 4,880,317 2,889,789 408074 718421 (7933581 31,494 7444658 32,706,653 42,795,000 82,119 42,877,119
Profit f{loss) for the year - - - 11,288,640 11,288 6R0 416859 11,705,559
Other comprehensive ingcme - 39,684 - (1,075, 90 (964, 243) (2, 000249)  (903,155) (2903404
Total ecmprehensive income - - (1,075,690 (R4 243 11, 284,660 GPAR 411 (485 2580 8,802,155
Transfer of excess deprecia? on - (8074 - : 9,071 - -
Deterred income tax on transfer
of excess deprediation - 2,722 - (2,722
Transfers o statutery reserve &5, 964 Rl -
Reclassification from jitoinon-
conrrelling interest 18,001 - {1,795 {15 40E) B0, 195 CE 955 17,641 68,634
2014 Oividends paid - - - - 12444 £58) - 2444, 858) [2,444,658)
Froposed dividends - - 3,911,453 (3,911,457) - N -
At A1 December 2015 4,489,217  2,BAY9, 789 456,414 VB4, 281 {1,870.841) {948 2100 3,911,453 39,574 445 49,689,748 (386,496 49 303,252
As at 1 January 2816 4,885,317 2 B8G, 789 455,414 784,381 {1870.84]> (248, 210) 3,911,453 29,574,445 49,689,743 (386,495 49,303 252
Profic Kin0ss) for tha year 12,927,768 12927768 281,558 12676210
Cther comprohensive ingcome 1,234,895 TELTTD 94g, 718 - 2,904,875 B97.846 3805721
Total comMprensnsive inGame - - 1,234,805 - 721,778 945,210 - 12,927,768 15,832 643 &a6 288 15,478,931
Boferred tax onrevalyation surplus [ 348, 2087 - - - {258, 308 [368,308)
Transter to reva uaticn reserve - 1172 - (1,172 - -
Exchange difference on
hyperinflationar, economy - - 1212 (49,135) (8,950 - (380, 955) (26,9480 (455349 (BBE 29T
201&- Oividends pand - - (3,911 453} - (3,911,453 (3,911,453
Fropesed dividends - - 3.%911,953 (3911453 _ -
&t 31 Becember 2815 4,869,317 2 B85, 739 1,338,103 Ti5 418 (1,158 811 3511,453 45, 208,633 £ BLG a3 195,557 RO.628 125
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENY A LIMITED AND SURBSIDIARIES

BANK STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Share Share Fevaluatian Statutary  Awvailabfe-for- Proposed Fetained
capital premium rasarug reserye sala reserye dividends earnings Total
K shs'GD{ KShs"DO0 KShs'GDG K.5hs'Q00 KShs Q00 KRS Q00 K&hs'DoD KShs'DOD
Az at 1 January 2015 4,880 317 2,889, 7B 003 408 717,644 (794.0462) 2,444 658 31,264,174 41,815,328
Frifi for the year - - 10,471,598 10,471,598
Cther camrprehensive ingome - 11,048,807 1,048,807
Total comprehensive income - - (1,045 807 14,471,598 9,422,791
Transfer of aicess depreciation - e o7 - - 9071 -

Crefarrad income tax on transfer o excass

depreciatian 2,722 - - 12,7221
2014- Qivdeacs paid - (2,444, 658) (2,444,658}
Proposed ividends - - 3,911,453 {3,711,453) -
At 31 pecember 2015 4889 317 288y, 780 307 057 717,844 (1,842,560 3,911,453 17 530,867 48 793,460
asat 1 Jangary 2016 4889317 2,.BR9 TR 397,050 TL7 Baa (1,842 569 3,911,453 37830857 48,793 460
P-afit for the year 13,051,564 13.051,'56@
{Hther comprehens ve income 1,227 694 _ TE,036 - 1,981,729
Tokal comprehanzive income 1,227,694 754,035 13,051,564 15,033,203
Ceferred tax am revaluation serplus - (365,308) - - (3cH, 308)
2016 Dredeacs paid - - (3211.453) (3,911,453)
Prapased cividends - 3911453 (3,911,453 -
At 31 Pecember 2016 4,889,317 2 889,789 1,286,445 717,844 {1,0288,834) 3,911,453 46,9797 59,506,997
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THE CO-GFERATIVE BANK OF KENY A LIMITEQ AND SUSSITARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 QECEMBER 2016

Cash generaled from operating activities
Tax paid

Met cash flows generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:-

Purchase of property and equipment

Furchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments
Maturity of held-to-maturity investments
mvestment im an associghs

Cividends From an associate

Met cash flows used in investing activities:-

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:-
Froceeds from borrowings
Hepayment of borrewings
Qividends paid to equity holders of the parent

Met cash flows used in financing activities

Mel movement in cash and cash equivalents
Etfect of fargign exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

19

Mote

42
24k

19(a)
IE)

14
14

1A

23
23

A2

2016 2015
KShs'000 KShs'G00
{2,256,914) 23,558,606
(4,545,970} (3,923,452
(6,802,884) 19,635,154

(687,739 {631,099}
(595,352) {338, 689)

- 2,400
(12,436,012) (10,840,820}
11,432,405 (664,209

- (30,152)

T2,8TE 64,407
62,214,422) {12,439,162)
& 007,884 1.08&,700
(5,465 665 (1,820, 787)
(3,911,453 (2,444, 658)
{3,369 2343 {3,178, 7453
{12,286,540; 4,017,247
3.887 (927,345)

29 368,423 26 278,531
16,985, 7TBD 29,368,433



THE CD-DFERATIVE BANK DF KENYA LIMITEDR AND SUBSIRIARIES

BANK STATEMENT DF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENCED 31 DECEMBER 2016

OFPERATING ACTIVITIES:-

Cash (used ind f generated from operating activities
Taa paid

Net cash flows (used in} / from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES;-

Purchase of property and equiprnent
Purchase of software

Additional capital to a subsdiary
Purchase of held-te-maturity investments
Maturity of held-fo-matunty investrments

Wet cash flows used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:-

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Qividands paid

Met cash flows from financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beqginming of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

20

Mote

42
241

19003
170}

14
14

23
23

42

2D1s 2015
KShs'000 K5hs'Q00
(7L7.692) 22,570,482

(4,420,630) (3,838,892
{5,138 322 18,731,590
(822,3713 (583,755
(506, 7320 (310,803
(305 ,550) (400,9227
(124366120 (10,846 8205
11,433,053 (892,955
(2.445217)  {12.835.259%
£,007 884 1,086,700
(5 465,665) (1,.820,787)
(3,911,453) (2,444 &58)
(3,369,234} (3,178,745)
(10,952,768) 2,717,586
27,589,720 24,872,134
16,636,252 27,585 720



THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMNK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE COMSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. GEMNERAL 'NFORMATION

The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited is a financial institution incorporated in Kenva under the
Companies Act {Chapter 486) as g public limited labilily company, licensed under the Kenyan Banking
Act ¢Chapter 4BBY and demiciled in Kenya. The consolidated financial statements comprise the Bank
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”. The Group is primarily involved in corporate
and retail banking, investment and asset management services in various parts of Kenya, The Bank's
equities are listed on the Nairgbi Stock Exchange (NSE). The graup information is inciuded on page 1
of these financial statements.

The Bank has a subsidiary in Republic of South Sudan named Co-operative Bank of South Sudan which
was estabiished in 2012 through a partnership between The Co-gperative Bank of Kenya Limited and
the Government of South Sudan. The Subsidiary is incorporaled in accordance with the Companias
Aet, 201 2 of South Sudan and is licensed under the Banking Act of South Sudan.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal aoecunting policies applied in the preparation of these conscligated financial staterments
are set gut below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
ctherwize stated,

{a) Basis ol preparation

The consalidated financial statements are prepared under the historical ¢ost convention as
modified by the measurement at fair value of available -for-saie investments, derivative financial
instruments, other financial assets and liahilities held for trading, financial assets and Kahbilities
designated at fair vamwe through profit or loss, land and buildings carried under the revasation
modeal.

The consanidated financial statements of the Group hgue been prepared in accordance with
Internationar Financiar Reporting Standards {IFR%} as issued by the tfnternational Accounting
Slandards Board (1A 5B

For the Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, in these financiar statements the balance
sheel is represented byfis equivalent to the statement of financial position and the profit and
loss accounlis presented in the statement of comprebhensive income,

{by Basis of consondation

The consglidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financiar statements of the Bank
and its subsicharies and associate as at 31 Decamber 2016, Control is achieved by the Group ouer
an inveslee if and only il the Group has:-:

0 Power over the investee {i.e. existing rights that give it the current abiity to direct the
relevant activities of the investee}, and

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

. The ability to use ils power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has lgss than a majerity of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers alh relevant facts and ciwrcumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
inuestee, including:

. The contractual arrangement with the other vole holders of the investee

. Rights arising from other contractus areangements

. The Greup's veting rights and potential voting rights
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THE CO-OIPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued})
FiR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h} Basis of ¢consalidation {continued)

{c}

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls am investee iF facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of controd. Cansolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group oblains conbrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Greup loses control of the subsidiary, Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or dispnsed of during the year are included in the staiement of comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains centrol until the date the Group ceases to cootrod the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each companent of other comprehensive iocome {DC1) are attributed to the
eodity holders of the parent of the Group and o the non-cootralling interests, even if this
results in the ron-controlling imerests having a deficit balance. When oecessary, adjustmants
are made fo the financial statements af subsidiaries to bring their accounting palicies inlo line
with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, incorme,
expenses and cash flows redating to bransactions between members of the Group are eliminat ed
in bulan consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without 3 [oss of control, is aceounted for as

an equity transaction. If the Group loses contron over a subsidiary, it:

. Derecognises the assets (incuding gnodwilly and liabilities of Lhe subsidiary

. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

. Derecagnises the cumulative transiation differences recorded in equity

. Recognises the fair value of lhe ¢onsideraton recejved

. Recognises the fair vaiue ot any invest ment retained

. Fecognises any surplas or deficit in profil or loss

. Reclassifies the pareot's share of components previously recognised in Q| to prafit or loss
or retained earnings, as appropriate, as woud pe required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabiities

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Hew and amended standards and interpretations

The Group applied for the first time certain standards and ameodments, which are effective for
anndal periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, The Group has it early adopted any
ofher standard, interpretatien or amendrment that has bean issued but is not yet effective,

The nature and the effect of these changes are disciosed below, Although these new standards
and ameandments applied for the first time in 2016, they did not have a material impact on the
arnual financial statements of the Group. The nature and Lhe impact of each new standard or
amendment is described below:

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 is an optiooal standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, to continue applying most of its exisling aceeunting policies for reguiatery deferral
account balances upoo its first-time adoption of IFRS, Entities that adopt IFRS 14 must present
the regulakary deferral accounts a5 separate dine items on the statement of fimancial position
and present movements in these account balances as séparate line items in the statement of
profit of doss and GC1 The standard requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks associated
with, the entity's rate-reguiation and the affects of that rate-requlation on its financial
statements,

Since the Group is an existing IFRS preparer and is net involved in any rate-requlated activilies,
this standard does nat apply.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMOED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(el

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Continued)

New and amended standards and (nterpretations (Continugd)

Amendments o (FRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acauisitions of Interests in Jaint
Operations

The amendments to (FRS 11 require that a joint operater accounting for the acguisition of an
interast im a jpint opergtian, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business,
must apply the retevant IFRS 3 Business Combdinations principles for business combinabion
accovnting. The amendments also clarify that a previgusly held interest in a joint cperation is
not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation if joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added o IFRS 11 to specify that the
amendrments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
arg under common coantrol of the same uttimale conkbroning party. The amendments apply to
both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acguisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation and are applied prospectively. These
armendments do not haue any impact an the Group as it does not have any interest in a joint
pperaticn,

Amendments fo 145 16 amdf JAS 38; Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments clarify the principle in 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 145 38
Intangible Assets that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from
nperating a business (of which the asset is a part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed throvgh use of the asset, As a resull, a revenue-based method cannot be used o
depreciate properly, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied prospectively and do not have any
impact on the Group, given that it bas not used a reuerie-based method bo depreniate its non-
current asseis,

Amendments to IAS 16 and TAS 41 Agricutture; Bearer Plants

The amendments change the accounting reguirements for binlogical assets that meel the
definitivr of bearer plants. Untler the amendments, binlogical assets that mest the definition of
bearer plants will no Jonger be within the scope of |AS 4t Agriculture, Instead, 145 16 will
appry, After mitiar recognition, bearer plants will be measured under 1AS 16 at accumylated
cost (before maturity) and vsing either the cost model or revalvation model (after maturity).
The amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope
of |AS 4t measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, [AS 20 Accountmg for Government Grants and Oisclosure of Government Assistance will
apply, The amandments are applied retrospectively and do not have any impact on the Group
as it does not have any bearer plants.

Ameandments to (A5 27 Equity Metholl in Separate Financlal Statemants

The amendments allow antities to use the equity method to gocount for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
dlready applying IFRS and electing Fo change to the eqguity method in their separate financial
staterments have to apply that change retrospectivery. These amendments do not have any
impact on the Growp's financial statements.,
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THE CO-QPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
WOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2. ACCDUNTING PDLICIES {continued)

() Changes in accounting policies and disclnsures (Continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations (Continued)

Annual improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
These improvements include;
IFRS & Nan-current Assots Held lor Sale and Discontinued Operations

Assets (or disposal groups) are generaily disposed of either through sale or distripution to the
awners, [he amendment ctarifies that changing from ane of these disposal methads to the ather
would net be considered a new plan of disposat, rather it is a centinuation of the griginal plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the apphcation of the requirements in IFRS 5. This
amendment s applied prospectively.

FRS 7 Fingnoial Instruments: Disobsutes

{iy Servicing contracts - The amendment Clarifies that a servicing contract that inciudes a fee can
canstitute continuing fnvolyement in @ financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the
lee and the arrangement against the guidance for continuing invelvemnent in {FRS 7 in order to
assess whelher the disciosures are required. The assessment of which servicing contracts
constitute continuing  invelvement must be deone relrospectively. However, the reguired
disclasures need not he provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the
cntity first applics the amendments.

iy Applicabitity of the amendments {0 [IFRS 7 io condensed interim financial statements

The amendmenl clarifies that the offsetting disclosure requirements do not apply te condensed
intferim financial statements, wunless such diselnsufes provide a significant update to the
information reported in the most recent annual repart. This amendment is applied
ratrospochivoly.

fAS 19 Emploves Benelils

The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed ased on
the currency in which the chbligation is denomipated, rather than the country where the
okdigation s located. When Lthere is no deep market for high guabty corporate bonds n that
currency, gavernment Bond rates must e used. This amendment is applied prospectively.

TAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendment clarifies that the required interim disglosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorperated by cross-reference between the interim  financial
statements and wherever they are included within the interim rinancial report {e_g., in the
management commentary or risk report). The other information within the interim Financial
repert must be available to users on the same terms as the interim financsal statements and at
the same time. This amendment is applicd retrospectively.

These amendments do nt have any impact on the Growp,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMNK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENGED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING FOLICIES {continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures {Continued)
Wew and amended standards and interpretations (Continued)

Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendmenis {0 1AS 1 clarify, rather than significantly change, existing 185 1 requirements.

The amendments clarify:

« The materialily requirements in [AS ]

« That specific ling Hems in the statement(s) ot protit or wss and Q0 and the statement of
financial position may be disaggregaied

« That entities have flexthility as te the order in which they present the notes to finantial
staiements

« That the share of QCI of associates and joind veniures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a singla line item, and classified between those ilems that
wil or will not be subseque ntly reclassitied to profit or loss.

Furthermagre, the amendmenls clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are
presented in the statement of financial position and the statement(sy of profit or o055 and QCI
These amendments do not have any impact on the Bank.

Ameadments o FRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 78 Investment Entities; Applying {he Consodidafion
Excepiion

The amendments address issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities esception
under IFES 1¢ Consolidated Financial Statements. The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the
eremption from presenting consclidated financial statements applies te a parent entity that is a
sitbsidiary of an investment enfity, when the investment entity measures ah of its subsidianies at
tait value, Furthermore, the amendments to (FRS 10 ciarify that only a subsidiary of an investment
entity that is not an investment entity itself and that prevides support services to the investment
entity s consolidated. ANl other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair value,
The amendments to |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Jomt Yentures arllow the invesior, when
applying the eguity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity
associate or jnint venture {o its interests in subsidiaries, These amendments are applied
retrospectively and do not have any impact oen tha Group.

The standards and interpretations that are issued, But not yet effective, up to the dale of issuance
of the Group's financial statements are disclosed hetow. The Group intends 1o adopt these
standards, if applicakle, when they become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments
intrgduction

In July 2014, the |ASE issued IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the standard that will replace [AS 39
for annual periods on or after 1 Januwary 2016, with early adeplion permitfed.



THE CO-OPERATIYE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDHARIES
WOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contmued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{3 Changes in accounting policies and discinsures (Continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective
IFRS 4 Financial inatruments

ClassHication and measurement

Frem a classification and measurement perspective, the new standard will regeire all financial
assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, to he assessed Nased on a combination of the
entity’'s bDusiness model tor managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow
characteristics,

The |AS 39 measurement categaries will he replaced by fair value through profit or toss (FYRL),
lair value through other comprenensive income (FYOCH, and amortised cost. IFRS 2 will also allow
entities to continue to irreuncably designate inslruments that gualify for amartised cost or fair
ualue through OC| instruments as FVYPL, if deing so eliminates or significantlu reduces a
measurament or recognition inconsistency. Equity instrumeants that are not held for trading may
be wrrevocably designated as FYOC|, with ne subsequent reclassilication of gamns or losses to profit
or hoss.

The accounting for linancial liabiiities will largely be the same as the requirements of 1AS 39,
except for the Lregtment of gains or lesses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating fo
liabilities desigmated at FYRL, Such movements will be presented in QCI with no subsequent
reciassification to profit or foss, unless an accounting mismatch in profit or loss would arise.

Having completed its initial assessment, the Group has concluded that:

« The majority of lnans and aduances to banks, [oans and advances to customears, cash collatoral
for reverse repo agreements and cash settlemant Balances with Cledring houses that are
classitied as loans and receivahles under 1A% 39 are gxpected to e measured at amaortised cost
under IFRS 9

+ Financial assets and liakilities held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at
FWPL are expected 1o e continue bo De measured at FVYPL

+ The majority of the deht securities classified as availabie for sale under |AS 39 are expacted to
te measured at amortised cost or FYOCI, Some securities, however, will be classified as FVFL,
aither because of their contractual cash How characteristics or the business modet within which
theu are held

« [ett securities classified as held to maturity are expected to continue to be measured at
amortised cost.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 allows entities o continug with the hedoe accounting under 1AS 39 even when other
elements of IFRS become mandatary an 1 January 208, The Group does not Nave any hedge
instruments.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMNK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
HOTES TD THE CONSQLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR 321 DECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures {(Continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 2@ Fingncial Instruments fCantinged}

impairment af fnancial asseis

Qverview

[FRS 9 will alsa fundamentaily change the loan lass impairment methadelegy, The standard will
replace 1AS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-leoking expected loss (ECLY approach. The
Growp will be required to recard an allowance for expected lesses for all loans and other debt
financial assets not held at TYPL, together with loam commitments and financial guarantee
contracis, The allowance is basad on the expacted cradit 1osses associated with the probability of
default in the nexd fwelve months untess there has been a signilicant increase in credit risk since
afiginatian, in which case, the allowance is based an the probabibity of default over the life of the
assat,

The Group has established a policy to perfarm an assessment at the end of cach reparting periad
of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recagnition by considering the
change in the risk of defzult occurring over the remaining like of the financial instrument,

» To calculate ECL, the Group will estimates the risk ot a defaurt eccurring on the financial
instrurment during its expected life, ECLs are estimated based an the present value of all cash
shortfalls ouer the remaining expected life of the fimancial asset, i.e., the difference between;
the contractual cash flows that are due to the Bank under the contract; and,

« Thr cash flows that the Group sxpects to recewve, discounted at the effective inlerest rate af
the ioan.

In comparisen to 1AS 39, the Group expects the impairment charge under IFRS 9 to be mare
valatile than under 1AS 39 and 10 resall in an increase in the taotal level of current impairment
allowances,

Farward looking infarmation

The Group will incorporate forward-lnoking information in both the assessment of significant
increase in credit risk angd the measurement of ECLs. The Group considers forward-lecking
infarmation such as macroecaonamic faclors (e.g., unemplogment, GOP growth, interest rates and
hause prices) and economic forecasts, Te euvaluate a ramge of possible outcomes, the group
intends to formulate three scenarios; a Dase case. a worse case ant a Detter case. The base case
seenario represents the more likely outcome resulting fram the group’s mormal fimancial plamning
and budgeting process, while the better and warse case scenarios represent more optimistic or
pessimistic outcomes, For each scenario, the Group will derwve am ECL and apply a prabahility
weighted appreach fo determine the impairment allowance. The Group will use internal
infarmation coming fram internal econamic experts, combined with poblished external infarmation
Ffrom government and private economic forecasting services. Both the Risk and Finance
managament teams will need ta approve the farward-looking assumplions belore they are applied
lor different scenarios,

Limltatlon of extimation tec hrigques

The madels that will be applied by the Graup may not always capture ad characteristics of the
market at a point in Hme as they cannat ke recalibrated at the same pace as changes i market
canditians. Interim adjustments are sxpected ta need to be made until the base models are
updated, Althodgh the Group will use data that is as current as passible, madels used to calculate
ECLs will be based on data that is ame month in arrears and adjustments will he made for
sigrificant events accurring priar to the reporting date,
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THE CO-OPERATIWVE BAMK OF KENY A LIMITED AN SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued:

it} Changes in accounting poidicies and disclosures {Continued?

Standards issued but not yet effective {Continued)

Amengments to 1AL 12 Incame Taxes

In January 201&, through issuing amendments to 1A% 12, the [ASB clarified the accounting
treatment of deferred tax assets of debt inskruments measared at fair value for accounting, bat
measured at cost for tax purposes. The amendment is effective from 1 Janvary 2017, The Group is
currently evaating the impact, but does noet anticipate that adepling Lhe amendments wourd have
a maieriat impact on its financial stalements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the |ASE issued [FRS 15 Reuenue from Conlracts with Customers, effective for
penods beginning o 1 Januvary 2018 with early adoption permitted, 1FRS 15 defines principles for
recognising revenue and will e appucable to all contracks with customers. However, interest and
fee income integral to lnancial instruments and Ieases will continue toe fall cutside the scepe of IFRS
15 and will be reguiated by the other appiicable standards (e.g., IFR5 9, and IFRS 16 Leases).

Beuenue nder IFRS 15 will need to e recognised as goods and services are transferred. to the
extent that the transferor anticipates entitlernent to goods and services. The standard wil also
specify a comprehensive set of discigsure requirements regarding the nature, extent and timing as
well as any uncertainty of revenue and corresponding cash Flows with cuslomers.

1he Group does not anticipate early adopting fFRS 153 and is currently evaluating its impact.
RS 16 Leases

The 1ASE issued the new standard for accounting for 12ases - [FRS (6 Leases in January 2016. The
new standard dees not significantly change the acceunting for leases for lessors, However, it does
require lessees to recongnise most leases on their balance sheets as lease liabilitigs, with the
corresponding right of use assets. Lessees must apply a singe modal for all recognised iases, but
wilh hava the optien not to recognise 'short-term’ leases and leases of ‘low-value' assets, Generally,
the profit or less recegnition pattern for recognised leases will e simaar to today's finance (ease
accounting, with interest and depreciation expense recognised separately in profit or ioss, IFRS 16
is effective for annual perfods beginning on or after 1 January 201%. Early application is permitted
provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 15, is applied on the same date. Lessegs must adept IFRS
t & using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach,

The Group does net anticipate early adepting IFRS 16 and is currently evaluating its impact.
Amendments to (A5 7 Statement of Cash Flows

In January 2016, the [ASE issued amendments 1o (A5 7 Statement of Cash Flows with the intention
to improve disclosures of financing activities and hewp users to petter understand the reporting
entities’ liquidity positions, Under the new requirements, entities will need te disclose changes in
thedr financial liakilities as a result of financing activities such as changes frorm cash flows and non-
tash items (e.Q.. gains and tosses due to foreign currency movements), The amendment is effective
from L January 2017, The Group will adept the amendment when it becomes effective, The
adoption of this amendment will net have a malermal impact onlhe statement of cash flows as tne
gains or lgss on fereign exchange are not makerial, |
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 GECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLECIES {tantinued)

)

s

Changes in accounting pelicies and disclosures (Cantinued)

Standards issued but not yet effecthve (Continued)
Amendments fo (FRS 10 and 1AS 28; Sale or Conpribution of Assets hatween an fnvesior and its
Associate or Joint Venfure

The amendments address the canllict between FFRS 10 and EAS 28 in deating with the |oss of
contrel of a subsidiary that is sof or contnibuted to an associate or joint venlure. The
amentdments clarify that the gain ar 1058 resulting from the sale or contribpution of assets that
constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, hetween an investor and its associate or joint
venlure, is vecagnised in fulb, Any gain or [ess resulting frem the sale or contribution of asscts
that do not constitute a husiness, however, it recognised anly to the extent of unrelated
inyesters’ interests in the associate or jeint venture. The |ASE has delerred the effective date
of these amendments indefinitely, bul an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply
thern prospectiveky,

IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions — Amendments Fo
IFRS 2

The |ASE issucd amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment that agdress three main areas:
the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settied share-Based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment fransaction with net settlement
features for withheiging tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the terms and
canditians nf a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to
equity sethied, On adoption, entities are required ta apply the amendments without restating
prior pericds, but retrospective application is permitted if elected for ail three amendments and
other criteria are met, The amendments are effective for annual periods beglnnlng an ar after
1 January 2018, with early application permitted. These amendments are not expected to have
any impact on the Group,

Significant accounting estimales and assumplions

The preparatian of the Qank's consolidated financial stat@ments reguires management o make
jufgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amgunt of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accampanying dischgsures, as wel as the disclosure of centingent
liabilities., Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimales could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Estimates and 55SUMMHTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future and ather hey saurces of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing @ matenal adjustrment to the carrying
amaunts al assets and fabilities within the nest financial year, are described below, The Bank
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters guailable when the consalidated financial
staterments were prepared, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due ta market changes ar circumstances beyond the canlrat of the Bank,
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ocour.

GOIfT CONCern

The Bank's management has made an assessment of ils ahility ta cantinue as a going concern and
is satisfied that i has the resources to continue in business for the foreseealbie fulure.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
daubt upan the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financiak statements
cantinue to be prepared on the going concern hasis.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCOUNTING PDLICIES {tontinued}

() Significant accounting estimates and assumptions (continued?

Fafr vatue of financial instruments

Where the fair valwes of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the staterment of
financial position cannot be measvred hased on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value
15 determined uzing a variety of vahuwation technigyes that include the use of mathematical
madels. The inpyls {o these modeds are derived from abiservable market data where possible, but
if this s not avaifable, judgement is required Lo establish fair values. The judgements inclyde
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatifity for longer-dated derivatives and
discount rates prepayment rabes and default rate assumptions for asset-backed securities, The
valuation of financial instrurments is described i more detail in Note 6.

impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its individually significant ipans and gdvances at each staternent-of-finangial-
position date to assess whether an impairment [0ss should be recorded in profit or doss. n
particular, management's jydgerment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when deiermining the impawment [oss. Thess estimates are based on
assumpiions abowt a number of faciors and actual results may differ, resulting in Fviure changes
to the aillowanca.

Loans and advances thal have haan assessed indidually cand fovnd notb to be impaired} are
assesied together with all individually insignificant loans and advances in groups of asseis with
similar risk characteristics. This is to determine whether provision shovid be made due to
incurred doss events for which there is objective evidence, but the effects of which are not yet
ayigent. The collective assessment takes accovnt of data from the Iman portfolio (such as tevels of
arrears, credit wtilisation, loan-to-coliateral ratios, etc.), and judgements on the effect of
concentrations of risks and economic data (including levels of unemploymend, real estate prices
indices, coundry risk and the perfgrmance of difterent individval grovps?,

Impairment of avaiable-for-sate investments

The Group reviews its debt securities classified as availahle-for-sale investments at each
reporting date to assess whether they are impaired. This requires simelar judgment as applied {o
the individual assessment of [oans and advanges,

The Group also records impairment tharges on available-for-sale equity investments when there
has been a significand or profonged decline in the Fair value below their cosi. The determination of
what is ‘signiticant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. In making this judgment, the bank
avafuates, among ether factors, hastoricat share price movements and duration and cxtent to
which the fair value of aninyestment is less than s Cost,

Daferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of {ax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxabte profit will be avaifable against which the |osses can be dlilized. Judgement s
required {0 defermine the amount of deferred tax asseis that Can be recognised, based vpon the
likety timing and level of luture taxahie profits, together with fytyre tax-planning strategies,
Management do not foresee changes in conlrel or dimmished returns over the investes.



THE CO-DPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIGIARIES
NOTES T3 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YFAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCOUNTING FOLICIES {continued)

(el

2

(g3

Recagnition of income and expenses

Revenue is recogrised 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific criteria must be met befare
relenue is recognised:

i} lInterest and similar incame and esponses

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing linancial assets
classilied as available-for-sale and financial instruments designated at fair yvalue through prohit
or loss, interest income or expense is recognised at the effective interest rate (EIRY, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated foture cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the fimancial instrament or shorter pariod, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount
af the financial asset or fimancial liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (far example, prepayment opticns) and inclodes any fees or
imncremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an inlegral parl of the
EIR, but not future cradit 1gsses. The carrying amount of the financial assets or financial
liabilities is adjusted if the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted
carrying armount is calculated based on the original effective interest rate and the change in
carryimg amounl are recognised as interest income or expense.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for al interest bearing instruments on an accrual
basis taking into account the effective yied on the assel. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount of impaired and provided for financial assets using Lhe
rate of interest used to discount the future cash rows ror the purpose of measaring the
impairment Bss. Interest on the Governmenl and Donoer funds is recognised as incOme on
accrual basis

i) Fee 3nd commission income
Fee and commisston incame including account servicng fees, investment management fees,
placement fees and syndication fees, are recogrised as the related services are performed,
Dther fee and commssion expense relates mamly o0 tramsaction and service fees, which are
expensed as the services are received

i} Dividend income
Dividends fraom associate and equity inugstments are recognised when the Group's right e
recene payment is established.

iv) Renfal income
Rental income i3 accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms an ongaing leases
and is recognised on a manthly basis when it falls due.

(v} Met trading income
Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and
related interest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities held
for trading . This includes any ineffectiveness recarded in hedging Lransactions.

Cash and cash equivatents

Cash ard cash equivalents as referred to in the cash flow statement comprises cash on hand, nen:
restricted current accounts with central banks and amounts due from banks on demand or with an
original raturity of three months or less,

Froperly and egquipment

Fecognition and measurement

Land and buildings arc measurad at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and
inpament 18sses recognised after the date of the revaluation. Any revamation surplus is
recagnised as olner comprehensive ineome in the  assets revaluation reserve (a separate
component of equity), except to the exlent thal it reverses a revaluation decrease of Lhe same
asset previpusly recognised in protit or lgss. in which case Lthe increase is recognised in profit or
loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an
existing surpius on the same asset recognised in the revaluation reserue, Revaluation surpluses
are not dislributable, Land and puildings are revalued after every 3 years by approved external
valuers.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED ANP SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES T8 THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

=)

i)

Property and equiprmenl {eontinued)

Dther categories of property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumutated impairment losses. Cost includes costs inpurred to acquire the
asset, costs incurred to bring the asset to working condition far its intended use and the coast of
replacing part of the property and eguipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition
criteria are met, Additions and improvements that result in Fubure benefits are capitalised.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount qf
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All nther repair
and maintenance costs meurred to keep assets in normal operating condition are recagaised in
profit or loss as incurred, Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
enuipment is capitalised as part ol the equipment.

Ar itern af property, planl and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from it use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecagnising of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal procesds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or Inss in Lhe year the asselb is
derecagnised.

Deprecialion
Depreciation is caltulated on a strgight- line basiz over the useful life of the assat as follows;

Buildings A years 2.0%
Fizlures B years L2.5%
Furniture and equipment 5 years 20.0%
Motor vehicles L years 20.0%
Office machinery 5 years 20.0%
Cormputers 5 years 20.0%

Leasehoid 1and is depreciated aver the remaining pering of the lease. Buildings an legsehnld land
are depreciated over Lhe remaining period of the 1ease subject to a maximum of farty years,
Buildings on freshald land are depreciated over forty years. Freehod land is not depreciated. The
asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and prospectively
adjusted as a change in estimate if appropriate, at each tinancial year and,

Business combinations and goodwill

Busingss combinations are accgunted for using the acquisition methed of accounting. This involves
recoanising identifiable assets (including previgusly unreconnised intangible assets) and liabilities
{inciudirng contingent liabiities but excluding fulure restrocluring) of the acquired business at fair
value, Any gxcess of the cost of acquisition aver the fair ualues of the entifiable net assets
acquired is recognised as qoodwill, If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair values of the
identifiable net assels acquired, the Group re-gssesses whether it has correctly identified all of the
assets acquired and all of the liahihties assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of
the fair vatue of net assets acouired owver the aggregate consideration transferred, the discount on
acquisition is recognised directly in profit and wss in the year of acquisition.

Goodwill acguired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combmination aver the Bank's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
asseks, liabilities and contingent liabilities gequired.

Fomlowing initial recognition, goadwill is measured at cost less any accurmulated impairment I0sses,
Geodwill 15 reviewed for impairment annually, or mere freguently. if events or changes in
circumstances indicakte that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
testing. gaodwil acquired in a business cormbination is, from the acquisition date, alincated o each
of the Bank's cash-generating units (CGUs) ar graupg of CGUs, which are expected o benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether olher assels ar habililies of the goguiree
are assigned to those units. Egch unit 1o wivich the goodwill is allocated represents the lowesl level
within the Bank at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpnses, and is not
larger Ltham an operating seament in accordancs with IFRS B D perating Scgments.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGUsY and part of the aperation within
that umt is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed aperation is included in the
carrying amount af the operation when determinmg Lhe gain or loss on disposal
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THE CO-QPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TG THE CONSCHIRATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS (continued?
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eontinued)

thi

(i

Business combinations and goodwill fcantinued)

Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances are measured based on the relative valses aof the
dizposed operalion and the portion of Lhe CGLU relained. When subsidiaries are soid, the diflerence
between the selling price gnd the net assets plus cumualative transiation differences and goodwill is
recegnised in profit or loss,

Intangible assets
The Group's other intangible assets comprise the value ofF computer software licemses and
sepacately idertifliable intangible items acguired in business combinations.

An intangible asset s recognitsed only when ils cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to ot wilt flow to the Group.

Intargible assets acquired separately are measured on inltial recognition at cost. The ¢ost of
intangible assets acquired in a business cambination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognetion, inlangible assels are earried al cost fess any accumuolaled amarlisation
and any accumulated impairment 10sses.

The useful hves of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite ar indefintte, Intangible assets
with Finite lives are amortised over the vseful economic life. The amortisation pericd and the
amartisation methad for an intangible asset with a finite useFful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end, Changes in the expected wseful life ar the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are agcounted for by changing the amortisation
period of method, as appropriate, and treated as changes inm accounting estimates. The amartisatian
expense an intangibie assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or 10ss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intanqible asset.,

(az Computer software licences
Acguired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the cosls incurred o
acquire and bring to use the specilic soflware. Tnese costs are amortised on the basis of the
expected useful lives, Software has g maximum espected useful life of 5 years.

f)] Other intangihie assats

Cther intangible assets are initially recognised when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal righls, the cost can be measured relably and, in the case of
mtargible assets not acquired in a business combination, where it is probable that future
economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow from their use. Obther intangible assets
cansist of Mairobi Stock Exchange (M3E) seat (mow renamed M5E trading right} and joint
venture development cost {Cost incurred for the joint venture agreement during the set-up
of Co-operative bank of South Sudan?d, The Joint Yenture development assets relates ta the
costs ingurred in negotiating the Jdoinl Yenture arrangemert with the Government of South
Sudan. Under Lhe Joint Venture agreement, the Bank acquired certain rights that are
identifiable 8,q., busingss relationships with the government and co-operative movements.

Effectrve September 2014 and uporn dermutualization of Nairobi Securities Exchange (M5E),
the NSE Seat initially valued at KShs 251 million was replaced with a trading right which
gave participants a right to tragde at NSE. The Lrading right serves the same functicon as the
Seat. The lrading right was attached g value of KShs 25 million by NSE Board which has
been taken as #s fair value, Therefore, the revaluation reserve on NSE seat in the statement
of changes in egquity was reduced by K5hs 226 milian, being the difference between the
carcying amaunt ¢f the NSE seat and Lhe faw valde on the trading right, The trading right is
carried as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life at the valug of KShs 25 million,
less any suhsequent accumulated impairmaent losses. Management Lests the teading reght For
impairment by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount annually and
whenever Lhere 15 an indication that the right may be impaired. Any impairment losses are
accounted For through profit ar 1oss,

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less amaortisation and provisions for impairment, i

any, plus reversals of impairment, if any. They are amarkised over their useful lives ina
manner that reflects the pattern to which they contribute to luture cash Naws.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDEQ 31 OECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES tcontinuedd

[k} Finance and operating leases (continued}

ti}

iy Finance leases:

When the Group is the lessor in a iease agresment that transfers substantially ah of the
risks and rewards incidental In ownership of an asset to the |lessee, the arrangement is
classified as a finance lease within loans and advances. All other feases are classliied as
operating leases. When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the asset is
derecognised and the present vaiue of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable,
The difference between the gross receivabie and the present vaiue of the recervahle is
recognized as unsamed finance income. Lease income 15 recognised aver the term of the
lrase using the net investment method, which reflects a eonstant pariodic rate of return,

Minimurn lease payments made under finance gases are apportioned between the finance
incame and the reduction of the culstanding asset, The tinance income is allocated to each
period during the fease term so as to produce a constant rate ot interest on the remaining
halance of the asset,

Fimancial aszcts

&1l financial assets are intially recognised on ihe trade date, 1e,, the date that the Group
bocomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This incmdes "regular way
trades”: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame aeneralky established by reguiation or convention in the market place.

The classification of hnancial assets at initial recognition depends on the purpose and the
managerment's mtention for which the financiar assets were acquired and their characteristies. All
financial instruments are measured initially al ineir fair vae pus transaction costs, except in the
case of linancial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss (which include financial aszets
held-for-trading .,

¢a) Finarcial assets at fair vafve through profit or foss

Financial assets at fan value through prort or foss

This category comprises two sub-categories: financial assets ciassified as heid-For-trading
and linancial assets designated by the Growup as at fair value through prefit or lass upon
imitiak recognition.

A linancial assct s oiassified as held-for-trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing ivin the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified
financiarinstruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual patterm of short-term profit-taking, Financial assets hesd-for-trading consist of
treasury bonds and equity instruments, They are recaanised in the consondated staternent
ot fimnancial position as ‘Held far trading instruments’.

Subsequent to intia recognition, tinancial assets at Fair value through prefit or loss are re-
measured at fair value. Gains and wsses arising from changes in fair valug are included
dirgetiy in profit or Inss, Enterest income and expense and dividend income and expenses on
financiar asscts held-for-trading are alsa inchaded in profit or loss,

Hetd-fo-maturity financial assets

Mon-darmative financian assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturitics are
classilied as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hod to
maturity, After initial measurement neld-to-maturity investments are measured at ameortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gams and losses are recagnised in profit or loss
when the investments are derecoanised or impaired, as well as through Lhe amorlisation
process, Held-to maturity investments are treasury bills, treasury honds and corporate
bonds,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMNTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 DECEMBER 2018

ACCOUNTENG POLICIES {continued)

Z.

(b

Financial assets (continued?
{a} Financial assets af falr value through profit or loss (continued}

Loans and receivalbies

Loans ard receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable
payments that are not gquoted in an active market. After initial measurement koans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any
atlowance for impairment. Gains and kosses are recognised in profit or loss when {he lnans
and receivables ara derecognised ar impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Avaifable-far-sale financial assels

Available-for-sake investments are financial assets that are intended to be hekd For an
tndefinite period of time, which may e sold in respanse to needs for liguidity ar changes in
interest rates, exchanoe fates ar equity pflees or that are not classified as loans and
receivables, hetd to-maturity imvestments ar financial assets at fair value thraugh profit or
loss. Availabie-for-sate financial assets are subsequently measured at fair vabue with gains
and Iosses bPeing recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
availallo-for-sala reserve (3 separate companeni of equity)d, until the investment s
derecognised ar uniil the investment is determined to be impaired at which time the
cumulative gain ar loss provigusly reported in equity is recoqgoised through other
comprehensive incame inda profit of [oss in Fhe consatidated statement of comprehensive
INCOMEe.

Amarfised cost

Amaortised cost is computed using the effective interest method less any allowange for
impairment, The calcwation fakes indo account any premiom or discount on acquisition and
incledes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the eFfective interest rate,

{m} Fair value

Fair value is the price that would he received to sell an asset ar paid to transfer a hability in an
arderly transaction between market participanls al Lhe measurement date,

The Group's fair valug measurement is pased on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or fransfer the liabmity takes place rithar:

. In the principat market for the asset or liabikity, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagensus market for the assat or liahility

The principat ar the most advanlageows market must e accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liahikity is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset ar fiakility, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best inteqest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financiar asset takes into account 3 market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use ar by selling it to
anather market participant that would use the asset in its highesd and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and tor which
sufficient data are availalle to measure fair value, maximising the use al relevant abservatie
inpuks and minimising the use of unobservalrle nputs.

All assets and liahikties far which fair vatug is measured of disclosed in the financial statemenis are
vategorised within the tair value hierarchy, deseribed as foliows, hased on the lowest [evel input
that is significard to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Levet 1 — CQuoted {unadjusted) market prices in active marhets for identical assets or
Habilities

- Level 2 - ¥aluation techniques for which the kowest level ingut that is significant ta the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observabie

» Level 3 - ¥aluation technigues for which the kowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobseryat|e
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TOTHE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cantinued)

(i)

(ni

iy

Fair value

For assets and liabtlities that are recognised in the financial sfatements an a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether fransfers bave occurred Detween levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (hased on the lowest fevel input that s sionificant o the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of sach reporting pericd. External valuers are involved for valuation of
significant assets, such as properties.

Derivative financial instruments

At their inception, derivatives offen involve onby a mutual exchanne of promises with [tk ar no
transfer of consideration. However, these instruments frequently involve a high deores of
leverage and are very volatide. A relatively smatl movernent in the value of the asset, rate or
index underlying a derivative contract may have a significant impact on the profit or loss of the
Group. Over-the-counter derivatives may espose the Group to the risks associated with the
absence af an exchanoe market an which 1o close oul an open position. The Group’s exposure
under derivative comtracts is closely maonitared as part of the overall management of ils marketl
risk,

Charges in fair value of any derivative instruments are recogrised immediatety in the profit or
less. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair vailue. Subsequent te indial
recaognition, derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value. Fair ualues are abtained
trom quoted markel prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, The gain or
lass an re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison
with instruments recognised on the statement of financial position But do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of fulure cash flows invelved or the curremt fair value of the instruments
and, theretore |, do not indicate the Bank's exposure to credit or price risks, The derivative
instruments become assets gr liahilities as a result of fluctuations in forgign eschanoe rates
relative to their Lerms.

The Bank uses the following derivalive instruments:

Currency Forwards

Farward contracts are contraclual agreemenls to Duy or sell a specified financial instrument at a
specific price and date in the future, Forwards are customised contracts transacted in the aver-
the-counter market., The Bank has credit exposure to the counterparties of forward contracts.
Forward contracts are sethed gross and result in marke! risk gxposure.

Swaps

Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange streams of paymenls over
time based on specified notienal amounis, in relation te movemenis in a specified underlying
index such as a foreign currency rate. In a currency swapg, the Bank pays a specitied amopunt in
one currency and receives a specified amount in another currency,

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses at eath reporting date whether there is any ohjective evidence that a financiat
asset or a group of tinancial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group af financial assets is
deemed fo be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of ane
or more events that has occurred after the initial recegnition of the asset and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliabily estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of porrowears is
pxperiencing significant financial difficulty, the probakility that they will enter bankruptey or other
flnameial reorganisation, default or delinguency in interest or principal payments and where
abservable dala indicates that there is a measuralle decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or econantic canditions that correlate with defaukts,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KFNYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 OECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(o) Impairment of financial assets {continued})

{1)

Financial assets carried at amortised cosf

Financial assets carried at armortised cost include amounts due from banks, loans and
advances to cusfomers as well as held-to-maturety investments.

For Inans angd advance impairment losses are computed based on:

Iy

it}

Cerntraf Bank of Kenpa Pruden tial Guidefines

The Group reviews its leans and advances at each reporling date lo assess whether an
allowanice fer impatrment should be recognised in the profit or less. In particular,
judgemeant by the directors s required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required, Such estimates are
based on the assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ,
resurting in future changes in the allowance,

In addifion to specific allowances against individual significant lgans and advances, the
Group makes a collective impairment allowance againsl exposures which, although not
spectfically identified as requiring a specific allnwance, have a greater risk of defaull than
when originally aranted, This bakes into consideration such factors as any deterioration in
industry, technological obsodescence, as well as wentified structural weaknesses or
deterigration in cash flows.

A collective allowance far impairmenl is made at the rate of 1% of loans and advances
Classified under normal and 3% for walch Categores as per the Central Bank Kenya
Prudenttal Guidelings. Advances are written offfdown when the directors are of the
opinton that thew recoverahility will not materialise.

International Accounting Sfandard (f4%5) 39

Financial assels accounted for at amortised cost are assessed for objective evidence ot
impairment and required allowances are estimated in accordance with 1AS 3%
Impairment exists if the bopk value af a chaim or a portfolio of claims exceeds the present
value of the cash flows actually expecled in fulure periods discounted at the financial
asset’'s ortginal effective interest rate. These cash flows include scheduled interest
payments, principal repayments, or other payments due (for example from guarantees),
including liquidation of collateral where available.

The tetal allpwance for recognised financiat assets consists of two components: specific
counterparty impawment |os5es and collectively assessed impairment losses. The specefic
counterparty component applies to Claims evaldated individually for impairmenst and is
based upon directors” hest estimate of the present value ob the cash flows which are
expected to be received, In estimating these cash flows, directors make judgments about
counterparty’s financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral
or quarantees in the Group's favour,

Each impaired financial asset 13 assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and
estimake of cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by the Credit
Risk Department. Caollectively assessed impairment losses on lpans and gdvances cover
credit losses inherent in portfulios of claims with similar economic characteristics where
there is ohjective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired claims but the individual
impaired [Lems cannot vet be identified. In assessing the need for collective allowance on
impairment losses, directors consider factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations, and economic fackors,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
WOTES TD THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 3 (cantinued)

FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eontinued)

() Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1l

T

(23

(3}

Financial assets carried af amortised cost fcontinued)
Infernafidnal Accaunting Standard (1A5) 39

In order {0 estimate the required allowance for impairment, assumptions are made {o
geting inherent 10sses model and to determine the required input parameteors, based on
histarical expenence and current econemic conditions. The accuracy of the allowance for
impairment made depends on how well estimates are made for future cash flows for
specific allowances for impairment and the model assumptions and parameters used in
defermining collective allowances for impairment. While this necassardy involves
wdagment, directors beligve that their impairment allowances are reasonable and
supporiable.

If impairment charges computed under International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39 are
lower than allowances required under CBK Prudential Guidelines, the excess allowances
are trealed as approprialions of retained garnings ang not expenses in determining
profit and 1ess. Similarly any credits resalting from the reduction of such amounts
resulis in an increase in retained earnings and are not included in the determination of
prafits ar ass, Whare the impairment charges computed under 1AS 39 are higher than
afiowances required under this guideline, the impgirment charges are {onsidersd
adequate as per Prudential Guidehnes.

Financidl dssets classified as available-Mr-sale

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is ocbjective euidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired, In the case of equity investmeants
classified as available-for-zale, a significant or provonged decling in the fgir valug of the
security below its cost is objective evidence of impairment resutting in the recognition of an
impairmenl loss. If any such evidence exisls lor available-for-zale financial assats, tha
cumuylative 1055 - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, loss any impairment 10ss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is remoued from the avgilable-for-sale reserve and recogrised in profit or lpss,
Impairment lasses recognised i profit or 1055 on eqaity instrumends are not reversed
through profit or loss but recognised as other comprehensive inceme and accumulated in the
audilable-for-sale reserve (g separate component of equityy. If, in 8 subsequent peripd, Lhe
fair value ot a dekt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related b0 an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit ar loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or 10ss.

Renogatidted faans

Where possibie, the Bank seeks o restructare loans rather than Lo take possession of
cillateral, This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new
loan conditions. Once Lhe terms have been renegotiated any impairment is measured uting
the origimal effective inlerest rale as calculated before the modificalion of terms and Lhe
Iaan 15 N longer consitered past due, Management continuously reviews renegoliated lnans
to gnsure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to ofour, The loans
cantinue 1o he subject Lo an ndividual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using
the Iran’'s original effective interest rate.

The impawment fest can also be performed on a sinole asset when the Tain value less cosi
o sell or the value in use can be determined reliably. Non-financial assets other than
gaodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for pessible reversal of the impairment at
each reporling date.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMEK OF KEMYA LIMITED AMC SUBSICIARIES
MOTES TO THE COMEOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMCED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}

() impairment of financial assats (continued)

(4 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

+ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

= the Group has transferred s rights to recesve cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obiigation to pay the recesved cash fiows in full without material delay to a Lhird party
under & 'pass-throuah’ arrangement; and either:

¢ the Group has transferred subslantially all the fisks and rewards of the asset, or

v the Group has neither transferrad nor cetaingd substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the assat.

When ihe Group has transferred its rights to recedve cash Mows [rom an asset or has entered

wilo a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred rnor retained substantially all

the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised

to the actent of the hank's continuing involverment in the asset. in that case, the bark also

fecognises an associgted Lability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are

measured an a hasis that reflects the rights and okligations that the bank has retained.

Continuing involvernent that takes the form of a guarantee gver the transferred assal 15

measured at the [ower of the ariginal carrying amount of the asset and tha maximum amount

of consideration that the Group could ba required ta repay.

(a1 Financial lakilities

Initjal recognition 2nd measurement

Financial Kakilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial sabilities at far value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables as appropriale.

All linancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

Subsequent measurement

The meazsurament of financial liabilites depends on their classification, as described below;

Cinancial vakilities at amartised cost

aj

[k}

L)

Customer deposils

Customer deposits inclade calk, fixed, current account and savings deposits. The fair value of
savings, deposits and current accounts with no specific malwrity s assumed o be the amount
payabkle on demand at end of the reparting period, 1.2, their carrying values at this date. The fair
values of term deposits are eslimaled wsing discounted cash flow calculations based wpon
interest rates currently being offered for similar contracts with maturities consistent with those
Leing valued, The carrying amounts of variable-rate deposits approximate their Fair vatues at
the reporting date

Deposits from/ to other banks

Depaosits from other banks include inter-bank placemenls and degosits. The Fair value of floating
rate placements and auernight deposits is their carrying amaunt, The estimated fair value of
f1xed nterest bearing deposits s based on discounled cash Hews using prevailing money market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining malursty.

Flacements with other banks include inter-bank placements and stems in the course of
collection. The Fair value of floating rate pacements and overnight deposits & their carrying
armount. The estimated fair valve of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash
Hows wsing prevailing money market inlerest rales for debts with similar credit risk and
remaining maturity,

Cther borrowed funds and borrawing costs

Borrowings are fimancial hakilities and measured initialy at fair value and subscguently al
amartised cost using the elfective interest rale methad. Borrowing costs directly attributabie to
the acquisition, construction ar production of a qualifying asset are capitalised.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENY & LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSTGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

ipd Financial liahdlities (continued)

tq)

ir}

§s)

¥

(d} Financial guarantee confracts

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank gives financial guarantees, consisting of letters of
cradit, guarantees and acceptances. These are written by the Group to support performance
Ly a cuslamer to thicd parties. The Group will enly be required to meet these obligations in the
event the cuslomer defaults. Financtal guarantee contracts are initially recognised at their fair
value, and the initial fair value is amoriised over the {ife of the financial guarantee. The
fimancial quarantee contracts are suhsequently carried at the higher of the amartised amount
and the present value of any expected payment when a payment under the guarantes has
become prohable. These obligabions are not accounted for in the statement of financial
position but are disciosed as contingent liahikties onless the payment has become prohabfe in
which case the provision will be included in prouistons on the statement of financial pesition.

Prowisions

A prouisian s reconnised if, as a resurt of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive ohiigation that can be estimated refiably, and it is probable that an cutflow of
aconemic benefits will he reguired to settle the chligation.

Dffsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amaunt reported in the statement of
Financial position when there is a legaliy enfarceable right ta set aff the recognised amgunts and
there ts an intention to settle on a net hasis, or realise the asset and setlle the liahility
simultaneausly.

Repossessed property

In certain circumstances, properky is repossessed following the fareclosure on loans that are m
default, Repossessed properties are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair ualue less
costs to sell and reported within 'Non-current assets held for sale’. The bank did nat have
repossessed gasets in the current year (2015%: mil).

Fareign currency
1} Transactions

Transactions in loreign currencies are translated at the rates ruling on the transaction dates.
Monetary balances in foreign currencies are translated at the Central Bank of Kenya rates
ruling at the end af each reporting period. Any resulting gains or lossas gn exchange are dealt
with in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, Non-monetary items carried ab cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, whilst assets carriad at fair
ualue are transiated at the exchange rate when tho fair value was determined.

it} Group companies

For cach entity the Group determimes the functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional carrency. The Group
uses the direcl method of consglidation and on disposarof a foretgn aperation, the gain or [3ss
that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

O consclidation, the assets and liabiities of foren cperations are transiated into the group's
functiznal currency at the rate of exchangs prewailing at the reporting date and their
statements of profit or Ioss are Lransialed at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions, The exchange differances anising on Lransiation for consclidation are recognised
in GCl. Cn disposal of a foreign gperation, the companent of QO relating to that particukar
forgign operation is recognised in profit or loss,

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a Foreign operation and any fair valug adjustments
b the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and bransialed at the spol rale of eschange al the
reparting dale.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENY A LIMITED AND SUBSIOIARIES
NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

ACCCUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{ul

iy

Fmployee benetits

The Group aperates a defined contribution retirement scheme for its employees, The assets of
the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund which is funded by contributinns
fraom both the Group and employees, The Group contributions to the scheme are charged to the
profit ar (055 in the year Lo which they relate. The Group also cantributes bo a statutory dafined
contribution pension scheme, the National Social Security Fund {MSSF). Contributions are
determined by local statute and are currently limited Lo KShs 200 per employae per manth,

Shart-term benefits consist of salaries, Donuses and any non-monetary benefits such as medical
aid contributions and free services.

Employes entitlements to annual leave are recognised when thay accrue to employees. A
provision is made for Lthe estimated nabitity for annuat leave accrued at the reporting date. The
manetary lability for employees' accrued annoat leave entitlement at the end of reporting period
is reconnised as anexpense accrual,

Taxes

Current fax

Current kax assels and liahibties for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are thase that are enacled or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period. Current tax refating to items recognised outside profit or less is recagnised outside profit or
Ioss, Current tax tems are recogmised in correlation to the undertying transaction eit her in profit or
loss, akher compre hensive income ar directly in eguily,

Delerrgd income tax

Ceferred income taz is provided using the Wability method on temporary differences at the end of

the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and lighilities and their carrying amounts for

finarcial reperting purposes. Deferred tax liakilities are recogaised for all taxable temperary
differences, except:

{ix  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition ef goodwil or of an asset or
liabilily ir & transaction that is not a Business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the arcounting profit ner taxabie prafit or lgss; and

{iid in respect of taxable temporary differences associated wilh investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the biming of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it s probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse inthe foreseeabye fubure,

Deferred income tax assets are recoamised for all deductinie temporary differences, carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, ko the exlenl that it is probable that taxable profit wilt
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused Lax lpsses can be uttised except:

(i where the deferred tax asset relating to the deduclible temporary dilfference arises from the
initial recegnition ef an aszet

il ar liabity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profil or 19ss; and

Giiy in respect of deduchible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
dassaciates and interests in jeint ventures, deterred tax assets are recognised only 1o the
cxtent that it is probable that the temporacy dilferences will reverse in the foreseeahle future
and Laxabla profit will be availabie against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting peried and
reduced Lo the extent that it is no longer probable that subficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be wiilised, Unrecognised deterred tax assets are
redssessed at each end of the reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
protatle that future taxable profit witl allow the deferred tax assel to be recovered.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v

Cwd

£3]

(v

(2}

Tares {continued)

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
yegr when the asset is realised or the hability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have
been enacted or supstantively enacted at the end of reporting period, Deferred income tax relating
to Hems recagnised outside profit or knss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tac items are
recognised in Correlation to the underlying tramsaction either in profit or loss, ather camprehensiye
vncome or directly in aguity.

Value Added Tax

Fevenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amaunt of value added tax except where
the valye added tax incurred on 8 purchase of assets or services is not recaverable fram the Kenya
Revenue Authority (KRA} in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and receivables and payables
that are stgted with the amount ot vaige agdded tax included,

The net amounl of value added tax recoverable from, or pavatle to tax authorities is included as
part of accounts receivaples or payahles in the statement of financial pasitian.

Grants

Grants are recoanised where there is regsonabtle assurance that the arant wilk be received and all
attaching Cconditions will e complied with, When the grant relates to an expense itemn, it s
recognised as other mgome over the period necessary [o match the grant on 3 systematic hasis to
the costs that i is intended Lo campensate, Where the grant refales to an asset, it is recognised as
deterred income and released to other inCame tn egual annual amounds over the expected usefu
lile af the related asset.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or lasses already
incurred or for the purpose of aiving immediate frnancial support to the endidy with no future
related costs is rocognised as other ingome in the period in which it becomes receivatne,

Where the Group receives non-manetary arants, the asset angd corresponding grant are recorded
at mominal amounts and refeased to profit or loss over the expected useful hife of the relevant
assel by equal annual instabments. Gramts related to property and equipment are deferred and
utilised im the reduction of the carrying amouwnts of the related assets over their useful lives,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivaents comprise balances with maturities of less than 91 days from the date of
acquisition and include cash and halances with Cenlral Bank of Kenya (excluding restricted
BalanCes - cash reserve ratio), items in the course of collection, government securities and
deposits and balances due from banking institutions. For the purpose of the consondated
stalement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivakants consist of cash and cash equivaents as defined
abave, net of gulstanding hank ovecdrafls, Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amartised
cast.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equidy in the yaar in which they are declared.
Fropased dividends are shawn 85 a separate component of equity until they have been ratified at
the Annual Gereral Meeting.

Fiduciary assets

Assels and incame arising therean with related undertakings o return such assels to customers

are #xchuded from these financial statements when the Group acls in a lduciary capacity such as
namines oar agends,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KEMYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDHARIES
WOTES TG THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fcontinued)
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(aa) Impairment of nan-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s mon-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any soch indication exists then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

Far the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lpwest levels for which
there are separately identiliabie cash inflows (cash-generaling unmts ).

Ar assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair
valug less costs of disposal and its valye in use.

Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoveratie amount, the asset s
cansidered impaired and is weitten down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vaiwe
using a pre-tax discovnt rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of maney
and the risks specific to the assel.

In determining Fair valuoe less costs of disposal, an appropriate valuation model is used,
Impairment [osses are recognised in profit or 0ss in those expense cateqories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset, except for o property previously re-vaued where the valuation
was taken W obther comprehensive inceme. In this case, the Impalrment [oss is also recognised in
ather comprehensive income up o the amount of any peevious revaluation.

For assets other than goodwill an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether therg
is any indication that previously recogmissd impairment sosses may no langer exisl or may have
decreased.

Il such indication exisls, the group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount, A
previously recoanised impairment loss s reversed only f there has begn a change in the
assumptions ysed to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited s0 that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount Ehat would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impawrment {oss been recognised for the asset in prinr years, Such
reversgl is recognised in praft ar oss. lmpairment [osses on goodwill are not reversed.

Intangible asztets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment,

(ab) Current versus non-current classification

The Grovp presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
currentfman-current classification. An asset as current when it is;
v Expected tobe realised orintended to sabd or consumed in normal nperating cycle
= deld primarily for the purpose of trading
v  Expected to be realised within tweive manths after the reporting period
ar
« Cash ar cash equivalent unless restricted trom being exchanged or used to settle a
Habiity for at teast twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
« Misexpected Lo be settled in normal aperating cycle
= I is held primariy for the pyrpose of trading
= it is due o be settled within twelve monkhs after the reporting period
Qr
«  There is no uncenditional right Lo defer the settiement of the tability for at least lwelve
manths after the reporting period
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-currenl. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assels and liabiiities.,

44
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3.

FIMAMTIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management frameworh

The Baard of Directors has averall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Groupg's
risk mamagement framewnrk. The Board has estaklished the Risk & Finance Committee, which is
responsible for developing and manitoring Group risk management policies in their specified areas.
All Board committees, with excepltion of Board audit Committee have bGoth executive angd non-
executive members and report regutafly o the Beard of Directors an their activities.

The Group's rish rmanagement policios are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set apprapriate fisk limits and contrals, and to maonitor risks and adherence to limils. Bisk
management policies and systems are reviewead regularly o reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims lo develop a disciplined and constructive control enviranment, in which all
employees understand their rales and obligations.

The Board Audit Committee is respansible for monitaring compliance with the Group’s risk palicies
and proceduares, and for reviewing Heir adeguacy, The Board Audit Committee is assisted in these
Functions by Intermal Audit. Internal Awdil wndertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
contrels and procedures, the results of which are reporied Lo the Board Audit committes,

The Graup has exiposure to the following rishs from its use of financial instruments:

(ay Credit risk

(B Liguidity risk

[c) Market risks

{dy ©perational risks

Below is the information about the Groap™s expasure to each of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of
capital. These is no significant difference between the Group and Bank halances in assessment of the
wariods risks facing the Group.

{a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial 1oss {o the Group if & custamer ar counterparty te a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Grouop's
Izans and advances to customers and other banks and investment secarities. For risk
management reperting purposes, the Group considers and consolidates all elements of credit
FiSk BXposure.

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors has delegated respansibility for the management of credit risk to s
Brard's Risk and Finance Committes. A separate Credit Risk Department, reporting to the
Board's Risk and Finance Committee, is responsible for oversight of the Group's credit risk,
in<luding:

{1} Formulating credit palicies in consultation with business anis, covering collateral
requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal
procedures, and campliance with regulatary and statutory reguirements.,

{2} Establishing the authofisation struclure for the approval and renewal of crodit faciities,
{3} Reviewing and assessing credit risk,

4} Developing and maintaining the Group's tisk grading in order ko categorise exposures
according to the degree of risk of financial loss faced and o focus managemeant on the
attendant risks.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 CECEMBER 2016
3, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued:

(a) Credit risk (continuod)

(51 FReviewing compliance of business units with agreed exposure limits, including those lor selected
industries, country risk and product Lypes,

{6) Prouviding aduice, guigance and specialist skills to business units to promole best practice
throughout Lhe Sroup in the management of crodit risk,

Each business unit is required to implement Group credit policies and procedures, with Credit
approval authorities detegated from the Soard's Risk and Finance Committee, Each business unit is
responsitle for the quality and performance of its credit portfolio and for menitoring and controlling
ail credit risks inits portfolios, inciuding those subject {o central appraval.

Exposure o credit risk on toans and advances to customers is as folfows!

Mate

Carrying amount (note 13(a)

Staff Ipans amortization 12
individualy  assessed  for
impairment:

Grade 5: Loss category

Grade 4: Doubtful categary

Gross amount
falgwance for impairment

Carrying amount

Collectivery assessed far
impalrment;

Grade 1; Normal

Grade 2; Wakch list

Gross amaunt
Atlawance for impairmeant

Carrying amount

Past due loans {Grade 3 -
SubstandardX

Past due up to 30 days
Past due 31 60 days

FFast due G1-90 days
Past due 31-150 days

Gross amount
Nilgwance for impairment

Carrying amaunt

Met carrying amount 13 {a)

Group

2016
K3hs 000
245,002,074

(4,628,234

6749083
4771526

5,446,509
(3,995,201}

1,451,308

197 251,662
36 474,619

233.726.2681
(3,068,119

230,658,162

2,180,957
1,922,433
1,032,215

£%92,050

5827 605
11,002,163}

4,825,502

232,307,329
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2015
KShs Q00
220,556,598

C4,811,635)

695,943
4,188,409

4,804,352
(2,855436)

2,028,916

193,010,260
19,352 4%2

212,362,752
(2,932,335

209,830,417

2,113,557
672254
383.855
135,173

3,204,841
(1,780,619

1,524,222

208,571,920

Bank

2016
K5hs ‘000
244,455,158

(4 628,234}

674 983
4770400

5,445,363
(3.994.075)

1,451,308

196,708,388
36,474,619

233,183,007
{3,061 3°23)

230,121,684

2. 160,267
1922433
1032215

622 050

5,827,665
(1,002, L63)

4,825,302

231770171

2015
K5hs 000
220,054,537

{4811 635)

f9E,943
4,188,409

4,664,352
(2, B595, 436

2,028,916

192,512,853
19,352 437

211,865,345
(2,532,335}

209,333,010

2, 113.557
672254
383 855
135,175

3,304 841
A1.700,619)

1,524,222

208,074,513



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIOIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EWDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3. FINANCIAL RESK MANAGEMENT (continued}

(al

Credit risk {continued}

Maximum expasure to credit risk before cafigteral hetd;

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
KE5hs'000 KE5hs'000 KE5hs'000 K&hs'000
ltems recognised in the
statement of financial position:
ltems in the course aof collection 195,741 384,161 145,791 84,161
Deposits and balances due from
banking institutions 5,017,303 13,977,237 5,359 843 13,564,273
Fimancial assets:
-Darivatives 126,776 621,737 126,776 621,737
-Held-to-maturity 37.158,761 36,154,585 37,003,530 35,999 47]
-Held-for-trading 147 206 147 149
-Availablg-for-sale 24 824 Tag 28,771, B6% 24,624,796 28,641,531
Irnterast receivable 3,848,678 2,965,063 3.848491 2,565,663
Loans and advances to customers 232,307,329 208,571,920 231,770,171 208,074,513
303,279 581 291,047 348 302,929,595 200,156,998
ltams not recogrised in the
statement of fimancial position
{note 4&) 12,465 %1% 12,50% 752 12,465,919 12,509,752
315,745,500 3N3,557,100 315,395,514 302,666,750

Maximum exposure to credit risk before coliateral held represents the worst-case scenarig of credit
risk esiposure without taking account of any collateral held or any other credif enhancements
attached, While canateral is an important means to mitigate against credit risk, the Group's primary
palicy is to issup Wpans after establishing capacity of the customer to repay. Unsecured facilities
amaunt to KShs. 64,429 Millian {2015- KShs 52.228 Milliony. Al obher facilities are secured by
callatdral in the form of charges over cash, tand and buildings, marketable securities, plant and
machinery amang others.

tmpaired toans

Impaired {gans are lgans for which the Bank determinges that it s probable that it will be unabke to
catlect all principal ard interest due according to the contractual terms af the loan agreemeants. These
loans are graded 4 to 5 in the Bank's internal credit risk grading svstem.

Fast due but nal impaired fgans

These are loans where cantraclual imterest ar principal payments are past due but the Bank holieves
that impairment is nat appropriale on the basis of the level of securityf collateral avaitable and/ or
the stage of collection of amounts owed o the Bank,

Loans with repegofiated terms

Loans with renogobiated terms are lnans that have been restructured due bo deteriorabion in the
barrower's financial position and wheee the Bank has made concessians that it would not otherwise
consider. Once the Inan is restructured it may remain in this category or may be re-graded depending
an pesformance alter restrucluring.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK DF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS tcantinued}
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. FIMANCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT {Coantinued)
¢a} Credifrisk (continued)

The carrying amaunt of renegotiated financial assets that wowd otherwise be past due or impaired is
as fellows:

2016 2015

K5hs'000 KShs Q00

Cammercial ipans 21,646 699 11,922,194
21,646,599 11,922,194

Allowances for mpairment

The Bank esiablishes an allowance For impairment lesses that represents its estimate of incurred
lnsses in its boan portfolio. The main components of this allewance are a specific {oss campanent that
relates to individually significant exposures, and collectively homegoneous assets, The second
component is in respact of Insses that have bean incurred but have not been identified in relation to
the lean portfelio that is not specifically impaired.

Write-off policy

The Bank writes off a loan balance as and when Board of direckors determines that the Ioans are
uncallectible. This determination is reached after coansidering information such as the ooocurrence of
significant changes in the borrower’s financial position such that the borrower can no lenger pay the
oligation or that proceeds from Collateral wili not be sulficient to pay back the entire exposure, For
smaller balance standardised loans, charge off decssions generally are based en a product specific
past due status,

Collateral on loans and advances

The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of cash, mortgage
interests nver residential, commercial and industrial properties, other registered securities nver
assets, motor vehicles, plant and machinery, marketahte securities, bank guarantees gnd letters of
credit. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of coliateral assessed at the time of borrowino,
and generaily are not updated except when a loan is individually assesset! as impaired. Collateral is
generally net held over loans and advances to banks and against investment securities, 1t is the
bank's policy te dispose of repossessed properties in an grderly marner, The proceeds are used to
reduce or repay the outstanding cfaim and the Bank does not eccupy repossessed properties for
business use,

An estimate or the lair value of collateral and other security enhancemenls held against finangial

assets s shoewn below:
Group and Bank

2016 2015
KShs"COHG KShs' QOG0
{1} Categorised by loans & advances:

Doubtfid & boss categories 13,480,512 4 5% 134
Past due but not impaired (Sub-standard) category 15,100,117 2.4%3 B4a2
Marmal & watch categories 378,324,639 245,779 535
403,915,268 252,869,511

(i) Categorised by nature of coliaterai:
Land & buiidings 208,107, 228 119,866,272
Cash B other pledges 4,165 063 2,133 614
Motor vehicles 49,985,757 42 082 0GB
Hypothecation of stock 1,243 493 835,479
Depentures & guarantees 123,811,514 67.753,B30
Other chattels 6,602 213 20,198 218
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KEMYA LIMITED ANC SUBSIDNARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIGATED FINARCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDGED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued}

{a} Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of Risk

Concentration windicates the relative sensitivily of the Bank's performance to developments affecling a
particular industcy or geographical location. Excessive concentration arises when a number of
counterparties are engadged in similar pusiness activities or activities in the same geographic region, or
have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual ohligations to be
similarly affected by changes bn ecaonomic, palitical or other conditions,

To avoid excesslve cancentration of risk, the Bank’s policies and procedures include specific quidelines
that ensure maintenance of a diversified portfolio across bank products, industry sectors, geographic

sproad, oredit ratings,

customer segments and exposuare to single or related counterparties,

Concentratigns of credil risk which have been identified are controlled and managed accordingly.

Logans and advances:- Group Bark
2ula 2015 20le 2015
K Shs' 000 K Shs'00 KShes 000 K Shs'000
(i} Concentration by sector:
Agricultyre 8,185,857 8,593,414 6,185,857 6,593,414
Manufacturing, energy & water 27,450,579 24 264 230 27,450,579 24 264 230
Financial services 25 582,170 24,743,324 25682 370 24,743,124
Tourism & haspitality 1,507 484 1,434 270 1.507.486 1,434,270
Wholesale and retail frade 4,315,026 4952, 2264 40,315,026 34,952 226
Transport and communication 15,967,830 14,964,629 15,967,830 14,964 629
Real Estate, building & '
construction 39 290,875 34,620,191 38,746,475 34,118,130
Corsumer & household 86,700,432 75,984,314 86,700,432 76,984,314
245,000,454 220,556,598 244 456,055 250,054,537
Less; skaff lnans amortisation (4,628,.234) (4,111,635 (4,628, 234} {4811 £3%)
240,372,221 215,744,963 239,627,821 215,242 902
(i} Concentration by business:
Corparate 80,923,439 86,801,346 60,4923 439 B&,BOL, 346
Mortgage & Asset Finance 54,204 700 32,898.B23 54,204,700 32,898 623
amall, Mediurn and
Microenterprises 1B,61%,393 18,496,123 156,619,393 1B . 496,123
Retail BS.4B& LBV T6H,772,604 B4,941, 788 TE 270,543
AQribusiness 5,766,734 5,587,702 5,7TeE T35 5,587,702
245,000 454 220,556,598 244,456 55 220,084,537
Less: staff loans amortisation {4628 234} {4B811,635) _ (4,67B,2349) (4,811,635}
240,372,221 215,744 963 239,827,821 215,242,902
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cantinued)

{al

{h}

Credit risk (continued)

SetHlement Rish

The Bank's activities may give rise o risk at the time of settiement of transachions and trades.
Settlement risk is the risk of loss due ko the failure of a campany to honour its obligations to deliver
cash or nther assets as contractualy agreed, For some transactions, settlemeant risk is mitigaked by
conducting settlements throwgh a settlement/clearing agent to ensure that a transaction is sethied
anly when bokth parties have fuolfilled their cantractual obligations, Where this arrangement is nok
available, this risk is contralled through settiement limits which form part of the credit approval and
it monitoring process under the Bank's risk management mechanisms. This requires transaction:
specific ar counberparty-specsfic  assessment 1o ensure the Bank deals with highly rated
caunterparties and implemeants ather measures such as helding collateral.

Group Bank
Customer deposits:- 2016 2015 2015 2015
KShs 000 KShs"o00 KShs QDO KShs'000
Private enterprises 71,944,715 81,788,307 71,944,715 81,788,307
Mon-profit institutions 24,405 500 23,680,982 24,405,500 23 680,982
Individuals 90,728,092 81,832,784 90,728,092 B1,832 784
Qthers T3.075, 130 78,096,514 72,393,44;2 TE407 342
260,153,437 265,398,587 255.471,749 263,709,415
Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficuly in meeting abligatians from its linancial
nabilities,

Management of Nguidify risk

The Bank's approach fa managing hiquidity is k0 ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity te meet its Habilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unaccepktable lasses or risking damage to the Bank's reputation,

Treasury receives information from other business units regarding the liguidity profile of their
financial assets and liabilities and details af other projected cash flaws arising from prgjected future
business. Treasury then maintains a partfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made up of sharl-
term liguid investment securities, laans and advances to banks and ather inter-bank facilities, to
ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank as a whole.

The daily nquidity pasition is manitared and reguelar liguidity stress testing is conducked under a
variety of scenarias cavering both normal and more severe market conditions, 0 addition to
internalyy set liquidity bufters and trigger ratios, compliance with the regulatary framewark is alsn
manitared consistentiy. Liquidity management is regularly reviewed in order to ensure appropriate
reactinons ta shifts in general conditions, and special importance is attached to diversificatian af
liquidity rescurces, All liguidity policies and procedures are subject ta review and approual by Board
Risk & Finance Comemittee which alsa receives regular risk reports,
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continuad}

(hy  Liguidity risk {continued)

Exposure to Nooidity risk

The talle helow analvses the Group's assets and tiabilities inte relevant groupings based on the remaining period at 31 December to the un-discounted

contractual matarity dates:

31 December 20156
FINANCIAL ASSETS

L ash and balances with Central Bank of Kenya

Deposits and batances due from banks
Investment in financial instruments
Laans and advances to customars

Total undiscounted financial assets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits and halances due Yo banks
Customers’ deposits

Loans

Total undiscounted financial Nabilities

Mt liquidity gap at 31 Qecember 2016

Liabilities not recognised in statement of

financial position (note 46)

51

Available
immediately
andup to 1 3-12
maerth 1-3 manths manths 1-5 years
KShsQ0D K& hs DO KShs"GoG KShs'Q00
25,682, 704 -
5017303 - - .
. ¥.118,183 5,130 027 31.023,042
35,282,250 5145919 29,041,593 111,022 662
55,982 257 12464102 34,171, 620 142,045 704
3,411,977 - - -
203,373,110 38,695,532 1B 0799530 8,176
) i : - 14 264 004
206, 785,087 JB,&95,532 1B,07T9 98B0 14,269,180
{140,802 B30 (26,231,430 15,091,640 127,776,524
1,213,193 2,697,706 7,349,400 1,205,620

Over 5 years Tatal
KShs'Q00 KEhs'GDG
- 25,682,704
- 8,017,303
24 308,903 67,780,155
74,643,935 255,136 3560
94,952,839 353,616,522
- 3,411,977
- 260,153,798
8,045 727 22,309 731
8045727 2B5,B¥5 5056
890,907,112 67,741,017
- 12,465,319



THE CO-CPERATIVE BAMKE GF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIQIARIES
MOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RTATEMENTS {continued?
FOR THE YEAR ENDGED 31 GECEMEBER 2016

3. FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT {rontinued}
tb)  Linuidity risk fcontinued)

Available

immeadiately and 3-12
31 December 2015 up to 1 month 1-3 months months 1-5 years Cver & years Total
FINAMCIAL ASSETS K Shs'Q00 KShs"Q00 KShs Q00 KShs' 000 KShs'Qo0 KS5hs'Qo0
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Kenya 29 455 691 - - - 29,455,691
Gepasits and balances due fram banks 13,697,692 . - . - 13,657,692
Inyaestmant in financial instruments 4,600 1686 &89 425 4,192 338 27,147,260 24, 77E,043 £1.317,252
Loans and advances to custamers 34,465,306 5,157 525 21,264,977 Bl 279016 63,B33 662 206,000,536
Tatal undiscounted financial assets 82,218,925 5,846,950 25 367,315 108426275 88,611,705 310,471,171
FINANWCIAL LISBILITIES
Qepasts and balances due o banks 675,049 1,965,560 TE3,499 - - 3,404,113
Custamersy” deposits 158 687 635 8,492 311 1,251,905 84,266,736 - 262,698,587
Loans - - - 19,033,565 30,000 19,063,565
Tatal undiscountad financial liabilities 159,362,684 13,457,875 2,015,434 103,300,201 30,000 285,166,265
Netliguidity gap at 31 Qecember 2015 (87,143,758} (4,610,9283 23,351,911 5,125,975 88,581,705 25,304,904
Liabilities nat recegnised in statement of
financial positian {note 4&) 5,203,829 7019953 286,170 - 12,509,752

Cetails of the reportad Bank ratio of nel liguid assets to depasits and custamers at the reporting date and during the reporting year were as follows,

2016 2015

% %

Ad 31 December 33.7 a7.6
Averane for the vear 3B.1 53
Maximurn for the year 410 39.F
Mirimum ‘or the year 3.7 29.4
Statutory Tenimum ratio 20.4 204
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THE CO-OFERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TG THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {cantinued)

(cy Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, and
foreign exchange rates will affect the Bank's inceme ar value of ils heoldings of tinancial
instruments. The ohjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
expasures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

Managernent of rearket risk

The Bank separates its exposure to market risk between brading and held to maturity portfalios.
Trading portferos are managed on a marhk to market basis. Dverall authority for market risk is
vested in Asset and Liability Committee (ALCOY. Risk Management Department is responsible for
the development of detailed risk management policies and for the day to day review of their
implementation,

Exposure to markel risk - brading portiolios
The Bank measures its market risk expgsure for the trading portfodio throvgh marking to market
or a monthly basis.

Expasure to interest rate risk - nor- trading portfolios

The principal risk to which hewd to maturity portfolios are exposed is Lhe risk of lgss from
Huctuations in the Future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in
market interast rates. interest rate risk is managed principaily through monitgring interest rate
gaps and by having pre-approved imits For re-pricing bands o minimise the impact of
movements in market inlerest rates on its net interest margin, Maturity gap analysis of gssels
and fiabilitigs, whereby interest rate re-pricing based on time (perigdic} buckets is used to
measure potential income effects arising from interest rate changes. The Bank criticany
evaluates overall risk and return profiles and shjgctives, including monitoring compliance
through ALCO in conjunction with Risk Management Department for day-to-day activities,

The table below summarises the exposure to interest rate risks. Incleded in the tabie are the
group’s assels and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by lhe earlier of contractual re-
pricing or maturity dates. The sensitivity computations assume that financial assets maintain a
censtant rate of return from ane year to the next. The Group bases its sensitivity analysis on the
inlerest sensitivity gap,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KEMYA LIMITED AN SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (centinuedy
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMEMNT [fontinued)

[C}

Karket risk {continued)

(iv  Exposure tointerest rate risk (Continued)

A1 December 2016
ASESETS

Cash and balanc es with
Central Bank of Kenya
CGeposits and balances due
from hanks

Investment i financial
instrurments

Loans and advances to
customers

ther assets

Total assets

LIABILITIER

Deposits and balances due
to banks

customers’ denosits
Lpans

Other financial liabilities

Total takilities

Interest sensitivity gap

Lp te 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months
KShs D00 K<hs' 0D KShs'Qnon
250,000 -
T.318,182 5,130,027
35,282 250 5,145,919 29,041 593
35,932,250 12464 101 34,171,620
3,200,000 - -
203 373110 1B 695 532 18,079 280
206,573,110 18,695,532 18,079,280
(1706408600 (26,231.4313 15,091,640
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1-5 years
K5hs'Q00

27,718,244

7,388,300

125,107,244

4,815
12,667,854

12,672,669

112,434,575

Man- interest

Over 5 years bearing Total
K5 hs 000 KShs'OQ0 K5hs'O00
25,682,704 25,682,704

4 367,303 5,017,303

21,876,678 G2,043, 831
53,449 267 - 232,307 329
- 13247 438 13,242 438

BT, 32594% 43 292,445 338,293 605
- 211,977 3,411,977

- - 260,153,437
7,145,406 - 19,813,260
- F.330,936 F.330.936

T,145 406 7,042,913 290,709,610
B 180,539 35,749,532 47,583,995



THE CO-OFPERATIVE SANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUSSICIARIES
NOTES TD THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENQED 31 OECEMBER 2016

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued}

(cy Market risk {continued)

(i Exposure to interest rate risk (Cantinued)

3-12 meonths
K5hs'DOD

5,586,591

16,650,018

26,236,609

2,982,179

31 Decamber 2015 Upto 1 month 1-3 months
ASSETS KShs' 00D KShs' 00D
Cash and balances with Central
Sank of Kenya -
Cepssits and halances dus fram
bhanks 13,907,695 3,069,542
Inuestment in financial
instruments 4,546,437 741,317
Leans and advances o
rustomers 34,813,491 5,209,621
Other assets - -
Total assets 50,667,623 9,020,480
LIABILITIES
Ceposits and halances due to 3421219
Banks

. 1,387, G2,
Customers’ deposits 171,387,633 6,762,037
Loans - -
Cher financial lTakilities o -
Total liabilties 174 808,854 6,762,037
Intérest sensitivity gap (124,141,231} 2,208 443

2,982,179

23,254,430

55

1-5 years
K5hs'oaa

25,330,923

86,911,651

112,242,574

34,266,736
10,970,630

95,237,366

17,005,208

Owver & years
KShs'Q0n

24,943,099

64,987,139

8O, 930,238

8,200,582

8,200,582

B1,629,656

Nan- Intarest

Bearing Total
KShs'GoD KShe' 00D
249 455,691 29,455 691
13,977,237

- 65,548 367

: 208,571,920

24,946 5494 24,946,594
54,402 2835 342,499,809
3,421 2149

) 265,398 587

- 19,271,212

54,408 791 54,408 791
54,408,791 342,499,809
(& 508} -



THE CO-OFPERATIVE BAMNEK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS (contimued?
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contirued)

(c} Market risk {cantingad)

(i)

Exposure to interest rate risk {Continued)

interest rate risk sensiivily analyses

With ali other varighles held constant, the offect of 1% increase ar decrease in interest rates on financial assets and fiahikties on the group profit before tax and

equity would he as follows:

AGSETS

Deposits and balances due from banks
Held -far- trading investments

Held to maturity investments
Avallable for sale investments

Loans and advances to custamers

LIABILITIES &EQUITY

Depasits and balances due to banks
Customers deposits

Loans and borrowimgs

Effact on profit before tax

A5 percentage of profit before tax (%)
Effect on eguity

As percentage of eguity (%)

2016
Carrying
amaount
KShs' 000

5,017,303
147
37,158,762
24,758,148
232,307,329

3411977
260,153,437
19.B13 26D

1% incragse
50,173

1

A71 588
247 561
2,323,073
2992 4156
134,120
(2.601,534)
(1585,133)
(2,833,787
155,629

D.B9%
111,040

%

56

1% decrease
(50,173)
(1)
(371,588
(247.581)
(2,323,073

(2,992 416;
34,120
2,601,534
198,133

2,833,787

(158,629)

{D.B9%)
(111,040)

%

2015
Carrying
amourt
K5hs'Q00

13,977,237
206

36,154 555
2B, 771 BED
208,571,520

3,421,219
265,398,587
15,271,212

1% tncrease

139,772

2

361,544
287,719
2085719

2,874,758
(34.212)
(2,653,986}
(192,712}

(2,880,910

(6,152)

0.04%
(4,306)

%

1% decreass
(139,772
£2)
(J361,546)

(287.719)
(2,085 719)

(2,874 758)
34,212
2,653,986
192,712
2,880,510
6,152

(0. 0d%)
4,306

1%



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMEBER 2016

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued}
(cy  Market risk {Cantinued?

(') Exposure to currency risk

Currency risk is the potential for losses as a result of adverse exchange rate movements during a period in which it has an epen position, eithar spot or farward, or a
cormbinatior. of the two, in an individual foreion currency. Currently, the Group aperates in 13 fareign currencies (namely USD, GBP, JPY, CHF, AUD, CAD, SEHK, NOK, DK,
IR, ZAR, EUR and AEGR), but USE is the most significant expasure. The Group strives to mimmize the petential impact of mevernents in exchange rates on its risk bearing
capacity by having currency position and stop lass limils. The key risk indicaters which are used pro-actively Lo manage and moniter foreign exchange risk are also

devalgpead.

Tha tahle below surmmarises fareign currency expasyre ta the Group as at close of perigd,

CURRENCY TYFE usp GBP EURC JPY —HF ZAR OTHERS TOTAL
ExCH4aMGE RATE 162 152 112 1 103 7 102

31 December 2016 KShs 000 KShs 000 Kahs 000 K5 hs D00 KShs 000 KShs Q00 K5hs Q00 KShs QOO0
Foreign Curréncy Assets:

Cash and balances with banks abroad 4,317,992 345 780 1,704,373 Tr.Cl4 33,049 8,79: 26,996 6,514, 095
Loar: and advances 34,208,130 142,243 51,798 - - . : 34,395,171
Other foreign asseis __ 8597 210 59371 LY e - 5 58 657 446
Total statement of financial pesition  stems 39,115,332 547,394 1,757,433 7014 33,049 8,796 26,694 41,566 714
Iterns nat recopmsed o statement of

financial position 9,662,287 685,993 1,585 698 B - 11,934,978
Tetal Fareign Assets 48 778,619 1,223 388 3,344,131 Frol4 33,049 8,796 26,695 53,601,697
Foreion Currency Liakillties:

Balances dye ta banks abroad 352,068 - : - - - 352,068
Daposits 8643178 390,066 1,275,854 79,010 2,450 557 1,7k 10,392,831
Letan and advances 17,363,985 : - - - - - 17,363,985
Cther roreign liahilities 2415 543 21,723 423,498 Z __ 87 184 441 2,861,478
Totah staternent of financial pasition iterms 28,774,774 411,749 1,699,353 ™012 2,537 742 2,157 30,970,364
Iterns not recegnised in statemant of

fimarcidl position 20,252 378 7Oe,588 1,671,811 o 21,375 15,620 25,043 22,693,215
Total Foreign liabilities 49,027,151 1,118,777 3,371,164 79,012 23912 16,361 27,200 53,663 572
Met Exposure at 31 Decermnber 2016 (248 533} 114610 {27,032} (1,993; 9,137 {(7.565) (5063 {181,906)
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIGIARIE:
NOTES TD THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)
FOR THE YEAR EMCED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {rontinue}
(c) Market risk (continued)

{iiy Exposure to currency risk (Cantinued)

CURRENCY TYFE Ush GEP EURG P CHF ZAR GTHERS TOTAL
EXCHANGE RATE 102 152 112 1 103 7 12

31 December 2015 KShs 000 K5hs Q00 K5hs 000G Kahs 030 KShs 000 Kihs 0303 KS5hs 00D KShs OO0
Foreign Corrency Assets:

Cash and balances with banks abroad 12,538,000 177,790 1,244 427 7038 55,917 22,266 58,001 14,173,939
Loan ard advances 28,307 Fan B0, 426 52,821 : - - - 28441013
Other foreign assets i65 381 1,465 0 1 - 4 1.3ié 368,494
Total statement af finenciz| pesition  ftems 41,211,147 259,681 1,297,578 77,539 55917 22,270 59,317 42,983,450
Iterms nat recogrised in statement of

finangial pas tisn 11,407,533 192,745 1,784,060 - 20,299 - 247,188 13,651,825
Total Foreign Assets B2 &18 680 452 426 3081,438 77,539 76,216 22,270 065085 55635275

Foreign Currency Liabilities:
Bala~ces due ta banks abrood

Deposits 14,473 442 149.08% 995 522 LRS! 3,377 1123
Loar and advancas 13,513,275 - - - - - - 13,513,275
Othes Toreign liabilities 2,224,732 24,289 154,670 2 .33 _. 4l 2858 2,404 622
Tatar statement of financial position items in, 209,449 173,378 1,14% 992 FT.113 3410 1,164 D545 31,624.4%51
Iterms not recegnised in statement ot

firgneigl position 19,154,750 ZHL,0EG 1,207,240 - 51,357 - 282 448 21, T0a ARG
Tatal Fereign Habilities A% 414,239 434,433 3,057,233 77,113 a4 To2 1,164 292, 393 53,331,337

a8



THE CO-DPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITEP AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continuwed)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 21 DECEMBER 2016

3. FIMAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT feantinued)
tc)  Market risk (continued)
(1) Expesure to currency risk {continwed)

currency risk sansitivity analesis
With all ather variables held constant, the effect of 10% appreciation ar depreciation of the shiMing against major trading currencies en profit before
tax and squity would be as fellews::

2016 2015
Carrying amount Carrying amount
KShs'ood 10% appreciation 10% depreciatlon K.3hs" D00 10% appreciation 10% depreciation
Foreign Currency Assats:
usn 37 972,813 (3,797 281) 3,797 281 41,211,148 {4,121, 115} 4,121,115
GBF 547,395 (04,739 54, 736 259681 (25,968} 25,768
EURD 1,757, 4232 (175.743) 175,743 1,297,578 129 758 129,758
JPY TrOt4 (7. 70L) 7,701 Tr.539 {7,754 7 T54
CHF 33,045 {3.304) 3,304 55,917 {5,597 5502
ZAR 8,736 (B79) B7C 22,270 {2,227 2,227
Other cur-encies 26,655 {2 660 Z.a69 53,317 {5,9313 5931
{4,042 316) 4,042 316 (4. 258,345 4 258 345

Fargign Currency Liabilities:
Lsi 27,850,038 2,785,003 (2,745,003 30,209,445 2,020,545 (3,020,945
Cap 411,789 41,178 (41,178 173,378 17,338 (17, 338)
ELRO 1,659,3536 L6593 353 (1,659,353 1,140,993 115,000 (115 Q0
JEY 9,013 TBOL rodls Fr.113 7,71 (7. 7T11)
CHF 2537 253 (2530 31,4140 241 {341)
28R T4z T4 (7} 1,164 lig {116}
(ther currencies 2157 215 o t215) Q045 gG4a a4y

4,533,977 {4,533,97T) 3,162,445 (3,162,445
Effect on profit before tax 491,661 {491,661 1,135,500 1,135,900
Az percentage{¥) of profit before tax 2.T2% (2.72%) (B8.18% A, 1 8%
Effect op equity 344,163 {344,163} {795, 130} 95,130
As percent aged%) of equity 0.58% (0.58%) 1.6%) 1.6%
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THE CO-OFERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued}

iy Dperalional risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect 1055 arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the Bank's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as these arising from legal and
regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour, Operational
risks arise from air of the RBank's operations and ace faced by all business units,

The Bank's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the aveidance of financial
losses and damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost affectiveness and to aveid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of conlrels to address
operational risk is assigned to senior management within each busingss unit. This responsibilsy
s supported by the development of gverall Bank standards for the management of operatipnal
risk in the following areas:

{il requirements for  appropriate  segregation of duties, inclueding the independent
autharisation ol transattions

£iin requicements far the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions

(i) complance with requiatory and other legal requirements

vy  docomentation of controls and procedures

(vl reguirements for the yearly assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of
conlrols and procedures bo address the risks identified

(vil  reguirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action

i{viiy development of contingancy plans

(viild  fraining and professional development

fixy  ethical and husiness standards

(x3  «isk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective

Compliance with Bank standards is supported by a programme of regular reviews undertaken by
both the Internal Audit and Compliance deparlments. The results of Internal Audit reviews are
discussed with the management of the husiness unit to which they relate, with summaries
submitted to the Board Audit Committee and sentor management af the Bank.

Risk Management is charged with the role of overall planning, coardinatian, and monitoring of
operational risk from a centralized operationar risk management dapartment. The department s
responsible for collecting and collating al data on operational risk 1055 events, risk indicators,
and developing risk matrices aimed at reducing the Bank's Operational Risk Capital Charge.

&l



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENY A LIMITEDR AND SUBSIRIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAWCEAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4.

CARPITAL MANAGEMENT

Regulatory capital

The Central Dank of Kenya sets and monitars capital reguirements for the Banking industry as & whaola,
The statutory minimum core capital is K3hs 1,000 millien, in implementing  current  capital
regquiremants Tha Cantral Bank of Kenya raquires the Bank to maintain a 14.5% prescribed ratio of total
capilai to iotal risk-weighted assets, The Bank has already met this requiremant

The Bank's regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:

cay Tlier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capital, share premium, retained earnings, after
deductions for intangible assets, and other reguilatory adjustments relating to iterms that are
included in equity but are treated difterently tor capital adequacy purpeses,

(b) Tier 2 capital, which inciudes 25% of asset revaluation raserves which have received prior Central
Bank appraval, subordinated debt and cther capital instruments approved by Central Bank,

varipus limits are applied 1o elemends of the capilal basa; qualifying tier 2 capital cannot excead lier 1
capitar, and qualifying term subordinated ioan capital may not axceed S0 parcent of tier 1 capital.
There also ara restrictions on the amound of collective impairment alkowances Lhat may be included as
part of tier £ Capital.

The Bank's policy is to maintain & strong capital base so as to mamtain investar, ereditor and market
confiderce and to sustain future development of the husiness. The impact of the level of capital on
shareholdars' return is alse recegnised and the Bank recognises the need o maintain a balance
between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advaniages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, The Bank has complisd with all extarnally imposed capital

requirements throughout the year,

The Bank's regulatery capital pesition as at 31 December was as follows:

2018 2015
Tier | Lapital: KEhs"D0D KShs'COD
Ordinary share Ccapital 4,089 317 4 889 317
Share premium 2.BBS9, 789 2,B89, 709
Retainad earnings {current year profits - 50%) 46,970,970 37,830,867
Othar reserves 495 841 517,317
Less: investments in eguily of other institutions & deferred tax (3,324 117) (2,843 GRS)
Lore Capital 21,524,808 43,283,305
Tier || Capital:
Revaluation reserves {(25%) 314,111 99,264
Tarm subardinatad debt 19,813, 26D 19 271,211
Loran (088 provisions F17, 844 717 B45
Supplementary capital 20,845,215 20,0B5, 320
Total requiatory capital 72, 7fh,023 63,371,625
Total risk weighted assets 319,614,654 258,137,367
Capital ratios:
Corecapital to Tolal depasit labibities (CBK minimum 10.5%) 20% 16.2%
Core capital to Total risk weighted assets {CBK minimum 10.5%) 16.2% 14.5%
Total capitar to Total risk waighted assats (CBK minimum 14.5%) 22.8% 21.3%

&1



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSITHARIES
HOTES TO THE COMSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {rontinued)
FOR THE ¥EAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {cantinued)

Capital Alfocation

The allecation of capital between specific operations and activities is, te a large extent, driven
by eptimisation of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated
to each operation or activity is based primarily upen the regulalary capital, but in some cases
the reguiatory requirements do net reflect fully the varying degree of risk associated with
differant activities. In such cases the capital requirements may be flexed to reflect differing risk
profiles, subject to the overall level of capital to support a particular speration or activity not
falling below the mmimum required for requlatory purposes,

The protess of allocating capital lo specilic operations and activities s undertaken
independently of those responsible for the operation, by Group Risk and Group Credit, and is
subject to review by the Group Credit Committee or ALCOQ as appropriate. Although
maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in determining
how capital is allocated within the Group to particular operations or activities, it is not the sole
basis used for decision-making. Account also is taken of synergies with other aperations and
aclivities, the availabinty of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity with
the Group’s longer term sirategic objectives. The Group's palicies in respect of capital
managernent and allocation ara reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors,

SEGMEMT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Bank is organised into two main operating segments based on
products and services as follows:

1. Hetail Banking: Includes |oans deposits and other transactions and balances with retail
customers;
2. Whaolesaie Banking, includes loans deposits and other transactions and balances with

carperate and institulional customers

Management maoniters the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions  about rescurce allecation and performance  assessment.  Segment
performance is evaluated based ogn operating prefit or loss. income taxes are managed on a3
group basis and are neot allocated to operating segments.

The Group’s sedmenl operations are all financial with a majority of revenues deriving from
interast, The management relies primarily on net interest revenue to assess the perfermance
of the segment. Interest income is reported net as management primarily relies on net interest
revenue as a performance measure, not gross income and expenses, Mo revenue from
transacticns with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the
Bank's total revenueg in 2016 or 2015,



THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSICIARIES
HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 DECEMBER 2016

5.

SEGMENT REPORTIMNG (continued)

The following table presents income and profit and certain asset and liability infarmation regarding
the Group's operating segments. Al the revenye shown is brom external customers.

Profit or less for the vear ended
31 Qecember 2016

et interest ingome
Moen-funded income

Oparating ingorme
Cepreciation

Amartisation

Mher ppearating expenses
Share of profit in associate

Profit befare tax

Profit or less for the year ended
31 Qecember 2015

Met interest income
Man-Tunded income
Operating income
Depreciation
Amortisatian

Other operating expanses
Share of profit in associate

Profit before tax

Wholesale R etail
banking banking
KShs' Q00 KShs'000
14,105 052 13,808,688
4554016 6418710
18,659,108 20,225,358
(55, 714) £1.150,764)
(BT, 197 {134,39%)
(%.836914) (11,061 52B8)
8699 283 7.BYE 711
Wholesale Retail
banking banking
KShs' 000 K Shs'000
1,467,230 11,596,274
1,651,998 9098 699
12,119 228 20,696,973
(19, 426) {1,038,87a4;
(AE,945} (44 ,B834)
B91e 370 (9,141,665
3,144,487 10,471,558

83

Un-aligeated
K 5hs" Q00

2,093,729
1,292,696

3,386,425
{730,221}
(284,529
€1,323,686)
97,546

1,145,539

Un-allocated
KShs'000

1,268,333
2,305,246

3,573,579
(865.307)
(349,631}
(976,624}

384,351

1,767,008

Total
K5 hs'000

30,005 509
12 265,422

42,270,931
(1,936,609}
(486,117}
{22,222,128}
97,546

17,723,533

Total
KShs000

23,333 837
13,055,942

36,389,779
£1,923.60%)
(433,410
(19,034,655
184,991

15,383,092



THE CO-OFERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TGO THE CONSOQUIGATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued}

Statement of financial positien as at Wholesale Retail .

31 Qecember 2016 panking ranking Un-aliccated Total
K5hs Q00 KShsQ00 KShs'Q00 Kahs Q00

Assats:

Segment assets 67,766,169 106, 708,399 - 174,474,568

Unallocated assets - - 177 354,009 177,354 009

Total assets 67, Thb, 169 106,708,399 177,354,000 351,828,577

Liabilities and equity:

Segment lialilities 132,901,186 176,674,206 - 259,525,392

Unallocated liabidities - - 02,303,185 92,303,185

inter-segment lending et " - _ e e z

Totai liahilities and equity 132,501,186 126,624,206 92,303,185 251,828,577

Other disciosures

Capital expenditure 365,901 294,501 475,723 1,136,174

Statement of financial position as at Wholesale Ratall

31 Qecember 2015 hanking banking Un-alipcated Totai
K5hs'000 KShs'000 KShs"000 KEhs 000

Aszets:

Segment assels 110,305 &05 AR, 781 087 - 199,086 692

Unallocated assets - - 143,413,117 143,413,117

Total assets 110,305,605 88,781,087 143,413,117 342,499,809

Liabilities and equity:

Sagmant liabilibies 08,711 223 153 807 238 - 2h2,5h18 461

Unallocated liabilities - . T9.081,348 79,981,348

Inter-segment lending 1,594, 382  (65,.026,151) 63,431,769 -

Totai liahilities and equity 110,305,605 88,781,087 142,413,117 247,490 809

Other disclosures

Capital expenditure FR8 102 231,883 374,573 894,558

Gd



THE CO-CFERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITEG AND SUSSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (¢continue d}

Geographlcal information
The Group's operations are within the twe gecgrapbical segments uf Kenya and South Sudan. The
tabile below contains segmental information provided to the Board of Management for the vear ended

31 December 2016,

Prafit or [oss for the year ended Kenya South Sadan Total
31 December 2016 K3hs'000 KShe 000 KEhs 0
MWet interest income 29,877,964 To 030 29 083 934
Non-funded income 11 685,054 652,031 12,337,125
Cperating income 41,563 058 TR 061 432 291,119
Deprecration (LA3T.RIM (3, 0697 (1,938,639
Amartization (g5, 159 (20.9%8) {485,117
{ther uperating expenses 21,064,702) {751,855y {21 816,567)
Loss on net monetary position - {425,749 (425,749
Cperaling profitfiloss) 18,195,586/ (563,680 17,625,987
Share of profif in associate 27 4548 TO0BT AT 545
Profitf{Loss) before tax 18,223,026 {499,493) 17,723,533
Statement of financial position as at

31 December 2014

Segment asseis

MWon-current assets &2,920,637 1,109,808 64,030,443
Current assets 286,147,020 1.773,25% 287 920,275

AL 0E T 057 2,883,061 351,950,718

Segment lighilities 289,721,937 1,494,775 291,216,710
Equity 549,345 720 1,388,288 60,734,408
Frofit or 1oss for the year ended KEenya South Sudan Totau
31 Oecember 2015 KShs'O00 KShs"D00 K&hs' 000
Met interest income 23,161,923 171,914 23,333,837
Man-Tunded mcame 11,385 834 1,670,108 13,0685 942
Operating income 34,547,757 1,842,022 36,389,779
Depreciation {1,798.815) (124,794 (1,923,609
Amortization ¢332.047) (41,363 {433,410
Other gperating expenses (18 111 741} {922,928 £19,034,6549)
Operating prefit 14245 164 Tha 937 14,938,101
Share of profit in associate 288 708 96,783 184,391
Profit hefore tax 14,533,37¢ 49,720 15,383 092
Statement of financial position as at

31 December 2015
fegment assets

Mon-current assete A0 437,744 411,213 AV A48 95T
Cuirent assets 2968, 706,938 2,943 914 301 650,852
335,144,882 3,355,127 342 495,509

Segment liahilities 490,445,735 2,750,762 293,196,557
Equity 48 698,087 &a04,365 49 303 282

G5



THE CO-QPERATIVE SANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIHARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 20146

4. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMEMTS

(a}

Determination of fair vailue and fair vaiue hierarchy

The Grovp uses the faollowing hisrarchy for determining and disclasing the fair value of financial
mstruments by valuation technmue:

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets ior identical assets o liabilities. This laver
intludes treasury and corporate bonds listed in Nairobi Stack exchange (NSED.

Level 2 - other techniques far which all inputs which have a significant eftect an the recorded fair
value are nbservatie, either directly ar indirectly; and

Level 3 - inputs for the asset ar iiability that are not hased on observable market data
(unobservable inputs),

The fohiewing table shows an analysis af financial instraments recorded at fair vaius by lavel of the
faw value hierarchy, This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data where available. The
Group considers relevant and abservabie marksl prices in its valuations where possihie:

As at 31 December 2016 Level 1 Lewve| 2 Level 3 Total
K 5hs'Q00 KShs'QQ0 KShs' Qo0 KShs'Q00Q

Assets measured at_fair vaiue:
Free hald land and building - 2,408,791 2,408, 791
Held-for-trading investment s:

Treasury bonds 147 - - 147
Available-1or-sale investment

Treasury bongs 20,675 539 - 20,675,539

Corporate bonds 3 919,648 - 3,919,648
Oarivatives - 126,776 126,776
Loans and advances

Chrectars and staff lnans 4. 678,234 - 4 /28,234
Azsets far which fair vaives are
disciosed (ingle &h)
Held-to-maturity

Treasvry bonds 29,320,838 29,320,838
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed (note 6b)
Loans and barrawings 3,328,383 3,328,343
As at 31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatai

KEhs'000 K5hs'Q0Q KShs'0C0 KShs' Q00

Assets measured at falr value;
Free hald land and building - 1,387,097 1,387,047
Held-for-trading investments.

Treasury bands 149 - 149
Availablg-for-sale investment

Treasury bonds 23,824,739 - 23,824,739

Corporate bonds 4,786,783 - - 4 786,783
Oerivatives 621,737 621,737
Loans and advances

Oirectors and staff lpans 4 811,635 - 4,811 635
Assets for which fair vaiues are
discigsed (nate &b)
Held-to-maturity

Treasury bands 26,142,167 26,142 167
Liabliltles for which fair values
are disclosed (note ab)
Loans and borrowings - 2,344 5R/7 - 2,344, 567

&6

There were no transters between levels 1, 2 and 3 in the year (2015 no transfar).



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cuntinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

6.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

(EYFalr vaiue of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

The tabie balow summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liakilities
not presented on the Group's conselidated statement of financial position at their fair vatue, other than
those with carrying amoynts that are reasonable approximation of fair values.

2018 2015
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Falr vaiue
Financial assets: KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs' Qa0
Held-to-maturity investments
Treasury bonds and biils 29,747,015 29,320,838  26,DB1,B20 19,499,748
249 747,019 29 320,838 26,081,820 19,499,748
Financiai liakilities:
Loans and barrowings
Fixed-rates barrowings 4,144, 448 31,328,383 3,707,009 2,344,567
4,144,448 3,328,383 3,707 009 2,344,567

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine Fair values for those
financigl instruments which are not already recorded at fair value in the tinancial statements-

Cit

{ii

CHi)

Assets for which fair vaiue approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (less than thiee months)
it s assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their Fair value, This assumption is also
applied (o inter-bank placements, derivative financial instruments, demand depasits, and sawings
dccounts without a specific maturity and treasury bills heid to maturity.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are net of charges for impairmeni. The estimated fair value of leans and
ddvances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash fiows expected to be received.
Loans and advances to cystomers are at vanable rates.

Long term fixed rate financial instry ments
These incivde government tfregsury bonds and ioans and borrowings. The estimated fair value of
treasury bonds held-to-maturity is derived from quoted market prices in active markets,

The estimated fawr value of fixed interest bearing loans is based on discounted cash flows vsing
pravailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and matvrity,

Cescription of valuation techrigues used and key input s to valuation on [and and building:

Valuation Significant Range (Weighted
Techique unobservable inpyls Average)
Estimated rental value
Free held land and building CCF  per s.9.m. per month KShy 30
Fant growth p.a. 3%
Long-ferm vacancy rate L%
Discount rate 5%
Type of Financial instrument Fair vaiue Vaiuation technlgye Significant inputs
Ghrectors and staff loans KShs 4,62BM Discounted cash flows Market interest rate
Lerans ang borrawings K5hs 3 328 M Qiscounted cash fiows Market interest rate

&7



THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KEMYA LIMITEG AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIGATED FIMANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 QECEMBER 2016

7.

CASH AMD BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK OF KEMY A

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015

KShs"000 KEShs'00Q K5 hs'GO0 KShs'000
Cash on hand B.432.988 9,057 746 8,119,618 B.BBO . 9E9
Central Bank of Kenya;
Restricted balanges (Cash Reserve Ratio) 13,376,450 13 B37,.359 13,376,450 13,837,359
Jl[JnrestnctEd balances availabile for Use by 2961652 4,455 297 2,961,652 4.455 297
he Group
Central Bank of South Sudan 911,614 2,105,289

20,082,704 29,455,691 24,457,720 27,173,645

The Cash Reserve Ratio is non-interest earning and is based on the valye of deposits a5 adjusted by Central Bank
of Kenya requirements. At 31 Dacember 2016, the Cash Reserve Ratio requirement was 5.25% (2015 - G.25%)
on all deposits. The restricted balances are not considered as part of cash and cash equivalents from a
statement of cash flow perspective as these do not meel the definition of cash and cash equivalents as these
funds are not available for use by the Group in its day to day aperations.

GEPOSITS AND BALANCES DUE FROM BAMKS

Group Bank
D16 2015 2016 2015
K5hs'000 K5hs"Q0D K5hs'000 KShs' 000
Local banks FO3,530 9,878,261 703,530 9,770, 3B2
Foreign banks 4,313,773 4 098 976 4,606,363 4,098 E31
o.017,203 13,977,237 5,359,893 13,B69, 273

The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits and balances due from banks as at 31 December
2016 was 3. 12% (20153, 14%)

HELO-FOR-TRACIMG INMVESTMENMTS

Group Bank
Z0le 2015 2016 2015
KShs200 EShs'000  KShs'O00 KShs' Q00
{a)Treasury bands
Maturing within 91 days of reporting date - -
Maturing after 91 days of reporting date 147 206 147 14%
147 206 147 149

The weighted average effective interest rate on government and other securities hewd-far-trading at 31
December 2016 was 10, 75% (2015 10,.75%),

(151



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIOIARIES
WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINMANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 311 OECEMBER 2016

10. AYAILABLE- FOR -S5ALE INYVESTWENTS

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
KShs'000 KShs 000 Kahs 000 K.5hs000
Government treasury bonds:
Maturing within 91 days of the
reqorting date 903,302 903,362
Maturing after 91 days of the
reparting date 19 772,177 23824739 19,772,177 23,824,739
Corporate bonds:
Maturing after 91 days of the
reporting date 3,919 048 4 786,783 3,919,248 4,786, 7TB3
Quaoted equity Investments:-
Mairabt becurities Exchange:-
T,000,000 shares of KShs 14,65
each (note 17(a: 102,550 130,338
CIC insuramce Group Ltd:-
8,000,000 shares of Kshs 3.80
each 30,400 - -
Unquoted equity invest ments:-
Consolidated Bark of Kenya Ltd:-
135,000 ordinary shares of KShs
20 each 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,700
580,000 4% non-curnulative
preferernce shares of KShs 20 each 11,&00 11,600 11,600 11,600
Kenya Matiohat Federation of Co-
aperatives Lid:-
BZ shares of KBhs100 each B B B B
Kerya MNational Housing Co-operative
Unior Ltd:-
1 share of KShs 1,000 1 1 3 1
Menrno Plaza Limited:-
9,340 ardinary shares
representing 12.39% ownership 30,000 30,000 30,000 20,000
24,772,446 2B, 7B6.16% 24,639,095 B £55,B31
Less: Provisian for diminution in value
of investment in Consolidated Bank of
Kerya Ltd 14,3003 14 3001 14 3003 (14 3003
24,758 148 28,771,889 24,624,796 28,641,531
Maovement in the year:
At January 1 28,771,869 21,170,478 28,641,531 21,062,453
Additions 3,923,105 11,664,730 3.B&6T.073 11,664,730
Disposals and maturities (B, 645 5433 {3.036,845) (B.&37.B43) (3,036/,B4%7)
Change in faiv valug recagnized in
other comprehensive income TOR,.TI5 {1,026,4%4) 754, 0315 (1,048 B0OT)
At December 31 24,758 146 28, 771,B69 24,624,796 28,641,531

The unquoted souity are carried at cost due to lack ot active market for them which could have been
used as a bases for the determination of fair value.

The weighted average effective interest rate on available for sale investments as at 31 Oecember 2016 was

11.62% (2015- 11.4%),
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIQIARIES
WOTES TO THE CONSOLIQATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (rantinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEQ 31 QECEMBER 2016

11.

12.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments racarded as assets or liabililies
tagather with their notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount of a derivative's
underlying aiset and is the basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured, The
noticnal amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the vear end and are indicative of
neither the market risk nor the credit risk, These derivative linancial instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Group and Bank

2016 2015
KShs'Qo0D K5hs"DOO K.ohe' Q00D EShs'GQ0
Fair value of Fair value of
Motional contracts: contracts:
value  Assel fLiabilitys Motional value  Asset fiLiability)
Forward exchange contracts 661,568 (10,803} 3,363,150 83132
Swaps 6 577,502 137,579 11,272,125 538,605
7,239,140 126,776 14,655,675 621,737
DOTHER AS5ETS
Lraup Bank
2016 2015 2016 2019
K5hs' 000 KShe'000 KShs 000 KShs 00
Inte rest recéivabte 3. B4B,676 2,565 663 3,848 491 2,965,663
Iterms in the course of collection fram
other banks 195 791 384,161 1495 791 364,161
Depasits with defadting linancial
Institutiens 43,052 43,052 43,052 43,0652
SBundry tebtors and prepayments 4 5569 730 4 369,039 4,390,755 4,257,137
Saff loan amortisation 4,628,234 4 611,635 4 628 234 4 H11 635

13,285,490 12,173,550 13,114,323 12 061 648
Impairment lasses on deposits with default
finandcial institutions (42,002) (43,002) (43,0527 (43,052)

13,242,438 12,130,498 13,071,271 12,018,5%

NG provision on imparment fosses has been made bor staff [gans as aill staff are active and recoveries are
madle directly through payroll. Interest receivable relates to accrued interest on treasury bonds and accrued
interesl on impaired loans whose interest income is suspended as required by CBE prudentia guidelines.

mciutded in sundry debtors is KEhs 923 million relating to fised deposits invested in Ehase Bank {Kenyad
Limited by Co-operative Bank of Kenya on behalf of Co-optrust Investment Services Limited customers. Chase
Bank was put under receiverstup on 7 April 2016 and re-apened on 27 April 2016 under a receivar Manager
(KCE Bank Limited}. The fixed deposits were paid to the customers on maturity by the Co-operative Bank.
Dwing to uncertainty in recoverability of these inveslments, the management has assessed the amount as not
impaired, 0 ormaking s asiessment, the management sought the adwice of the Capilal Markel Authority
(CHMAY on the accounting treatment of these investments given the situation of Chase Bank, CMA in its agvice
inticated thal £hase Bank was still operating and there was indication from Central 8ank kenya of fully
operationalisation of the hank by end of March 2017 hence there is likelihood the investments will be
recavered, Further, the management in assessing for the impairment, considered the regular updates from
tentral Bank of Kenya which indicates that Chase Bank conlinued to operate normally under receivership and
the Bank is likely te ba released hack to the successful private imvestar by end of March 2617 . However, the
management has impaired in full the accrued interest of KShs 36 million arising from these lixed deposits.

7o



THE CO-OFERATIVE SANK OF KENYA LIMITEQ AND SUBSIGIARIES

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMAER 2016

14,

LOAMD AND ADVAMCES TO CUSTOMERS

71

Group Bank
2016 2015 2U1le 2015
tayMet [oans and advances KS5hs' 00D KShs'0Q0 K5hs'000 KShs GO0
Overdrafts 7781024 11.885,932 7.781.024 11,385,932
Commercial loans 229,636,764 200,473,160 229089848 200,371,099
t f
ffh”:r:fe?e" feoner funded loan 2,029,062 2,054,503 2029062 2,054,503
Credit card balances 1,191,947 82120 1,191,947 782,120
Micro enterprises & SME 4,363,277 4,960,833 4,363,277 4,960,883
Gross ioans and advances 245,002 074 220,556,598 244,455,158 220,064,537
Staff loans amortisation {nofe 13) 4,678 234 4,811 635) (4,628, 234 (4, 811,635)
240,372,840 215,744,963 239,826,924 215,242,902
impairment |osses on loans and
advances (note 12 ¢} (8,066511) (7173042 (B.0856,75%) (7,163,389
Met Inans and advances 232,307,329 208,671,920 231 770,171 208,074,613
Graup and Bank
(b} The weighted average effective interest rate at 31
Cecamber was:- 2016 2015
% %
Owverdrafts 14 16.4
Commercial Ipans 12.9 14.3
Gowernment/Donor funded loan schemas a8 12.7
Credit card bakances 14 20.0
{cY impalrment iosses on loans and advances;
Specific Collective
impairment  impairment
Group insses insses Total
KShs 000 KShs G300 KShs G300
Balance at 1 January 2016 4,640,709 2,532,334 7.173,043
Impairment losses recognised during the year
through profit or loss 2,065 579 534 092 2599671
Interest on impaired oans not recognised as income 579,390 - 579,390
Impaired |osses written off during the year ¢1,776,505) - {1,776,508)
Amounts released to infome - Unused provision
reversed {509, 0848) (509, 0848)
Balance at 31 December 2016 L, 000,085 I.068428 2,065511
8alance at 1 January 2015 2,433,978 2,022,765 4,456,741
Impairment losses recognised during the year
through profit or 10ss 1,504,726 203,569 2,019,295
Interest on impaired Ipans ned recagnised as incame 875914 - 875,514
Impaired losses written off during the year - -
Amounts released bo infome - Unused provision
reversed 178,907 A178.907)
Balance at 21 Gecember 2315 4,640,709 2,932,334 7.173.042



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENY A LIMITED AND SUBSICHARIES

NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (eontinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1z,

14,

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

{¢ ) impairment Ipsses on loans and advances

{continued]

Bank

Balance at 1 January 2016

Impairment losses recognised during the yoar

through profit or 1oss

Interest on impaired oans not recognised as income

Impaired |osses written off during the year

Specific

Impairment

Insses
KShs' D00

4,636,855

2.065,579
579,320

1,776,509

Amounts released to income - unosed provision

reuersed
Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 January 2015

Impairment (psses recogmised during the year

through profdit or loss

Interest on impaired loans not recognised as incgme

Impaired [osses written off during the yvear

Amounts released to income - unused provision

relersed

Balance at 31 December 2015

{509 DBE)
4,995,431
2,351,897

1,497,788
#75.914

(129,544)

4 636,055

Collective

impairment .
losses Total
KShs'000 K5hs' Q00
2,532,334 T.16B,289
528,986 2,594 967
- 579,390
- {1,776,505)
(5B9,888)
3.061,322 8,056,753
2022, 765 4,414,662
R08,9659 2,007,357
- B75,914
(129,5443
2,532,334 7.168,389

d¥ The Bank continues to carey classified impaired and delinguent accounts on its books even after making
alfgwances for impairment n accordance with 1AS 39 Inlerest is accrued on these accounts for contractuat!
litination purposes gniu and accordingly not taken to income. The carrying ameount of such loans at year end
was K5hs 11.3 billion {2BL5 - K5hs 8.1 billien).

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESGTMENTS

Government treasury bills:

Maturing within 91 days of the reporfing date
Maturing after 91 days of the reporting date
Treasury bords:

Maturing within 21 days of the reporting date
Maturing after 91 days of the reporting date

Movement m the year:

At 1 January

Additions

amaortization of premiums and discounts
Maturities

Af December 31

Group
2016 2015
K5hs'BOO K5hs'088
3,924 467 4,633,693
3.332.043 224,111
1,701,578 250,168
28,200,674 26,046,583
37,158,762 26,154,555
36,154,955 24,643 526
12,436,612 10,846 320
945,595 4164209

(12,379,000

37.158,762

{3 500,000F (12,372 000

26,154,555

Bank
2016 2815
K5hs000 K5hs000
3,924 467 4,633,693
3,332,043 5224,111
1,701,576 250,168
28,045 442 25,4891 999
3T.003,530 35,999,971
35 999 971 24,460,192
12,436,612 10,846 820
945 947 4,192,959
(3,500,000
IT.003,530 25999971

The weighted average effeclive inlerest rale on held-tg-maturity investments as at 21 December 2016 was

T192% (2015 - 12.1%),
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THE CO-OFPERATIVE BANMK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDMARIFS
MOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCEAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 DECEMBER 2016

15,

INYESTMENT IN S3UBSIDIARIES

The following subsidiaries are awned by the Bank:-

Bank Ownership  Principal 2Drlé 2015
activity K5hs Q00 K shs'000
Consultancy &

Comgp Consultancy & Insurance Agency Insurance

Limited LO0% agency T0LO00 70,000
Fund

Co-optrust Investment Services Limited 1G0% management 20,004 20,000
Brokerage

Kingdam Securities Limited 0% sEryices 150,003 150,000

Co-gperative Bank of Bauth Sudan 1% Barking 2,272,920 1,967,370

2,512,920 2,207,370

The investment in the above subsidiaries is at cost. AH the subsidiaries are unlisted and haue the same
financlal year-end of 31 December as the Bank. Co-gperative Merchant Limited, excluded from the above
fist, I a dermant Company with no assets or liabilities.

Co-op Consultancy & Insurance Agency Limited was estaklished as Lo-op Consubtancy Services in 2002 to
affer consultgncy, aduizory and nsurance ggency services. The audiled financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 show that the company made a prefit after tax of Kahs 138,218,873 (2015
Kshs 121,604, 207).

Coa-optyust Inuestment Seruices was estahblished in 1998 to offer fund management and inuestment
services, The audited financial statements kar the year ended 31 December 2016 show that the company
made a profit after taz of KShs 4B 613,577 {2015 KShs 42 4896 5005,

Kingdom Securities Limited (previously named Bob Mathews Stockbrokers Limited) was acguired Ry Co-
aperative Bank Limited through purchase of G0% sharehelding in 2009, The company offers orokerage
services and is a registered broker with the Naiwrobi Securities Exchange, The audited financial statemants
for the year ended 21 December 20016 show that the company made a loss alter tax of KShs 18,448,934
{2015 - K5hs 1,340,634). Refer to note 32 for financial statements summaries,

Co-operative Bank of South Sudan was registered in 2013 with the partnership of Government of Soulh
Sudan which holds 49% of the ordinary shares. As at year end, Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited had
cantributed B5% of the total share capital with the Government of South Sudan conmtriputing 1 5%, The
Subsidiary is based in South Sudan and commenced aperation in Septambar 2013, The audited financial
statements [or the year ended 31 December Z20G16 show that the company made a 955 of KShs
455,323,565 (201 5- K3hs 845,720,159 1), Refer to note 32 for financial statements summarias,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

16. INMVESTMENT IN ASS0CIATE

The Bank has 359.71% interest in Co-operative Insurance Society Limited which is the majority
shareholder of CIC Insurance Group Limited, CIC Insurance Group Limited is a listed company at Nairobi
Securities Exchange {NSE) and is incorperated in Kenya. The principal activity of the Company is
insurance business and fund management,

The Group’s Interest in Co-operative wsurance Society |imibed is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statemends.

Co-opperative Bank of South Sudan owns 31% stake in CIC Souwth Sudan, The interest in ©O1C South Sudan
is accountad for using equity method in the consalldated finaneial staterments,

ALY January

Share of profit

Additional 3hares - CIC South Sudan
Other comprehensive income
Exchange difference an translation

Dividends receiverd

As at 31 December

Group
2016 2015

KShs'0 0D KShs'ODo

2267230 1,907,722
97.546 384,991

30,182

T ATE 13,773
10% 621 -

(72,876) (63,407

2,409,297 2,267,230

The following tabite illustrates summarized financial information of

associates:-

Co-operative insurance Society

Share of the associate's
statement of financial posltion:

Maon-curcent assets
Current assets

Current lighilities

Equity

Share of the associate's revenue
and profit:

Revenus

Frofil belare tax

Profit after tax

Limited
2016 2015
KEhs'ooD KShs'000
4,057,299 2,905,942
5,506 607 6,078,224
9,543,901 E.984 166
(6,907,854} {6,193, 4D2)
2,636,047 2,790,764
4673727 4,919,301
53,140 4946, 451
27,462 ZEE, 208

74

Bank

2016 2015
K5Shs'DO0 KShs'Q00

¥h5,118 ¥hh, 118
¥h5,118 ¥55,118
the Group’s investment in
LI South Sudan
Limited
2016 2015
KShs'000 KShs'DOO
22 866 BB, 756
40,558 B2.561
163 424 171,317
{21.D64) (15,086)
142, 380 156,231
124,040 111,451
112 7h4d G, 783
TR Q84 9&8, 7R3



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENQED 31 DECEMBER 2016

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Joint Other
Computer venture intangibie Wark-in-
(a) GROUP software  deugicpment assets progress Total
K 5hs'000) K5hs 000 K Shs 000 KShs'000 K5hs"000
CO5T
At 1 January 2016 2,701,258 28,159 25,000 2e0,249 3.014,665
Additions 243,030 - - 352,322 595 352
Transfers 216,414 - {316,414 -
Reclassification fram
preperty and equipment {110,796} (110,796
Exchange diffarance on
transiation 20 288 44 349} } : 63926 135,104
At 31 December 2016 3,280,930 73,049 25,000 255 287 3634,325
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2016 1,398,307 11,28% - - 1,409,596
Amartisatien ter the year AT0,855 14, 61D - - 485,505
Exchange difference on
translation 8,215 17,891 - - 26,1068
At 31 Dacembeor 2016 1877417 43 790 - - 1921 207
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 Oecember 2016 1,403,573 29,2559 - - 1,¥13,11B
(a) GROUP Joint Other
Computer venture intangibie Work-in-
saftware  development assets Prograss Total
K5hs 000 KShs'000 KShs' 000 KShs' a0 KShs'000
CO5T
At 1 January 2015 2,362,983 124,940 25,000 239,601 2,752,524
Additions 58,109 - - 280 58D 338 689
Transkars 315,352 . - (3193530 -
Reclassification from property
and eguiprment - - - 165,141 165 141
Exchange difference an
transtation 39,187 {26, 7TB1) - (105, 7200 {241 68%)
At 31 Oecember 2015 2,701,258 28,159 25,000 260,249 3,014,665
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2015 1,013,215 26,407 - - 1,039 622
Amartisation for the year 394 318 5632 - - 390 950
Exchange difference an
translation L k9,226) {20,750 . (23,376}
At 31 Qecember 2015 1,398,307 11,28% - - 1, 40% 5%6
NET CAREYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2015 1,302,951 16,870 25,000 260,249 1,605,069

Ciher intangible assets relates to trading rights by Kingdom Secwrities Limited to participate in trading at Nairghi
Secuvities Exchange (MSE ).

The Joint Venture developmenl assets relates to the costs incarred in negeliating the Jaint Yenture
arrangerment with the Government of South Sudan. Under the Jeint Venture agreement, the Bank acguired
corkain rights that are identifiable e.q., business relatienships with the gevernment and co-operative moverments,

Work-in-progress relates te partialy paid and ongoing software projects not yet commissioned for use by the group.

TS



THE CO-ODFERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

MOTES TC THE COMBDLIDATEG FINAMCIAL STATEMENT S (continued)
FOR THE ¥YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

iv.

18.

INTAMGIBLE ASSETS (cantinued)

Camplter Wark -in
(b} BANK Software pragress
KShs'QQD KShs'DOO
CRET
At 1 Jarnuary 2016 2,588,513 228,656
Additiens 23T.078 269 654
Transfers 316,414 (316,414)
Reclassilication to Property and equipment - (110,822}
Cast at 31 December 2016 3,140 D32 71,674
AMDRTISATION
Al 1 tanuary 2016 1,353,579 -
Amartisation for the year 447 3T1 -
At 31 December 2D1& 1,800,950
MET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2016 1,332,082 T1,074
COsT
At 1 Janvary 2015 2.235600 103,625
Additians 31,5680 273243
Transfers 319 353 £319,353)
Recigssification from Property and equipment - 165,141
Cost at 31 December 20156 2,586,513 228,650
AMDORTISATION
At 1 January 2015 476,016 -
Amartisation for the year 377563 _ -
At 31 December 2015 1,353,572 -
MET CARRYING AMDUNT
At 31 December 2015 1,232,934 228,656

Totai
K5hs"GO0

2,815189
506,759

(110,B23)

3,211,106
1353573
447 371

1,800,950

1,410,158

2,339 225
J10.803

165,141
2,815,169
976,016
377,563

1,353,579

1,461,590

Amartisatinn has not been charged in arriving at the results for the year in respect of certain Fuliy
amortised software assets with a cast of KShs 726,721,845 (2015 - KBhs 585,852.349), which are
stili in use_ If amortisation had been charged during the year on the cost of these assets at normal

rates, it would have amounted ko K5hs 145,344 366 (2015 -K5hs 117,170,470,

PREPAID L EASE RENTA L5 Group and Bank

2016

KShs' D00
COLT
At 1 Jaruary h4.413
At 31 December 54,413
Amortisation;
At 1 January 17,449
Charge for the year 612
At 31 December 18,061
MET CARREYING AMDOUNT
at 31 December 36,352

20135
K5hs'DDD

54,413
54,413
16,6843

ah6
17,4453

36,964

Frepaid [ease rentals refate to the lease payments for leasehold land to the governmeant. Amaortization is

done over the remaining lease pericd of the lease as at the time af purchasa,

Th



THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED AN SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS (continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2016

12, {a) PROPERTY ANOEQUIPMENT-GROUP Office
rachinery
Fregehald land Capital work- furmiture §
& buitdings inprogress Flxturas equipment  Maotor vehieles Computers Tatal
COST/VALUATION K5hs"000 K5 hs "TI0HY K5 hs D0 KShs 00D K5he' D00 KShs'D0D K5hs'000
At 1 January 2016 1,287,087 636,904 T.861,296 1,715 942 148, D76 6,376,378 18,129,693
Additiars - 492 165 15,4%46 LR g b.ES2 7,535 687 T30
Qisposals (20, 000 - (eg, 889 {11,651} - (35,283 (242,522
Reclassification from ivtangible assets (note
17¢an - 110,796 - - - - 110,796
Rewvalvation gain 1,227,693 - - - - - 1,227,693
Trarsfers (681,738} 292,154 b TTT - 378805 -
Exchange diffgrance gn translakion 42,405 - 345 844 4,627 53487 446,363
Write off _ - _[B1.837) (41,2034 - - . (1230403
At 31 December 2016 2 408 790 218,695 a,038,85%8 2,161 8013 15%,3%56 6,849,222 20136742
CEPRECIATIDM
At 1 Jarnuary 2016 154a 500 - 4401 032 1,255 360 118,280 &£ 179,737 10,108,215
Lha-qe far the year 52,500 - 868,549 218,557 14 386 TA3TLD 1,935,704
Disposals (206,000 - (86,677 £11,.658) - (33.058) (337,390
Exchange diff erence on transdation - - - 53,464 ldgd 24,348 119,796
Write off e I . — - .- — ’
At 31 December 2016 e - 5,182 504 1555 723 134,133 4,955 259 11,848,024
MET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2016 2,408,730 518,695 2,855,952 06, Dad 25,217 1,893,263 8,204,698

{4  Capital wark-ir-progress rapresgnts angang cunsiruction work at the warious branches of tne 8ank.

iy Land and Buildngs were revalved 09 open markel vawe basis by protessienal valuers {N'W Realite Limited, Seven Qeqrees North valuers, Kiragu and Mwangi Valuers and
Afrmand valuers Limited? as at 31 December 2016 The resulting surplus on rewaluation was adiusted ta baak walues of the properties and <redited ta revaliation reserve. i
1izrd and building were measured ysng the cast medel, the net carrying amaount wouid have besn K5k 1, 218.016(2015; K5hs 1,269,514

(iiiy  Freeheld land and buildings are revalued evory three years. Freehaold and and buildmgs intiudes an amaunt of K5hs 35,496,458 t20] 5- K5hs. 35,496,498 against wnich
rna depreciation has been charged, as these are pieces af land.

(ivi Modepreciation has been charged in arriving at the results far the year in respect of certain fully depreciated areperty and equpment with a cast of K555, 4,119, 720,390
$2014- K5hs 2,101,893,807), which arg still in wse, if depreciation had been charged during the year on tne cost of tnese gassets at na-mal rates, it would have amounted ko
kSns TED.5A%. 266 12001 0 - K5ns 529,835,351

twi Capital Waorks ir praqress, intangile assets had bean posted td Capitar warks in urogress, praperty, pant & cguipment. Reclasyification s ta remave the amount relabing
to cwip-intangib £ assets fram cwp-property. plant & equipment,

7



THE C5-OPERATIVE BANK OF BEENYA LIMITED AMD SUBLIARIES

MOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS fcontinuved)

FOR THE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER 2516

1%, (a} PROPERTY AND EOUIRMENT-GROUP Capital Oftice machinery
Freghofd 1and & wark-in Surniture &

buirdings progress Fietures equipment Mator vehicies computers Tota
COBT/VALUATHOIN KShs 000 K5hs'000 KShs'000 KShs' 00O K.5hs'000 K5hs'000 K.5hs DD
At 1 Janypary 2015 1,387 097 1627508 T.019,830 2,054,608 182993 5,684,612 18,556,738
Additions - Bhe, 220 4034 £3,394 1.7832 5,660 631,009
Disposals - - - £4,404) (h658) (58,590 (68 &52)
Reciassificatian ta irtangibie assets
[nate 17(a1» [165,141) - - - {165,141}
Transfers - (1206322 334,970 Bl 124 - &l1.228 -
Exchange difference on transiation - (125457 - (473,780 (31,044) (96,5323 (726,813)
Write aff - - (97 538 - - - (97,538
At 3t Decemnber 2015 1,387,097 636,904 T.HB:1,296 1,719,942 148 D76 6,375,376 18,129,693
GEFRECIATITDN
At 1 January 2015 102,000 - 1,558,513 1,155,403 113016 1,548,108 8,478,040
Charge for tne uea” 51,500 876,777 167177 16,626 Flidpa 1,825 444
Disposa's - - (4,399 {35623 (h7.R32) (65,497
Exchange dilTerence on transiation - - [ird B2 13 {7,794 (24203 04,818
Writo off e - —_— - (34,258 - — ' S (24,2583
At 21 December 2015 154, 5040 - 4,401,032 1,255,360 118,286 4,179, 73T 10,108 915
ME™ CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2015 1,232,597 626,904 2.46b.264 454,582 29,790 2,196,641 8,020,778
iy Capitarwark-in-proqgress represents argaing censtruction wark at the various branches af the Bank.
HIN Land and Buiicings were revawed an apen market waie basis by prafessiondl udmers (Manciem Valeers) as at 21 Decembes 2012, The reswiting surpius on revaluabion

was adjusted to ngak vaiees of tne proparties and cradited ta revaluation reserve. If 1ang and building were measured using the cast model, the net <arryng amount waud

nave begn K3ks 1,209 516 (2014: Kans 1,372,016

Giiy  Freehod and and buildings are revalugd every fnree wuears. Freeghoid 1and and puildings moiodes an amaunt of KShs 25,495 498 (2014- KSns 35,496,498 aganst

which na depreciat:on has been charged, as these are prieces 0 lapd,
Livy Mo dep-ecratian has beer charged in arriving at the resuits for the year in respect of certain futy dedgreciated property and equiprment with a3 cast of KShs

4,119, 728,390{2014- K5hs 3,101,893,8048), which are stin in use, If depreciatian had deen chargep during the year o fne cost of these assets at narman rates, it

weule have amaunted ta KShs 760,549 466 (2014- KShs, 594, B35,351 )

Iyl Capitar Warks in pragress, intangibie assets had been pasted to Capital warks in pragress, propefty, piant & equipment, Recassiticatian is ta remave the amaunt

relating tc cwip-irtangitie assets fram cwip-praperty, piant & equipment.

N The write off reiates to decammissianing af Gagarett: aranch.

TE



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENY A LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contimued}

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20146

19,00}

FROPERTY AND ECQLUIPMENT-BANK

COST/VALUATION

Atl Jaruary 2016

Adddions

Dispnsals

Reclassification of Work in Progress
Transfer rom Werk i Progress
Write offs

Tranzfer

Revaldation

Reclassification from intatgible
desetalinote 17IE)

At 31 Oecember 2016
DEPRECIATION

At 1 Jaruary 2016

Charge for the yea-

Qisposals

T-ansfars

At 31 Oecember 2018

HET CARRYING AMOUNT

At 31 Oecember 2014

Freehold

fand &
buildings
KShs"000D

1,387,097

(205,990
1,227,693

2,408,791

154,50
51,500

(205 929)

2,408,791

Capital work-in

progress
KEhs'DOD

606,881
a7 354

39,74
(672,231
(51,537

11,07
435 085

435 DRG

Fiztures
KShs"000

T.B60,659
1R 494
(BR.BHD)

292,156
(41,203

B,038,219
4,400,058
Ach.54%
(B5 4677

5,181,929

2,856,259

Office
machinery
Jurnlkture &
equipment
KShs' 0

1,519,515
&4, 14k
(LI.B51]

1,27C

1,575,479

1,208,763
137,908
17 A5H)

l.jéﬁ.ﬂlE

240,467

(i3 Capita! work-in-progress repredenks ongaing canstruction wark at the varigws hranches of the 8ark.
i} Thewrite offs relate to abandoned prajects that were written aff during the year,

(i} Land and Buldings were revamed gn open markel vae basis Dy professianal vaers (NW Realite Limited, Seven Oegrees North Valwers, Kiragu and Mwangi
Valuers and Afrilanc Va'uers Limited) as at 31 Qecemnber 20LE, The resulling surplus an revaluahon was adjusted to book valuos of the praperties ard credifed to
revalbation rese~ve. If land and buiding were measdred Jsing the cost model, t9e net car-ying amount would haue 9een KShs 1,218.014 (2015; KShs

1.2469.514).

Metar
wvehigles Cormputers Total
KShs 000 KShs 00 KShs'000
140,490 £,3%1,882 17 84k 524
- ThR,1T73 629,371
- (35,4971 (136,512
- 39,724
- 375,805 .
- (123,0400
- 205,999
1,227 693
- - T1,072
10490 5,749 B89 15 348 R332
115,654 4,154 770 10,033,780
10,547 AR EL9 1,834,722
(31053 (131,389
- (205,999
126,631 4,587 545 11,531 119
13,851 1,862 304 T.B1T7,T15

[y Fregbowd 1and and buildings are ravaed every three years. Freghald land ane buildings includes arn amaont of BShs 3% 495 A948 (2016- K5hs, 36 435 408)
ggamst which ra depreciatian has heen charged. as these are pieces of 1and.

(w1 Mo deprecigbion has Been charged i arriving at the resalts for tNe year in respact of certain fuly deprediated prope-ty and eqaipment with @ cost of Ksns.

5,496 487 FA5 (2E15-KSns 4,119,728,390), which are stilin use. 1f depreciation had Deen eharged during the yeas an the cost ot these assets at mo-mal rates,
i- would have amaunted to KShs BRR, 306,140 (2015 - Khhs TRO, 549 46,
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THE CI-DPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITEDR AND SURSIDIARICS
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIGATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (centinued)
FOR THE YEAR £NDED 31 DECEMBER 20148

19, (k)

PROFPERTY AND EQUIPMENT-BANK

Office
Freshgld machinery
land & Capital work-in Jfurniture & Motor

buildings progress Fixtures equlpment vehicles Computers Tatal

K s O KShs 000 K5hs D00 K5hs'D00 KShe' G0k K.Shs 00D K5hs'0D0
COST/VALUATION
At 1 Janyary 2015 1,387,097 1,460,147 T.61% 123 1,038,725 142,913 5,542 602 17,590,677
Additigns - A75,57T5 4034 72997 - 33149 583 755
Cispasals (4,404 (2,423 (58,402 (65,22
Reclassification to irtangible
assetsdingte 17 (165,141 - - - - (165,141)
T-ansfer ‘rom WIP (L.IAL,TOm A3A9T0 12,197 - Bl4,533 -
Wrte Off - 497, 538) - : (97.538)
At 31 December 2D15 1,387,097 . 50e.REL 7880659 1,519,515 140,450 6,331,88% 17,846,524
DEFRECIATIDN
At 1 Jamuary 2015 143,000 - 3,557,539 1,066,958 143,062 3.506275 8 335,844
Chrarge far tne year- 51,500 BTG, 777 16,194 15 C45 05,942 1,795,458
Disposa's - [4,39%) 2,423} 157.438) (64,2602
Write Ol e - (34, 25R) - el _ {34 Z58)
At 31 December 2015 154,500 - 4,430,058 1,208,763 115,684 4.154 7w 10,033,784
HET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2015 1,232,597 608,881 3.460,601 J10, 752 24 B06 2,177,103 T.812,7440

(y  Capitalwork-in-progress raprasants ongeing construction work at the uarious branches afthe Bank.

Gir Land and Bundings were revalyed on gpen maket value basis by professianal valuers (Manclem Valversy as at 21 Secember 2012, The resuiting surplus an
revaluatian was adjusted to beok vales af the properties and credited to revaluation reserve. f land and buiding were measured using the Cost model, the nat
carrying amaunt would haue been Kohs 1,26%9,516(2014: KShs 1,321,016,

iy Freehcld land and buildngs are revalued every three vears. Freshoid land and boildings intigdes an amount of K5hs 35 496 498 (2014- KSRy, 35,296, A%8)
against which no depreciatior mas been charged, as these are pieces of land.

{ivd Nz deprecatien has heesn charged in arriving at the resubs for the year in respect of certain “ully depreciated preperty and equipment with a cost of KShs.
4,119.728,390 (2014- K5hs 3,101 893,807, whaohare st in use. (f depreciation mad been charged during the year on the cost ar thete atsets at narmal rates,
it weule have amaunted (o KShs TAC, 549,466 (2014 - K5hs 394 B35, 351),

o



THE CD-DPERATIVE BANKE DF KEMYA LIMITED AMD SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (canlinued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

20, DEFERRED TaAX

2L,

The fatlowing table shows deferred tas recorded on the statement of financial position in other
asseis and other Habilittes and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

GRGUP

Coltective allowance for impairmeant
disallowed for tax purposes
Revaluation surplus

Excess of tax wear and tear allowanre
over depreciation

Unrealised exchange gains

QOther tamporary differences

Tax Inss availablbe lor future tax reliel

BAMHK

Cofective allowance for impairment
disallowed for tax purposes
Revaluation surplus

Excess of tax wear and tear alwwance
gver depreciation

Unrealised exchange gams

Other temprrary differences

DEPGSITS AND BALANCES DUE TO BANKS

Lacal banks
Foreign banks

2D1e
Deferred tax
assets
KShs'BOO

(934,213
457,647

(1027 828
451,142
{44, 254)

(1.067,.506)

2016
Peferred tax
assets

KShs'000

(918,397}
437,647

{1.029.830)
481,142
41,759

(1,051,197

Group

20116
K5hs'000

3,401,828
10,149

3411977

2016

Profit
or hpss
KShs'DD0

{164 0333

(292,057)
{83,043
{1b,547%)

(545, 6B0)

2016
Profit
or lass

KShs'DDD
(15B.696)

(292,497
(83,043
B,654)

(542,B90)

2015
¥5hs'D0G

2,914,082
507,137

3421 219

D15
beferred tax
asseis
KShs'(00

(770, 1800
B3 340

(725,771}
5ed, 185
(33,707}

78

{886,055}

2015
Deferred tax
assels
KShs'DDD

{759,701}
82,340

(737,333
564.185
33,105

(8766143

EBank
2016
K Shae GO0

2,292,744
143,149

3402893

2015
Profit

or |oss
KShs'DoD

£152,871)
2,721

(310,276)
203,663
(5221

(267,420}

2015
Prafit

or Hss
KEhs'D0OD

{152 B71)
(2,721}

{310,276}
203,663
{5,253

(267.457)

2015
¥ShsDOD

2,863,659
41,716

2,905,405

The weighted average effective interest rale on deposits from other banks at 31 Oecember 2016 was B.75%

(2015 8.5%).
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BAME OF KENYA LIMITED AMD SUBSIQIARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOQLIBATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDEQ 31 QECEMBER 2016

22, CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2OLS
(ay Deposit category K3hs' D00 K5 hs ' D0 K5hs'800 K5hs' 000
Call deposits £.35,085 13,491 629 &, 045 B8 13,491,629
Fixed deposits 68,940 819 86,074,584 6B.921,330 86,074, 584
Transaction accounts 106, 3B9.639 72027 B38 106,389 639 72.006 3B9
Savings accounts 7,282,024 6.431 065 7,280 356 6,431,065
Current accounts 60 276,632 o8 454, 6BB 09 616,101 68,154 GEB
Foraign currency
deposits 11,219,238 18918.7B3 11,219,238 17,251,060
260,153 437 265,398,587 259,471,749 263,709 415
{b} From government
and parastatals:-
Fayable on demaned 17,592 364 19, 14B 67TB 17,592 364 19,148,678
Payable within 30
days 2,965 L63 4,606,595 2,965,163 4,605,595
Payatxe after 30 days
but within 1 year 19,461,284 20,350, BB 4 19,461,284 20.350.884
40.01BEB11 44,186,157 40,018 811 44,106,157
{eYFrom private sector
and tndividuals:-
Payable on demand 15B. 511,363 131 832,348 157,849,164 131,826,650
z::gble within 30 10,617,020 13,485,247 10,617,020  11,808.730
Payable after 30 days
but within 1 year S1.0D06,244 75 974, B35 50,9Ba6, 754 7h Y47 878
220,134,626 221,292,438 219,452,938 219,603,258
25,153,437 265,398 587 259,471,749 263,709,415

Inciuded in customers” deposits is an amount of KShs, 7,098 Million (2015- KShs 6,B97 Mitlion}
that has been pledged to the Bank by customers as security for loans and agvances, The
weighted auerage effectrve nterest rate on interest-bearing customer deposits as at 31
December 8.83% (2015- 5.05%), '

Az



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANEK OF KEMYA LIMITES AMD SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued}
FDR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

23.

LOANS AND BORRODWINGS
The Bank has received 1ans For anward lending to specilic customer seqments as follows:

Group & Bank

216 2015
Balances at 31 December KShs oG KShs'000
IFAD 38,636 7. 736
Gk (nformal Sector Enferprises) - 255,437
DEG 4,333,574 5401, 669
Imtermational Fimance Carparaticn ((FCY & 0595 379 4472558
European Investment Bank 2,279,659 59,434 539
AFD Microfinance & line af credit 4,040, 549 3,669 273
KFYW Loan -5IPMK 65,163 -
19,813,260 19,271,212
Mavement in the year:
At 1 Jamuary 19,271,212 18,269 487
Additional lgan disbur semeant 6,007 B84 1,0086, 700
Accrugd interest 131,026 207, 650
Loan Repayment (5,465 663) (1B20,7327)
Foreign exchange diffaronce {131,253 1,552,035
Roversal of Seros Fund . (23,873
Al 31 Decemiber 19,813,260 19,271,212

Internaticnal Fund for Agricuitural Develgpment {IFAD}

The |can agreement was entered into in 2003 between Lhe Gavernment of Kenya-Ministry of
Agriculture and The Co-cperative Bank of Kenya Limited Far a loan af KShs 20 million under the
Easlern Produce Horticultural and Traditionar Facd Crops Project. The laan amaunt @and interest shall
be repadid ta the government in arne tumg sum when the project comes to an end. The loan altracts a
fixed interost of 3% p.a.

GoK {nforman Sector Enterprises)

The laan agreement was entered inko in 2011 between the Government of Kenya-Ministry of Finance
and The cCg-gperative Bank of Kenya Limited for a loan of KShs 250 milgn for onward 1ending
through the Bank™s subiets te create an emabling business epvironment for the infarmal sector
enterprises (ISEs). The loan amount is payable to the government over a pericd of 4 years in annual
instalments. The loan attracted an interest of 4% p.a. on reducing barance, The (oan was funy paid by
end of year 2D146,

European Investment Bank

Twa loan agreements for Euras 20 million and Euros 5D milbon were entered into in Aprn 2012
betwaen the Eurggean Investment Bank and The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited, The loans were
to be disbursed upon reguest for onward lending to micrn and small enterprises including self-
employed entrepreneurs and sale proprietorships in inceme generating activities and productive
sectors such as trade, retail, agro industres, fshing, fead processing, manofacturing, construction
transport, tourism, The interest an the first loan ¢f Euros 20 millier is 1.56% plus & currency risk
premium of 6.00% and the second loan of Eurgs 5¢ million is 2.43% plus a currency risk premwm
determined pver a period of time, As at end of 2014, Euros 55 million had been disbursed to the
Lank. .The 20 million Eurns woan matured in year 2016 and fuly repaid. The Igans are te be repaid
oyer a period of 1D years.

=K



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK DF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued?
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 21 DECEMBER 2016

23.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Cantinued)
French Development Agency (AFD)

The hank entered intg agreement with AFD in 2011 for a credit facility at fixed rate of 3.25% %0
finance investments in the fields of sustaimable energy (energy efficiency & renewable energy)
projects. As at the end of year 2016, the amount disbursed to Lhe banh was S0 35, 710,16% The
Bank secured an additional credit facility of USD 50 Millkon in year 2016 and the first drawdown of
50 B Millien received within the year.,

international Finance Carporation

The Ipan agreement was entered intp on 5 December 2012 hetween international Finance
Corporation and the Co-operative bank of Kenya Limited For a total of USD &0 Miltion. The purnose of
the lpan is te support the hank's asset growth and 0 particular, financing the smaill and mediom
enterprises as well as the agribusiness sector.

The loan has an element of fised and variable interest rate which is pegged to the LIBOR rate,
Repayment shall be in eleven (11) equal semi-annual instalments starting December 2013, The 1st
disbursement of Us0 30M was in March 2013, and the 2nd in March 2014, By 31 December 2016,
the bank had drawn U0 &0 Million from this facility.

In Decembear 2015 the Dank entered into agreement with IFC for @ senior unsecured Ingn of UsS0D 105
Million to finance the growth of SMEs portfolio, WOEs portfolio and affordabie housing through
expansion of mortgage & construction finance, The laan has an element of fixed and variable inberest
rate which s peqoed to the LIBOR rate. The loan has a maturity period of 7 years and a 2 year grace
period on principal repayment. As at the end of year 2016 the bank had received a drawdown of USD
24 Millian.

DEG - Deutsche investitions: Und Enbwickiungsgesellschaft Mbh

The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited signed a financing agreement with DEG  Dedtsche
Investitions - Und Entwicklungsgeseitschaft Mbh of the Federal Repubtic of Germany in December
2013, The loan facility of USD 52,500 000 was disbursed in 2014, The facility is for onward
lending Lo small and medium-sized enterprices, The loan will be repaid in 10 instalments ending in
2020, The agreement has an arrangement for interest computation on flgating rate basis (pegged
on LIBOR) gr a fixed rate option Based on mutual agreement.

KFW Loan-3iPMK Smali holder Irrigation Programme Mt, Kenya Region

The Government of Kenya signed a Loan Agreement and Financing Agreement on September 23,
2004, with KFW Frankfurt to make available to Covernment a credit of 4.6 Mitlion for Smatlholder
Irrigation Programme in Mt, Kenya Region, Part of the credit was to Be provided (o one or more
commercial banks. In 2007, the Bank signed an agreement with the Government of Kenya where the
Lank was Lo finance  smatholder irrigation development in the ME Kepya Region by offering credit
facilities to project developers in order to enabe them caver the investments costs for the
infrastructure,

Under the SIPMK agreement  the reimbursement received brom the Government was on a S0% grant
and 50% loan hasis.

B4



THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
WOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENBEDQ 31 bFCEMBER 2016

24 TAXATION Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
HShs'QDD K5hs 000 KShs'000 K5hs'0DO

(a) Income Statement:-
Current tax at 30% on The tarahle

profit for the year 5,598 455 3,350,622 5511732 3.872.280
Cwver provision in previous year (2,791 (5,563 - {5663
Oelerred tax (credity / charge {548 342) {267,426} (542,890 (267,457)

5047,322  3,67T.532 4,968,841 3,599,860
() Statement of financial position:-

Balance beought forward 171,328 149,821 157 596 129,171
Owver-provision in preuious year {2,791 (2.663) - {5.663)
Charge for the year 5, 553,458 3950622 5511,732 3872980
Paid during the year (4,545 970 (3,223 452 (4,420,630 (3,838,892
Tax payable 1,221,025 171,328 1,248,698 157,596

(CIReconciliation of tax expense to
tax based on accounting proflt:-

Accounting profit 17,723,533 15383097 18,020,404 14,071,458
Tax applicatile rate at 30% £.317,060 4614978 5,406,121 4,221 437
Over-provision in previous year (2,791 (5,663 - (5,663
Tax lass lol . B&0 3,397 - -
Eschange differences an

translation 68,290

Tax effect of items not eligible for

tax (437 DBT) (53B,129) (437, ZB0) 6l155914)

Tax in the statement of
comprehensive income 5,047,322 3,677,532 4,968,841 3,593,860

The carporatiton tax rate appicable to the Bank and subsidiaries and associates is 30% except for
Co-operative Sank of South Sudan charged at a rate of 10-25% depanding on the revenve of the tax

payer,

[terms not eligible for tax relates to items disallowed for purpose of calculating the income tax in
accordance with the Income Tax Act.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KEMY A LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES T THE CONSOLIQATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS écontinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2016

Group Bank
25.  PROVISIONS 2016 2015 20186 2015
K5hs'000 K Shs GO KShs'000 K5hs 000
Leave liability 141,282 110,191 139,198 110,130
Balance at 1 January t10.191 53,570 110,190 92 840
Movement through profit or 1gss 31,091 16,621 29,008 17,380
Balance at 31 Jecember 141,282 116,191 135,198 119,190

This provision is for obligations in respect of annval leave gntitlements not taken as at close of the
period, The amount has been accrued at remuneration rates expected to apply whin the gbligation is

settled.
26.  QTHER LIABILITIES Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
KShe'000  KGhs'DOO KShs'DOO KShs*ODD
Bills payable 2. 63B.567 QgQ, 285 2593121 792 702
Sundry creditars and accruals 3,330,063 3,216,418 2 283 396 3,292 513

5968,630 4,308,703 5,876,131 4,085,215

Bills payakie, svndry creditors and acgruals are payable on demand and are non-interest bearing,

27, GOVERMMENT GRAMTS Group and Bank
2la 2015
Grank net of amartisalbion: KShs' Q00 K5hs Q00
At 1 January 517,317 535,732
Arngrtisation for the year (18,475 £18.475)
At 31 fecember 498,842 517.317

The grants relate to rehakilitation work on Co-operative House financed by USAID following the
August, 199E bomb blast. The grant is amortised in line with the depreciation on the building. The
grant is amortised for the same period of the building since it was part of the cost to reconstruct the
Bruilding .

28. SHARE CAPITAL
Group gnd Bank

2018 2015

K5hs' 000 KShs' Q00
Authorised -
5,000,000 000 (2014; 5,000,300, 000} ordinary shares
of K5hs 1 each. 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully pald:-
4 B85 318,295 (2014 4,885 318,295 ordinary shares
of khhs 1 each, 4,BB5,317 4,889,317
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THE CO-QPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
tWDFES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

249,

ao.

3.

SHARE PREMIUM

These reserves arose in 2008 when the Bank issued 557 242 300 new shares through an Initial
Public Offering. The shares, with a par ualue of KShs 1 were issued at KShs 9,50, These reseryves
may be applied towards capital in the future.

Group and Bank

2016 2015

KShs'DOD KShs'O00

At 1 Janary 2,889 789 2,889 789
At 31 December 2,889,789 2,889,789

RESERYES

(a) Revaluation reserve
The revaiuation reserve is used to record increases in the fair value of tand and buildings and
decraases to the extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same asset previausly
reconnised in eguity. Revaluation reserves are not distributable.

(k) Retained earnings
This reserve includes accurmulated profits over the years. Fhe retained earnings are
distributable to the sharehoiders.

fcy Availabie for sale reserve
This comprises changes in fair value on availabte-for-sale investments, exciuding impairment
l[osses, until the net investment is derecoanised. This reserve is not distributable as it relates to
unrealised fair value changes.

{d} Statviory reserve
Where impairment msses required by legisiation or regulations exceed those computed under
International Financial Reporting 5tandards (IFRS), the excess is recognised as 4 statutory
reserye and accounted for as an appropriation of retained earninos. Fhis reserve is not
distributable.

(e) Forelgncurrency transiation reserve
The reserves represent exchange differences arising from transiation of the net assets of the
Group's Foreign gperations in the Co-gperative Bamk of South Sudan from their functional
currency (3outh Sudan pounds), to the Group's presentation currency (Kenya shillings). Fhese
differences are recoonised directly through ather comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foredgn currency transiation reserve in gauity, The reserve is not auailable Tor distributien
to the sharehoiders,

PROPOSED DoV IDENDS ANP DiVIDENDS PER SHARE
Group and Bank

2016 2015
KShs'000 KShs' Q00
Proposed dividends 3,911,453 3,911,453

{ir Dividend per share is arrived al by dividing the total dividends by the weighted average
number of shares in issUe during the year,

(i} Proposed dividends are accounted for as a separate component of eguity at year end until
they are ratified at an Annual General Meeting (AGM}. At the AGM Lo approue year 2D16
finangial statements, a first and final dividend in respect of year 2D1& of KShs 0.80 (2015 -
#5hs D.BOY for evary ordinary share of KShs 1 is to be propoased by the directors and is
subject bo approval by shareholders.

(i} Paurment of dividend is subject to withhoding tax at the rate of 5% fer residents and 10% for
nan-resident sharenmders.
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIQIARIES
WOTES TO THE CONSOQUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS {continued?
FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 DECEMBER 2016

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(al

{4

Kingdom Securitles Limited
Kingdom Securities Limited {previously named Bok Mathews StackbBrokers Limited) was
acquired in 2009 by The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited thraugh the purchase of &0%
sharehaldimg. The comparny affers brokerage secvices and s a registered Broker with the
Wairahi Securities Exchange.

Co-operative Bank of South Sudan

Co-operative Bank of South Sudan was regesterad in partnership with the Government of Sauth
Sudanp which halds 49% of the ardwary shares. The Bank holds 51% of Lhe ordimary shares. The
Subsidiary is based in 5auth Sudan and affers banking services.

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is prouvided belew, This
information is based on amaunts befare mter-company eliminationg.

Summarised statement of profit or loss for;-

Kingdom Securities Co-operative Bank of
Limited Bouth Sudan

2016 2015 2016 2015
KShs'DDH)  KShs'000 KShs'Q00 KShs'000
interest and ather inCcame Al 856 75.045 769,117 1,864,154
interest and Commission expenses (1,392 (4,313 {46,159} {22,132}
&0, 454 70,732 722958 1,642 022
Operating expenses (BO.&628) (69,158) {866,787 (1,089,084)
Loss on net monetary pesition - - 425,749y -
Prafit / (lass) befare tax (20,164) 1574 {559 5T7H) 52936
Share of profit from an associate - - TR084 96,784
tncame tax expense 1,714 234 - -
Prafit / {lass) far the year (16,4503 1,340 {499 ,4943 642,720
Gther comprehensive income (27,387} 26, B4 1,172 23,295
Total camprehensive income (45,837 27.584 {458,324} B72.015

Attributakle ta nen-cantraliing
miterests (18,3353 11,194 {244,179) 430,717

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 Qecember

Kingdom Securities Ca-aperative Bank of
Limited South Sudan
2016 20115 2016 2015
KShs'O00D K5Shs'D0D KShs'000 KShs'00n
Current asseks 247,712 309 376 1.773.256 2,943,914
Nan-current Assets 37.14% 34,235 1,109,606 411,213
currant liakilities (60, 206) (63,1237 1,494 F7F3) 2,750,762
Total equity 234,652 ZB0,486 1,368, 7B 604,365
Attributakle to-
Equity helders of the parent 140,791 168,293 06,027 8226
Non-cantroding interast 231,661 1i2,195 660,261 296,139
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3z.

33,

34,

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

{c) Hyperinflationary economies in South Sudan

With effect fram 2016, the South Sudanese econamy is considered to be hyperinflationary in
accordance with the criteria in International Accounting Standards (1AS) 29- Fingncial
Reparting in Hyperinflationary Economies

145 29 requires the financial statements of an entity whose functional currency is the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy, shall be stated in terms of the measuring unit current a2t the
end af the reporting peripd. The corresponding figures for the previous period and any
information in respect of earlier periods shall also be stated in terms of the measuring unit
current at the end af the reporting period. The management applied this stendard to prepare
the financial statements for the Co-Opergtive Bank of South Sudan. The carresponding figures
for the previgus reporting period were restated, Fobowing the application of 1AS 29, the
subisidiary recarded a 1055 an net monetary position of K5hs 426 millign, In the application of
1AS 29, the Group used conversion coefficients derived from the consumer price index (CPI)Y in
the Republic of South Sudan. CPIs and the corresponding conversion coefficients are presented

brelow:
Conyersign
Period CPl coefficient
CPI as at 31 December 2015 438.80 &
Avarage CPlin 2016 1574.18 .
CPl as at 31 December 2016 279872 1
INTEREZT INCOME Group Bank
2015 2015 2016 2015
KShs'0i0 KShs' D00 KShs'000 Kshs'000D
Lixans and advances {0 custimers 33,345,409 79,997,981 33 228,373 29,803,934
Held-to-maturity investments 3,432 600 2,577,694 3,415 876 2,560, 494
Deposits and balances due from other
panks 391,319 664,820 356,476 604,321
Interest on previously impaired loans 180 479 129 544 180,479 129,544
37,349 857 33,370,039 37,181,204 33,098,293
INTEREST EXFPEMSE
Group Bank
2016 2015 2015 2015
KShs'000 KShs'000 K&Shs"000 KEhs' D00
Call deposits 894,483 1,737,325 853,427 1,737,325
Fixed deposits 9,054,999 8,802,385 9,054,999 8,602,365
Savings atcounts 517,173 1,522,538 517,173 958,078
Current accounts 1,191,760 263,858 1,191,780 806,246
Deposits and balances due to banks 117,980 232,602 117,980 232,602
Loans 991,905 1,028,213 991,905 1028213
12,768,300 13,585,911 12,727,244 13,564,779
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIQIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 OECEMEER 2014
35. FEES AND COMMISSIONS
Fees and commissions income:
Fees and commissions o loans and
advances

Ledger tees & service charges
Other fees and commissions

Fees and cammissions exXpense;
inter-pank transaction charges
Brokerage fees

Met fees and commissions Income

36. WET TRADING INCOME

Foreign exchange gain

Interest income on investment securities:

-Avaiiable for sake

-Hald-for-trading

Changes in fair value of financial assets
heid-for-trading

Amortisation of fingngial instruments

Amortisation of financial instruments relate to held-to-maturity investments,

37. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(Loss¥aain on disposal ot property and
equipment

Dividend income

Rental income

Loan recoveriss

Gain an sale of finangial assets available-

for-zale

Amortisation of Treazury Bilts
Interest received repo placement
sundry Ingome”

Graup
2016 2015
KShs'DO0 KShs'DOD
2,330,859 2,495 441
1,227,381 1,253,129
6,229,769 2. 723264
9,787,509 9,501,834
23% 165 B3,627T
9,317 4,317
248 4R2 57,944
529,027 9,443,890
Group
2016 2015
KShs'DAaD KShs'DAaD
1836876 3,192,469
3,481 698 2,244 924
16 5O
1 -
(41,231) (24, 950)
277,360 5,412,502

Group

2016
KShs QDO

(19,806}

uT,a00
33928

217.576
1,654,777
96,507
773,629

2,854,511

2015
K5hs'0D0

(25,101}

84,670
30,821

5,785
B4z,058
107,233
986,318

1,731,784

Bank
2016 2015
KShs'DO0 KShs'DDO
2,330,859 2,339,680
1,158,954 1,045,411
5,328 257 5,262 E44
g8,818.080 B&47 735
239,165 53,627
Q. 317 4 317
248 482 57,044
8,565,508 8,589,791
gank
2016 2015
KW5hs' D00 KShs'DOD
1,635,962 L.B8Q 616
3,481,698 2.244924
16 1)
1 -
(41,2313 £24 950
076,446 4,100,649
Bank
2016 2015
KShs'000 KShs"0DD
(19,806} (25,101
73001 69,407
o7.900 84 £70
33,928 30,821
217576 5,785
1,654,777 472 058
96,507 107,233
S T38.834 970 al1A
2892717 1,785, aB9

* Sundry income relates te income generated from the Bank's tiduciary and share registration

seryices.
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THE CO-DIPERATIVE BAMEK DF KEMY A LIMITED AMD SUBSIBIARIES
NOTES TG THE COMSDLIDATEQ FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENQED 31 DECEMBER 2D1&

38, EMPLOYEE COSTS Group Bank
201& 2015 2016 2015
KShs'000 KShs' 000 K.Shs D00 KShs' 000
Basic salaries 7 7658010 V513319 7,480,335 7,093,853
Allowances 435 592 468, 645 409,444 448 992
Pension scherme contribution
- Btatutory Bcheme B.778 3,605 8.5%2 3532
- Employes Scheme 544 083 154 87 525,553 A4, 827
Medical expenses 146,324 135,649 141,83& 130,769
Educatian and training 104,115 113,950 102 246 111,780
Earby retirement fost . 1,908 - 1,908
Others 398,748 235,165 276,780 167 470

2,403,441 84,927,128 8,944,786 0,410,131

The number of employees at the year-

end was: 2016 2015 2D1& 2015
Management 452 419 435 381
Supervisory and uninnisable 2,955 3,225 2,903 2086
Others 336 49 242 42
3,743 3,693 3,580 3,503

39, OTHER CPERATIMG EXPENSES Group Bank
2016 2015 201G 2015

KEhs'000 KEhs' 000 KShs'000 K.3hs"000

Rent and maintenance casts for

branch premises 1,511,417 1,568,536 1,420,959 1,409,932
Motar vehicle running & other

equipment maintenance 1.305.494 1,197 3p2 1,265,451 1,157,173
Etationery and printing &45 480 660,240 636,908 A0, 853
Travelling and insurandge 596,509 643,875 538013 230,642
Telephane, pastage, electricity and 655,919 S43,577

water £37.643 &75073
Contritrtian ta Geposit Pratection 361012 361012

Fumd 303,163 203,163
Qirectars' gmaluments 163,742 193,413 115,861 152,273
Auditors' remuneration 17,182 15.668 11,418 10,752
Lass on et monetary position 425 749 - - -
Cther operating and administrative

BAPENSES 4,936,513 2,949,414 4195577 2619684

10,219,017  B,21%9,255 49,168,736 7,365,045
40. 8ASIC ANDDILUTED EARMNINGS FER SHARE
The calculation of hasic earnings per share for the Group and the Bank is based on the year's protit
attributabyie to equity holders of the parent and the weinohted average nvmber of ordinary shaes

outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share it calculated by adjusting the weighted average nembBer of ordinary shares
outstanding ko assume canversion af all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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THE CC-CFPERATIVE BANK BF KENY A LIMITED AND SUBSIOIARIES
NOTES T THE CONSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

40,

41.

BASIC AMNO DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE {Continued)

The Bank is propasing to existing shareholders a bonus share in the proporbion of one (1) new ordinary
share of KShs 1 each for every five (5 ordinary shares then held. This will result in capitalisation of K5hs
977 . B563,356%9 out of share premium of the Bank, to create 977,863,369 bonus shares toe be distributed
among the ordinary sharehelders. The bonus issue will be subject to the Bank receiving all requisite
approvars including approvals from the Capital Markets Autherity and the shareholders of the Bank at the

Annual Gener al Meeting to be heid in May 2017,

Group
2018 2015
Frofit for the year attributable te equity
holder of the parent (KShs' DO} 12,947,620 11,298,769
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for basic earnings per share {Thousands) 4 889,318 4 889,318
Weighted average number of crdinary shares
for diluted earnings per share (Thousands) 5.8&47,1BD 5,B67, 1BD
Basic earnings per share {K5hs) 2.65 2.31
Diluted earnings per share (K Shs) 2.21 1.92
COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Available for sale investments Group
2016 2015
K&hs' 000 KShs' 000
Gainsf{lessesy arising during the year B64.B43 1.0%2.447
Amortization of discount to profit or loss (301,686} 397,139
Reclassification during the year to profit or
1055 137 B5E {463,092)
701,015 1,026,494

Bark

2016

2015

13,071,198 10,471,590

48893115 4,889,318
2867 1B0 5,867,180
267 2.14

2.23 1.78

Bank

2b1& 2015
K5hs'00D KEhs' 000
Q17,863 1.D92 447
(301,6B68) 397,139
137 BB (000,779
724,035 1,048,807

The changes in fair value are not subject to income tax. The gams f {losses) haue been taxed through

profit or loss,
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THE CO-OPERATIVE $ANK OF KEMYA LIMITED AMD SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE COMSOE I0ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2016

42, MOTES TO THE STATEMENT O CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of profit before tazation to cash generated from operations

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:-
Prafit before tax

Adjustments for:-

Cepreciation

Arnortizatian of prepaid ease
rentals

Write off property ano cquipment
Movement in pravisions
Lnreahsed exchange differences
Armartization of intangibee assots
Amortizaticn of capital grants
Loss f {gainy on disposal of
property and equipmenl
Changes infair value of financial
instruments held-for-trading
Share of profit in associates
Exchange difference on borrowings
Interesi oo ladus amd bonawingy
Loys on net moneiary position
Cash flows from aperating
activities before warking capital
changes

Advances to customers

Mher assets

Deposits fram custqmers
Deposits rram banks

Other liabilities

Central dank of Kemya cash reserye
rabq

Hetd-for-trading invesimernts
Availahe-far-sale investmeants
Derivative financial mstruments
Cash flows (used iny/ generated
fram aperating activities

Cash and ¢ash eguivalents comprises

of:-

Cash gn hand
Cash with Central 8ank af Kenya

Mate

19

15
1%

| iy
27

14
23
23

Deposits and batances due fram banking

institutiang

[tems in the course of collectian from gther

Banks

Less: CEBK Cash reserve rabio

Cashand cash equivalents

Group Bank
2014 2015 2014 2015
K5hs GO0 K5hs'0D0 KShs'DOD KShs'000
17,723,532 15,383,092 18,020,405 14.071,458
1,935,703 1,825,444 1,834,722 1,795,458
G612 a0& a1z &0
123,040 &3, 280 123,040 63,280
E93,468 2,715,302 HED, 260 2,603,770
{193,561) i260.244) {193,561} (2602443
485,505 353,950 447,371 377,961
(18,478 {18,475) {18.475} {18,475}
5,132 75T 5,123 958
2 2 z z
(97,546 (3B4,991) -
(131,259} 1,552,025 £131.25%) 1,852,035
131,088 207,650 131,088 207.650
425,749 - - -
21,753,990 21,485,408 71,108,328 70,544,029
{24,628 877 (31.B0L.B57) (24,584,918 ¢31,849,655)
(1,106,749} (3,542,010 (1,047,454 £3.501,309)
(5,245,150} 47,700,264 $4,237,556) 47 535,102
09,2423 261,775 457 488 (336,321
1,693,018 1,686,940 1,819,920 1,64B,253
535,640 (3,023,191} 450,909 (2,411,604
57 351 - 350
472,438 (8,578.874; 4,770,770 {8,527 .88%)
494,961 (430,1983 494,961 (430, 188)
(2,256,914) 23,558,506 (T17.6%2) 22,570,487
8,432,587 9,057,746 8,119,617 B8.880,988
17,249 715 20,397,945 16,333,101 18,292,557
o 017,303 12977,237 £,359,693 13,665,273
195,7%1] 384 161 195,791 384 161
30,995,796 43,817,089 30,013,402 41,427,079
(13,910,016 {14,448, 555 (13,37R,450) 13,837,359
L5, %85, 780 292,368,431 16,636,957 27, 589,720
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THE CCH-OIPERATIVE BAME OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDEARIES
WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENGED 31 DECEMEER 2D16

43, FRELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTEIQMNS

Fartips are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or sxercise
significant influence over the other parly in making financial or gperational decisions.,

(a)

Leans due from directors, employees and other related parties:-
Balances outstanding at the close of peried as advanced to directars, employecs of the &ank and
other related parties in the ordinary course of busingss 5 as follows :

U016 2018

KShs 000 KShs 000

Directors 277,346 302,146
Ermployees 7,543,400 6,596,839
7 820,746 &, 898,285

Interest income earned TO0,218 442 327
Weighted average interest rate T.0% &.58%

The lgans are secured by property mortgage and are repayable in a period less than 30 years, Mo
impairment losses have been recorded against Dalamces ouistanding during the period and no
specibic allewance has been made fer impairment [osses on balances at period end (2015-Ni} as
staff and directors are all active and currently in-service for the hank and recoveries are made
directly through payrall.

{b} Deposits received from directors, employees and other related parties:-
Batances held at the close of persed as received from directors, employees of the Bank and other
refated parties in the ordinary course of business is as follows :
2016 2015
KShs'00D K.Shs D00
Cirectors and Employess TH2.667 G93,82t
Subsidiaries and Associate companies 3,171.B4¢t 3,347,532
Interest e xpensed 40,440 40,587
Weighted average snkerest rate 6.95% 4.85%
(€} Inter-company batarnces and transactions:-

The financial statements include the tellowing balances refating to transactions entered into with
other group companies:

Banhk

Relationship 2016 2015
K.Shs OO0 K.Shs ' GO0

Due from:-
Co-optrust Inuestrment Services Limited Subcidiary - 1,198
Co-op Consultancy & Insurance Agency Ltd Subisidiary 9,085 3,379
Co-ophordings Co-operative Society Limited Farent 29.77Y 40,850
Co-operative Bank of South Sudan subisidiary 133,659 bO1, 379
172,523 lag,BO6
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THE CO-OPERATIVE BANK OF KENY A LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

43, FRELATED PARTY BALANCES AMD TRANS ACTIONS (continued)

{e}

Cd}

(e}

n

Inter-company balances and transactions:- Bank
Reilationship 2016 2015
KShs 000 KShs'D0D

insurange premium:-
Co-aperative Insurance Company Limilead Assoriate 49,769 3o, 821

All transactions with ralated parties are made on terms equivalent tao those that prevail in arm's
lengtiv transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and no guarantees have
been proviged of received from any related party. The Bank has not made any provision far
impairment Iosses on balances at perind end {201 5-nilk

Compensation of key management personnei

Group Bank

2016 2015 Z0E 2015%
K5hs'DOQ KShs'00D KShs 000 K5hs' 000

Chrectors emoiuments:
-Fees 143,116 118,000 B6, 2 7TH 8,420
-Others 20620 b 257 19135 28,761
163,742 148 257 115861 107,181

Senigr Managers:

-Shart-term employee benefits 862772 Gl &e5%e9 805,509 619,391
Post-employment pension 62 904 51,856 59 805 48,853
-Termination benafits 1,109 - 1,109 -
926,785 712,515 BEO, 423 BER, 244

Co-cperative Bank Foundatian

The Foundatian is a registered trust estabiished o assist bright needy students from the Co-
aperative mauement i paying school fees, In 2016, KShs 183,000,883 (2015-KShs
152 753,103) was dishursed to the Foundation, At 31 December 2016, the Foundation held
deposits of KShsl, 373,496 (2015 - KShs 1,148 353) with the Bank.

Co-gperative Banhk of Kenya Limlted 5taff Retirement Contelbutlon Seheme

This is a defined cantribution scheme and provides, under the rules af the seheme, relirement
benefits for the staff of Co-gperative Bank of Kenya Limited and its subsidiaries. The Group
cantributed KShs S46,060,375 (2015 - KShs 463 337 8607 as at 31 Dacember 2016, LUnder the
terms of their appointment, Co-optrust Investment Services Limited, a subsidiary of the Bank is
responsibie for the myvestmeant af funds,

Transactions during the year are as highlighted below and were at similar terms and conditians
as those offered L0 other customers:

2016 2015

KShs 00D K5hs' DO

Hent paid to the scheme on wased property A, 450 G, 450
Cividends paid an the Bank's ordinary shares 26,368 14,232

25



THE CO-QFPERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMEBER 20156

44, OFERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor:
Tha total future minimum (ease receivables due from tenants are as follows,

Group angd Bank

2016 2015

KShs"000 KShs 000

Within QOne year 126, 78E 64,823
Between 2 and 5 years 316,220 119,984
Over S years o226 14935
452,234 201,742

Leases are negotiated for an average term of six (6 yoars and rentals are reviewed every two (2)
¥2ars,

As lesses:
The total future minimum lease payments due ta third parties under non-cancellable operating lease
are as follows:

Group and Bank

45,

A6,

2016 2015

KShs QO K5hs' Q00

Within gneoyoar gre 092 oa3 A7D
Between 2 and S years 2,089,648 1,270,770
Ower 5 years 1,127,641 240 B56
4,196,381 2,581,105

Lease cammitments relate to lease rentals payable by the group for its leasehold properties and are

negotiated for an average term of six (6) years,

COMMITMENTS

{iv  Capilal: authorised and contracted for
(it Capital, Authorised and not contracted for
{itiy Loans committed but not disbursed at year end

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

{a) Mot recognised in statement of financial position

Letters of credit
Guarantees

Group and Bank

2016
KShs' 000

333,473
3,457,465

26,962,895

2015
KShs' 000

4,400
3,708,909

2.21%.833

Lroup and Bank

2016
K3hs'000

4,220013
7,545 206

12,465,919

2015
KShs'Q00

6,992 GEQ
2,310,672

12,509,752

These include Lellers of credit, guaranlees, acceptances, and other engagements entered into an

tenalf of customaers
o5



THE CO-GPRERATIVE BANK OF KENYA LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TG THE CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2316

46,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES {Coantinued)

(a}

(b}

Mot recognised In statement of financlal position (contlnued)

Guarantees are decuments written by the Bank to support perfermance by a custemer to third
parties. The bank will only be required to meel these ohngations in case of the customer's
detault,

Letters of credit commit the Bank to make payment to third parties, on preduction of
documents, which are subsequentiy relmbursed by customers,

An acceptance is an undertaking by the Bank te pay o bilt of exchange on a customer. Most
acceptances are presented and reimhursement by the customer is almost immediake,

Pending iegal suits

{1} Kenya Condinenta! Haldinas
This is an injunction application seeking to stop the Bank from selling the Company's security
alleging fraud and misrepresentaticn on the part of the Bank with a claim for special damages
tor alleged loss of gpportunities amounting to KShs 404,785,225, The Bank has a
counterciaim amounting to K%hs 521,218,439 against the debtor. The matter was siated for
a mention on 29 January 20316 bt the court was not sitting, The matter is slated for hearing
an 31st March, 27th and 2Bth June, 2017. The Borrower has aiso approached the Bank with
a view of having the matter settled out of court and the sellement offer is under
considerabion by the Bank,

(il} Baaz Mathews Cuma Awitl & Fhree ofhers
This is @ claim for KShs 31,864,120 against the Bank relating ko the sale and purchase of
shaves in Bob Mathews Stock Brokers Lld (new Kingdom Securitiez Limited). The Bank has
syuccassfully applied for and chtained a stay of proceedings and referral of the matter to
arbitration as por the terms of the Share purchase agreement, The plaintiffs haue not been
able to agree on an artitrater,

GiAfice Anyong Mumo & Offters vs. REA & Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited Retirement
Berefit Scheme, 2007 RBA Tribunal appeat no, B of 2013 (NB[}
This is an appeal against the RBA ruling dated 26 May 2011 confirming that member benatits
were duly paid in accordance with the applicable Trust Deed and Rutes. The ruling s in regard
te the initial claim filed with the Retirement Benefits Authority (RBA) under section 46 of the
RBEA Act alleging that the scheme had noet computed and paid the ex-skaff the correct
amounts, They claimed that the estimated amount allededly due bo them is approximately
KShs 2 hillicn. The ax-stalf being dissatisfied with the ruling appealad against the same citing
yvarious groeunds of appeal. The matter is pending for determination before the Tribunal.
Based on advice received from the Scheme Administrators and the Actuaries, no liability is
expecied Lo arise i Tuture in respect of this claim.

fivy Chadiah Muchew Vs The Co-operative Bamk of Kenya Limited

This is 3 claim whare the plaintiff was aduanced credit facilities totalling K3hs 1,105 000 and
defauited in the repayment of the cutstanding lighilities, The plaintiff requested the Bank to
allow the sale of one of the properties charded in favour of the Bank in ordes to settie the
oulstanding liabilities. The sale proceeds were insufficient to settle the outstanding liahikities
and hence the Bank could not release the land title unless the sutsianding liabilities were
sethled. The Bank subsegquently fisted the plaintiff with the Credit Reference Bureauw, The
customer aggrieved by the decision of the Bank is now Claiming KShs 215,880,000 being
special damages for toss of expected mcorme. The matter is siated for hearing on 2Bth March,
2017,

a7



THE CO-OPERATIVE BAMK OF KENYA LIMITED ANG SUBSIDIARIES
WOTES TG THE CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continueds
FOR THE YEAR ENCED 31 DECEMBER 2016

46,

47.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIEDS (Centinued)
(b} Pending legal suits

Mo provision has been made in these linancial statements for the abpve pending suits as based
on prafessional legal advice, the directors are of the opinion that no ligbdities are expected to
arise in future in respect of these Claims,

(c3 Excise duty on financial transactions

In 2016, the Kenya Revenue Autharity (KRA)Y demanded from the Bank tax amounting to K5hs
621,537,611 relating to alleged non-payment of exgise duty for the period 2013 to 2015, This
amount i made up of princlpal excise duty of KShs 495 403,544 and interest of KShs
126,134,067 as shown below:-

Frincipal Interest Total

Pesind Kk K5hs KShs
2013 134,213,458 51,167 844 185,381,302
2014 263,528 443 03,246 826 326,775,269
2015 97,661,643 11, 719,397 109,381,040
495,403,544 126,134,067 621,537,611

As at 31 December 201&, this amount had not been paid to KRA, The above interest amount is
cajcutated up to 2015 and exchudes any such amounts that may be demanded after this date.

The managemenl, through the tax agent, disputed the demand on factual and technical
grounds and the matter was referred to the Tox Appeals Tribunal, The subject aof the dispute is
industry-wide and the umbrella hody for the commeroial banks, the Kenya Bankers Associatinn
(HEBAY 15 in consultation with the KEA over the matter,

Mo provisien nas been made in these fingneial statements for the principal tax and interest
shvwrne above as the directors based on the advise by the tax consultant are of the opinion that
na liahility will arise,

FICUCIARY ACTIVITIES

The Group provides cuslody, trustee, corporate administration, investment management and
advisnry services to third parties, which involve the Group making allecation and purchass and sale
decisions in relation o a wide range of financial instruments. These financial instruments comprise
deposits with financial institutions, government securities and guoted and unguoted securities,
among others. Those assels thal are held in a fiduciary capacity are not mcluded in these financial
statements. Some of these arrangements involve the Group accepting targets for benchmark lavels
of returns for the assets under the Group's care. These services give rise to the risk that the Group
wilk be accused of matadministration or under-performance,

The Group at Custedial Services department holds asset on behall of cuslomers with a vatue of KShs
A5.210 billion (2015 - K5he 38583 bitlipn), The imcame fer the period for custodial services was
KShs 57.16B8 million {201%- KShs 44,45 millign} while the expenses amounted to Khhs 42.708
million (2015 K5hs 28.51 milican),

The Group, through Co-op Trust Investment Services Limited manages securities with a value of KShs
38,88 Billion (2015 KShs 39.9 hillion) en behalf of customers. The total income for the period from
fund management was KShs 123 28 million (2015 K5hs 137.80 million}, with total expenses
amopunting to Kshs 78.5 million {2015 - K5hs 74,13 million}.

a8



THE CO-QPERATIVE BANE OF KENYA LIMITED AMND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
fOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
A48. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
A3 at 31 December 2014, there wera no assets pledged by the Group to secure liakilities,

4%, HOLDING ENTITY

The holding entity of The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited is Co-op heddings Co-operative Society
timitedd incorporated in Kenya ungder the Co-operative Societies Act.

D, INCORPORATION
The Bank is incorporated in Kenya under the Companies Act.
51. CURRENCY

These financiar statements are presented i Kenya Shalings (KShs), and are rounded to the nearest
KShs 1,000,

52. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

The directors are not aware of events after the reporting date that require disciosure inoar
adjvstments to the financial statements as at the date of this report.
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
REFORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, In accordance with Section 42 of the Sixth Schedule, Transitional and Saving
Provisians, of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, this report has been prepared in accordance with
Section 157 of the repealed Companies Act, as if that repeal had not taken effect,

1.

FRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The company is in the business of fund management,

RESULTS

The results for the year are set out on page 9.

CHYIDEND

The directors do nat recommend the payment of dividend in respect of year 2016 (20115 Nil)
RESERVES

The reserves of the Company are set out on page 10,
DIRECTORS

The directers who served during the year and Lo the date of this report were:-
5. C. Muchiri, EBS Group Chairman

DOr.G. Muriuki, MBS Group Managing Cirectord CEQ
F.K. Githendu

. Mburia

Dr. J. Kahunyo

5. Odhiambao

0., Muriuki

JoML Mjiry

P. Gichuki Retired on 7 Gecember 20164

M. M. Mungai Appointed on 7 December 2016
AUDITORS

The company's auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, have expressed their willingness to confinue in
office in accordance with the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015,

By arder of the Board %,—’-



CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPOMSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR EMNDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year that give a true and Ffair view of the financial position of the company as at the end of the
financial year and of its profit or loss for that year. It also requires the directors to ensure that the
company maintains proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions
of the rompany and disclose, with reasonable dccuracy, the financial position of the company. The
directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company, and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularitles.

The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan
Companies Act, 2015, They alsg accept responsibility for:

(i3 designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as they determine necessary to
enable the presentation of financial statements that are Iree from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error;

(i) selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistentry; and

{iiiy Making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonabbe in the circumstances,

Having made an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, the directors are

not aware of any materiar uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the

company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors acknowledqe that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relieve them
of their responsibilities.

Approved by the board of directors on “%Mhﬂk’\ 2017 and signed on its behall by:

Director i:lir
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INDEPENTENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T THE SHAREHCLDERS OF C0-OP TRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED

REPORT OW THF AUDMT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cpinion

We have audited the finanoial statements of Co-ap Trust Investment Services Limited, et out on page 8
to 44 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Cecember 20146, and the slalement
af prefit ar 1gss and other comprehcnsive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flgws for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial stalements, inciuding a summary of sigrificant
accounting palicies.

N ouf opifion, tne financial statements present fairy, in an material respects, the finandal pasition of
Co-op Trust investment Services Limited as at 31 December 2016, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards and
tne requirements of the Kenyan Campanies Act, 2015+,

Basis for Opinign

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing {(1SAs). Our
responsiilites under those standards are further described in the Auditer's Responsiiities for 1he
Audit of the Finangal Statements section of aur repert, We are independenl of the Company in
accordsnce with the mitermatonal €thics Standacds Board for A¢countants” Code of Ethics far
Professional Accountants (IESBA Cade), We have fulfilled our other ethical respansiiilibes in accardance
with the IESBA Code, and in accordance with other ethical requirements apphicable to perfarming audits
gf financial statements i1 Kenya, We boieve that the audil evidence we have oblained is sufficient and
apprapriate to previde a basis for our epinion.

Key Auvdit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professisnal judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the Financial stalements of the current penod. These malteors were addressed in the cantext
of our audit of (he financial statements as & whole, and in farming our opnian therean, and we do not
pravide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter bolow, pur description of how our audd
addvessed the matter is provided in that contoxt,

We have fulfiled the respansihiities described in the Auwditor's responsizitics for the audit of the
financial statements section af our repart, including in relation to these matters, Accordingry, aur audit
inciuded the pecfarmance of pracedures designed to respond to gur assessment of the risks of matenal
misstatement of the fnancial statements. The resuits of our agudit procedures, meluding the procedures
performed to address the matters belaw, provide the basis for our audit opinien on the accompanying
financidl statements.,
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Key Audit Matter ' How the Matter was addressed in the audit

investments with Imperial Bank Limited Cur audit procedures included but were not
The company had invested KShs 273.75M in | limited 1o

Imperial Bank Limited on hehalf ot warious
pension schemes. The bank was put  unador « FReviewing on  a sample Basis, the

reeivership on 13 October 201% but its instructions from the pension schemes to
branches were subsequently re-opened under Ca-opTrust Inveslment Services Limilad to
NIC Bank Limited on 26 July 216, The invest in the bank's investments;

investments matured but due to the siluation of
the bank, they were not refunded to the pensicn » Reviewing of the correspondence petweean

sehemes. However, the risk on Lhe invesktment is the Comnpany and the market reguiatar (the

borne by the individual pension scheme. These Capital Markets Authority) on the treatment

investments are inctuged in the funds under of the investmants;

management by the company as discigsed innote

23. s Astessing the progress made by the
reguiator {Central Bank of Kenyadin reviving

There s upcertainky invgived in redation to the the Dankunder receivership; and,

recoverabijiity of these investments as  the
indusiry reguiater continues to took into the s Assessing whether the discosures on funds
affairs of imperiat Bank Limited. under management  are compiete  andg
adequate,

Accordingly, we considered this A key matter due
| to the level of uncertainty involved.

Other information

Thedirectors are responsite for the gther information, The ether information comprises the Directors’
Report as required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, The other informatien does not indude the
financial skatements angd cur auditor's report thereon.

Cur optnion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
an audit ppinicn ar any form of assurance thereon,

N cennection with our audit of the finawial statements, our responsiity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether {he other informatien is materiaiy inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or etherwise appears to be materiaty
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude Ehat there js a material misstatement
of this other infermation, we are required £o report that fack. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparatian and £air presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and Lhe requirements of the Kenyan
Campanies Act, 2015, and for such internal eantrol as Whe directors determine is necessary to enatre
the preparation ot financial staternonts that are free from material misstaterment, whether due ta fraud
ar error.

I preparing the financial statements, the girectors are responsible for assessing the company's atniity
ta continue as a qoing cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going cancern Dasis of accaunting uniess the directors gither inkend to iguigate the company ar fo
cegse aperaltions, or have np realstic alternative but ta do so.

The direclors are respensibie for overseeing the Company's financial reporting processes,

L1
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Auditor's Responsibifities for the Aodit of the Financial Statements

Qur phyectives are [o obtain reasgnable assurance ahoul whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fravd or error, and tQ issue an auditor's report
thal includes aur opinign. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is net a guaraniee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1545 will always detect a material misstatement when il
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are censidered material of, individually or in
lhe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econemic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1543, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional seepticism throughout the audit, We also:

« \dentify and assess the risks of material misstatemnent of the inancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain avdit
gvidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our aminign. The risk af not
detecting 2 material misstatement resulting fram fraud is higher than for one resulking from eror,
as fraud may involve callusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

« Obtain an onderstanding of inlernal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are approprialg in the circumstances, but net for the purpese of expressing an
opinion on Lhe effectiveness of the company's internal contral.

» Evaluate the appropriatengss of accounting policics usad and {he reasanableness of accounting
estimates and retated disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropridleness of the directors’ use of the geing cancern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence chtained, whether a material uncertatnty exisls related to events
or canditions {hat may casi significant doubt on the company's ability to cantinue as a qoing
cancern. |Fwe conclude Lhat a material uncertainty cxists, we are required to draw attention in
cur auditor's report to the related disclasures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to madify eur opinian. Our canclusians are based on the audit evidence obtained
up ko the date of eur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
company to cease to continye as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall prasentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventls in a manner that achieves lair presentation,

We communicate with the directors regar ding, ameong ¢lher matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal contrel that we
identify during cur audit.
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Report un ather {egal reguirements
A5 required by the Kenyan Companics Act, 2015, we report to you, hased on our audit, that;

{iy we have ohtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpases of our awidit;

(i} tngur epinion, proper books of account have heen kept by the company. so far as appears from
aur examination of those books; and,

(i) The company's statement of financial positicn and statement of profit or 1oss and other
comprehenzive income are in agreemaent with the books of aocount,

The engagement partner respensinle for the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is CPA
Joseph K Cheboror - PAND. P.1145

Naitobi, Kenya (f-_#)
Ty,
&,

Wﬁ_ig

*maccardance with Section 42 of the Sixth Schedute, Transitional and 3aving Provisions, of the
Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, the company's financial slatements and this report have been prepareai
in accardance with Sections 147 to 163 of the repealed Companies Act, as if that repeal had nol taken
affect,



CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITICON
A5 AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015%
MNate K5hs 000 KShs ‘000
ASSETS
NON-CURREMNT ASGETE
Property and equipment 2 1,571 659
Intangible assets 3 35,232 45,514
Held-to-maturily investments 4 155,232 154 584
Deferred tax al 1,392 o l84z
193 427 202,639
CURRENT ASSETS
Held for trading investments & - 57
Availatle for sale investmeants 7 30,400 -
Trade receivables 8ia) 31,504 22,051
Other receivables Bid) 5,782 26,360
Cash and cash equivalents 20 4 623 Te932
Tax recoverable S(a) 1,186 8596
73,495 133,996
TOTAL AGSETS 2EE 922 336,635%
EQLITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 10 20,000 20,000
Retained sarnings 11ca) 235,144 186 530
Available-far-sale reserve 11¢b) {18,633} -
36,511 206,530
CURREMNT LIABILITIES
Dividend payable 12 25,000 119,999
Other pavables 13 5,411 9,752
Due to related party 14¢a) - 154
30,411 130,105
TOTAL EDUITY AND LIABILITIES 766,922 336,635

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on.. er ‘\J'HW'QA. 2017

and signed on its behalf by,
5.C. Muchiri, EBS - Group Chairman

Dr. G. Muriuki, MB5 - Group Managing Director & CED




CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND GTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2D16

INCOME

EXPENSES:-
Administration and establishment

OPERATING INCOME

Amartisation of held to maturity investments
PROFIT BEFORE T AX

InCome tax expense

FROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 'MCOME, NET OF TAX
Other camprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit or foss in subsequent periods:

Met (tosses)fgains on AFS financial assels

TOT AL COMPREHENSIWE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Basic and diluted sarnings per share (K5hs)

Maote

15

14

17

lg

G{b)

15(k)

1%

2016
KShs "Q0

156,554

(87,795
6B, 759
648
69,407
120, 793)

AB,514

(1B.633)
29,981

243

2015
KShs "G00

159,494

(85,529)
73.565
570
74,135

{22,562)

51,573

51,573

£58



COH-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EGUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2016

Available-
Share Retained for-sale
capital earnings reserve Total

K5hs'Q00 KShs'000 K5hs 00 KShs 00

Balance as at 1 January 2015 20,000 134,957 - 154 957

Total cemprehensive INCQmMe

Profit for the year - 51,573 . 51,573
Other comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 Decempar 2015 20,000 186,534 . 206,530
Balance as at 1 Janwary 2016 20,000 186,530 - 206,530

Total comprehensive income

Prafit for the year - 48 414 - 48,614
dher comprehensive income - - (18 633 (18 £33
Balance as at 31 December 2016 20,000 235,144 {18,633 236,511
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITEG
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Cash flows from operating aclivities:-

Frofit before tax

Adjustments for:-

Demreviation on property and equipment
Arnortisation of intangitle assets
Amortization of held to maturity bonds
Gain on disposal of property and eguipmenl
Provision for accrued Leave

(write backy/provision for doubtful debts
inferest income

Other Write-offs

Cperating profit before working capital changes

{Decreased increase in related party balances

Oecreasefincrease) in management fees receivable

Cecreasef{Increase} in other receivables
(pecrease) Increase in ofher payathes
Cash generated from operations

Tax paid

Met cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flaws from investing activities-
Proceeds from maturity of eommercial paper
Porchase of Software

Proceed from redemption of treasury bond
Purchase of nproperty and equipment

Interest recajved

Purchase of available for sale investments
Proceed From sake of property and equipment

Mek cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows used in financing ackivities
Dividend paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Met (decreasedfincrease in cash and cash
equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING

F THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EGUIVALENTS AT THE ENDG OF

THE YEAR
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2016
K5hs 000

69,407

320
11,943
(548}

34
(6,.229)
(21,172}
5¢

03,712

(354]
(3,223}
20,577
(4,374)
66,338
{12,933)

52,405

(1,661}
(1,193

21,172
(45 (033}

(30,715

(94,9395
(94 999)

(72,309

76,932

4,623

2015
K5hs '000

74,135

421

10,975
(o7
(4

710

4 058
(21,160)

111_16

&9 6B1

803

11,063
(24,373}
.. 1472

58 646
(£9.501)

23,145

15844
(7,143}

4,400
(B3

21,160
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34 245

&3,393
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR 31 OECEMBER 2016

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial slatements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied over the years presented unless otherwise

stated:

aj

Basis of preparation of finangial statements

i}

i)

Basis of preparation

The Comparny financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards dFRSs) and interpretations issued by the internatlonal Finandial Reporting
Interpretations Committee OFRICY. The financia statements are presented in Kenya Shiflings
(K5hs), which is the company's functional and presentation currency, rounded to the nearest
thousand, and prepared on the historical cost basis, except where otherwise stated in the
accounting policies below,

For the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, reporting purposes, in these financial statements, the
batance sheet is represented byfis equivalent to the statement of financial position and the profit
and ioss account is presented in the statement of proflt or loss and other comprenensive inceme,

Changes in accounting policies and disclosuies

MNew and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the following amendments to IFRS effective on 1 January 2016.

The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that
has freen issued Gut is nat yet effective.

The nature and the effect of these changes are disciosed heiow. Although these new standards
and amendments appied for the first time in 20146, they did not have a materiarimpact on the
annual financial statements of the Company. The nature and the impact of each new standard
or amendment is described Delow:

IFRS 14 Reguatory Deferral ACCounts

{FRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are sulject to rate-
requlation, tocontinue appiying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of IFRS, Entities that adopt IFRS 14 must present
the regulatory deferrai accounts as separate fine items on the statement of financial position
and present movements in these account baiznces as separate line items in the statement of
profit or loss and OCI. The standard requires disclosure of Lthe rature of, and risks associated
with, the entity's rate-reguiation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial
statements.

Since the Company is an existing {FRS preparer and is net involved in any rate-requlated
activities, this standard does nat apply.

12



CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

i)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Continued)
MWew and amended standards and interpretatipns (Continped)

Amendments to JFRS L1 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of interests in Joint
Operations

The amendments to IFRS 1 require thal a jgint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business,
must apply the relevant 1FRS 3 Business Combinations principles for business combination
accounting. The amendments alse clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is
nat remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same jeint eperation if joint
control is retained, In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to [FRS 11 to specify that
the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting
entity, are under commaoen control of the same ultimate controlling party, The amendments
apply to hoth the acquisition of the Initial interest in a joint operatien and the acquisition of
any additional interests in the same joint eperation and are applied prospectively. These
amendments do not have any impact on the Company as it does not have any interest in a
jGink operation.

Amendments to |45 16 and 145 38: Ctarification of Acceptable Methods of Deprecigiion and
Amartisation

The amendments clarify the principle in |1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 1AS 38
Intangible Assets that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from
oparating a business (af which the asset is a part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through use of the asset, As a resuit, a révenue-based method cannot be ysed to
depraciate property, plant and equipment and may anly be used in very limited circumstances
te amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied prospectively and 4o not have any
impact on the Company, given that it has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate s
non-current assets,

Amendments to 1AS 16 and (AS 41 Agriciture: Bearer Plants

The amendments change the accounting requirements for binlogical assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, bistogical assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no lenger be within the scope of 1A5 41 Agriculture. instead, 145 16 wil
apply. After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under 145 16 at accumuwated
cost thafere maturity) and using either the cost mader or revaluation model cafter maturity),
The amendments also fequire that produce that grows on bearer plants will femain in the
scope of 1S 41 measured at fair value iess costs to sell, For government grants related to
bearer plants, 145 20 Accounting for Governmenkt Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance will apply. The amendments are applied retrospectively and do not have any Impact
o1 the Company as it de€s not have any bearer plants,

Amendments o 145 27 Equity Method in Separate Financiat Statements

The amendments allow entjties o use the equily methed to account for invesiments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial stalements, Entities
already applying IFRS and electing te change to the equity method in their separate financial
statements have to apply that change retrospectively, These amendments do not have any
impact on the Company's financial statements.
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)

il Changes in accounting policies and disclesures (Continued)

New and amended standards and interpretabions (Continued}

Annual improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

These improvements include:

IFRS & Non-current Assefs Hold for Sale and Discontinued Opergtions

Assets {or disposal groups) are genarally disposed of either through sale or distribution to the
owners. The amendment clarifies that changing fram one of these disposal methods to the other
waould not be considered a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan,
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in {FRS 5. This
amendment is applied prospectively.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

{iv Servicing contracts

The amendment clarifies that a servicing contracl that includes a fee can constitute
continuing involvemeant in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and
the arrangemant against the guidance for continuing invelvement in IFRS 7 in arder to
assass whether the disclosures are required, The assessment of which servicing contracts
constitute continuing invalvement must be done retrospectively. Howewver, the required
disclosures need nat be provided for any periad beginning before the annual periodin which
the entity first applies the amendments.

{ii) Applicability of the amendments ta IFRS 7 to condensed interim financial statements
The amendment clanfies that the offsetting disclosure requirements do nab apply to
condensed interim financial staterments, unless such disclosures provide a significant update
to the information reported in the most recent annual report, This amendment is applied
retrospectively,

1A% 19 Emproyes Benefils

The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based
on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the countey wherg the
obligation is located. Whan there is ng deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government band rates must be used. This amendment is applied prospectively.

IAS 34 interim Financial Reporting

The amendment clarifies that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial
statements and wherever they are included within the interim financiat report {e.g., in the
management commentary of 1isk report), The ather information within the interim financial
repart must be available to users an the same térms as the interim financial statements and at
the same time, This amendment is applied retrospectively.

These amendments de nat have any impact on the Campany,
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CO-DPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVAICES LIMITED
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2D16&

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCDUNTING POLICIES {continugd)

iin Changes in atcounting policies and disclosures (Continued)
New and amended standards and interpretatians {Continued})

Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Inftiative

The amendments to 1AS 1 clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS 1 reguirements,
The amendments Clarify:
+ The maleriality requirements in |AS 1

s Thal specific line items in the statementis} of profit ar loss and OC) and the statement
of financial position may be disaggregated

» That entities have flexibitity as to the order in which they present the notes to financial
statemonts

= That the share of OC1 of asscciates and joint ventures accounted for using the equily
method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and Classified batween
those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit ar loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are
presentad |n the statement of financial position and the statemant(s) of prafit or loss and OCL
Thesa amendments da not have any impact on the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 investmen! Entities: Appiying the Consolidation
Exceplion

The amendments address issues that have ariscn in applying the investment entities exception
under IFRS 1D Consaolidated Financial Statements, The amendments to IFRS 1D clarify that the
exemption from presenting censalidated financial statements applies 0 a parent entity that is a
subsidiary af an investment entity, when the investment entity measures ail of its subsidiaries at
fair valua. Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 1D clarify that only a subsidiary of an
investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services to the
investrent entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at
fair value. The amendments to 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures allow the
investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture ko its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments
are applied retrospactively and do not have any impact on the Company,

Standards issued but nat yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Campany's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adapt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective,

IFRS @ Financial tnstruments

inkroduction
InJuly 2D14, the 1458 issucd IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the standard that will replace 1AS 29
for annual periods on or afker 1 January 2D18, with garly adoption permitted.

Classification and measurement

From a classification and measurement perspeclive, the new standard will require all financial
assets, excepl equity instrumeants and defivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the
entity’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ cantractual cash tHow
characteristics,
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT NG POLICIES (continued)
i Changes in accounting pmicies and disclosures (Continued)

Standards issued byt not yet effective (Continued;

IFRS 9 Financiat Instruments {cantinued)

The |AS 3% measurement categories will be replaced by fair value through profit or |oss
(FYPLY, fair vatue through other comprehensive income (FYGHCD, and amortized cost. [FRS
9 will also allow entities to continue to irrevecably designate instruments that qualify for
amortized cost ar fair vaiee through O instruments as FYPL, if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measuerement or recognitian inconsistency, Equity instroments that
are not held for trading may be irrevecably designated as FVOCL with ne subsequent
reclazsification of gains ar insses to prafit or loss.

The accounting for finangial iabilities will |argely be the sare as the requirements of [AS
3%, except for the treatment of gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk
relating to liabilities designated at FVPL. Such movements will be presented in OC1 with no
subsequent reclassification to profit or loss, unless an accownting mismateh in profit or loss
would arise.

Having completed its initial assessment, the Company has concluded that;

s The Investments classified as available for sale onder 145 39 are expected to be
measured at PVl

+ Financial assets held for trading are expected to be continue to be measured at FVPL

+ [ebt secorities classified as hewd to maturity are expected to continue to be Measured at
amartized cost.

s Trade and other receivables that are <lassified as loans and receivables under A5 3% are
expected to be measored at amortised cost under IFRS 9

Impairment

IFRS @ requires the company to record expected credit lesses on all of its debt securities, [pans
and trade receivables, sither an a 12-manth or lifetime basis. The company expects to apply the
simplified appreach and record fifetime expected losses on all trade and other receivaties.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 allows entities to continue with the hedge accounting under 1AS 39 even when other
ejements of IFRS become mandatery on 1 January 201B. The Company does not have any
hedging instruments.

Amendments o (A5 172 tncome Taxaes

In January 20316, through issuing amendments to 1A 12, the 1ASE clarified the acounting
treatrnent of deferred tax assets of debt instruments measured at fajr value for accounting, but
measured at cost for tax purposes. The amendment s sffective fram 1 January 2017, The
Company is currently pvaluating the irpact, but does ngt anticipate that adopting the
amendments will have a malerial impact onits financial statements.

IFRS 15 Rauwcnue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the 1ASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue fram Contracts with Customers, effective for
pericds beginning on 1 January 2018 with eany adoption permitted. IFRS 15 defines principles
far recagnising revenue and will be applicable to all contracts with customers, However, interest
and fee income integras to financial instruments and feases will continue to fah ootside the scope
of IFRS 15 and will be reguiated by the other applicable standards (e.q., 'WFR5 9, and IFRS 16
Leases),
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YE&AR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cantinued)

iy

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued}

IFRS 15 Revenye from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Revenue under IFRS 15 will need to he recognised as goods and services are transferred, to the
extent that the transferor anticipates entitlement to goeds and services, The standard will alsg
specify a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements regarding the nature, extent and timing
as well as any uncertainty of revenue and corresponding cash flows with customers. The
Company does not anticipate early adopting IFRS 15 and is currently evaluating its impact.

IFRE 16 Leases

The 1ASE issued the new standard for accounting for eases - IFRS 16 Leases in January 2016.
The new standard does not significantly change the aceounting for feases for lessors. However,
it does require lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheets as lease liatilities, with
the corresponding right of use assets. Lessees must apply a single madel for all recognised
leases, but will have the option not to recognise ‘short-term’ leases and |eases of ‘low-value’
assets. Generally, the profit or iess recognition pattern for recognised leases will be similar to
today's finance lease accounting, with interest and depreciation expense recognised separately
in profit or loss. IFRS 16 is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
Early application is permitted provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 15, is applied on the
same date. Lessees must adopt 1FRS i6 using either 3 full retrospective or a maodified
retrospective approach.

The Company dogs not anticipate early adopting IFRS 16 and is currently evaluating its impacl.

Amengments to (A5 7 Statement of Cash Flows

In January 2016, the 1A5B issued amendments to 1A5 7 Statement of Cash Flows with the
intention te improve disclosures of financing activities and help users to better understand the
reporting entities’ liquidity positions. Under the new requirements, entities will need to disclose
changes in their financial liabilities as a result of financing activities such as changes from ¢ash
flows and non-cash items (e.g., gains and |lesses due to foreign currency movements). The
amendment is effective from 1 January 2017, The Company is currently evaluating the impact.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28: Sate ar Contribution of Assets helween an investor and its
Associate or Joint Yenture

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and |A% 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contribeted to an assgciate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that
constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, hetween an tnvestor andils associate or joint venture,
is recagnised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors” interests
in the associate or joint venture, The |ASB has deferred the eftective date of these amendments
indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively.

IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-hased Paymenl Transaclions - Amendments (o
IFRE 2

The |a5E issued amendments to [FRS 2 Share-hased Payment that address three main areas: the
effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction: the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settiement features
for withhelding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of & share-hased payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity
settled, On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior
perinds, but retrospective application is permitted il elected for all three amendments and other
criteria are met, The amendments are effective for annual periods heginning on or after 1
January 2018, with early application permitted. These amendments are not expected to have
any impact on the Company.
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMEMNT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDEG 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

i} Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Cantinued}
Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)
Annual Improvemnents 2014-2016 Cycle
The following is a summary of the amendments from the 2014-2016 annual improvements Cycle,
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Finan<ial Reporting Standards

Cedetion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters - Short-term exemptions in paragraphs
E3-ET7 of IFRS 1 were deleted because they have now scrved their intended purpase. The
amendment is effective from 1 January 2018,

1A% 28 Investments in Assaciates and Joint Yentures

Clarification that measuring investees at fair value thraugh profit or 10535 is an investment-by
investment choice. The amendments clarilies that an entity that is a venture capital organisation,
or other qualifying entity, may eledt, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis,
to measure its investments in assadiates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss,

[f an entity that is not itsetf an investment entity has an interest in an associate or jaint venture
that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity methad, elect to retain the
fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the
investment entity associate's of joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investmenl entity associate or joint venture, at the laker of the date on which:
fa) The investment entity assadiate or joink venture js initially recognised;

{b} The associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and

{C) The investment entity assodiate or joint venkure first becomes a parent,

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permikted. If an entity applies those amendments for an earlier period, it must
disclase that fact. This amendment is not expected ta have an impact on the company, as the
company does not have investments in associates or jaint ventures.

IFRS 12 Qiscigsure of Interests in Other Entities

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, ather than those in
paragraphs 810-B16, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venkture or an associate
for a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an assofiate) that is classified (or inctuded in a
disposal grenip that is classified) as held for sale,

The amendments are effective fram anrual periods beginning on ar after 1 January 2017 with
early appication permitted and must be applied retrospectively. If an entity applies the
amendments for an earlier periad, it must distiese that fact. This amendment is not expected to
have any impack on the company as it does not have interests in subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associates.
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENGED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

iy Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Confinued

IFRIC Interpretatian 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideratian.

The interpretation clarifies thal in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recagnition of the asset, expense or incame (or part of it) on the de recognition of a4 non-
manetary asset of pon-monetary relating to advance cansideration, the date of the transaction
is the date on which an entity initially recognises the nonmanetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. f there are multiple payments ar receipts in advance,
then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration,

Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may
apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and incéme in its scope that are
initially recognised an or after:

(i) The beqinning of the reporting peried in which the entity first applies Lhe interpretation

ar

fiiv The beginning of & prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the
linanciar statements of the reporting period in which the entity tirst applies the interpretation.

Early application of interpretation is permitted and must be disclosed,

First-time adopters of IFRS are also permitted to apply the interpretation prospectively to all
assets, expenses and income initially recognised on or after the date of transition ta IFRS.

The amendments are intended to eliminate diversity in practice, when recagnising the related
asset, expense of income {or part of it) on the derecognition of a nen-monetary asset oF non-
monetary liability relating to advance cansideration received or paid in foreign currency.

These amendments are effective far annual periads beginning on ar after 1 January 2018 and
are not expected o have an impact on the company's accounting pelicies since it does noet have
transactions in fareign currencies.

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Cantracts - Amendments to (FRS 4

The amendments gddress concerns arising from implementing the new linancial instruments
standard, IFRS 9, before implementing the new insurance contracts standard that the Board is
developing to replace IFRS 4. The amendments introduce two options far entities issuing
insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an averlay appraach.

Temporary exemption from IFRS 9

The nptional temparary exemption from IFRS @ is available o entities whose activities are
predominantly ¢connected with insurance, The temporary exemption permits such enlities o
cantinue to apply 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement while they defer
the application aof IFRS 9 until 1 January 2021 at the latest, Predominance must be initiaily
assessed at Lhe annual reparting date that immediately precedes 1 Aprit 2016 and before [FRS
@ is implemented, Also the evaluation of predominance can only be reassessed in rare cases.
Entities applying the temporary exemptien wili he required to make additional disclosures,
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE WEAR EMDED 31 GECEMBER 2016

1, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continwed)

iy Changes in accaunting policies and disclosures (Continued)
Standards issued bot not yet effective (Cantinued)

Applying IFRS 9 Financiak fnstruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments to IFRS 4
{cantinued)

The ovenay approach

The overlay appraach is an aption for entities that adopt IFRS @ and issue insurance contracts, to
adjust prafit or kass far efigible financial assets; effectively resubting in FAS 39 accaunting for thase
designated financial assets, The adjustment eliminates accounting volatility that may arise from
applying IFRS & withaut the new insurance contracts standard, Under this approach, an entity is
permitted to reclassity amawnts between profit or loss and other comprehensive incame (QCI far
designated financial assets. An entity must present a separate line item for the amount of Lhe
overfay adjustment in prolit or loss, aswell as a separate line item for the correspanding adjustment
in QL.

The temparary exemption is first applied for reporting perinds beginning an or after 1 January
2018,

An entity may elect the averlay approach when it first applies {FRS @ and apply that appraach
retrospectively to financial assets designated on transition to FFRS 9. The entity restates
comparative information reflecting the overlay appraach if, and anby if, the entity restates
comparative information when apalying FFRS 9.

The overlay approach reguires an entity to remowe from profit of 1ass additionat volatility that may
arise if IFRS 9 js applied with IFRS 4.

Whenapplying the temporary exemptian, entities must stili provide extensive disclgsure that require
the application ¢f sgme aspects of IFRS 3,

These amendments are effective lar annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and are
not expecked to have any impact an the company’s accounting policies since the company does not
affer insurance services.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to |AS 40)

The amendments clarify when an entity shouwld transfer property, incwding property under
ennstruction or develgpment into, ar gut of investment praperty. The amendments state that a
change in use accurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
praperty and there is evidence of the chanqge in vse. A mere change in management's intentions for
the use of a property does nat pravide evidence of a ehange in use,

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annuail reparting pericd in which the entity first applies the amendments. An entity
should reassess the classification of property held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify property
ta reflect the conditions that exist at that date.

Retrospective application in accordance with 1AS B is only permitted if that is possibie without the
pse of hindsight.

These amendments are effective for annual period beqinning an or after 1 January 2018, with earky
application permitled, The amendment is not expected to have animpact to the company since the
company 4ees not own investment properties,
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANC AL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE ¥£AR EWNDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

1,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t

Significant accounting judoments and estimates

The preparation of financiat statements in Confarmity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. 1t alsa requires management Lo exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the company's accounting policies. The areas invalving a higher degree of judgment ar
complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
as faliows:

i

i)

Froperty and equipment and intangible assets

Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining depreciation and amortisation
rates far property, equipment and intangime assets. The rates used are set out in accounting
palicies (dy and ey, and the carrying amgunts of property and equipment and intangible assets
are disciosed in nates 2 and 3 below, '

Irmpairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of dispasal and its vaue in use. The fair value
1855 costs of disposal caiculation is based an available data from hinding sales transactions,
condudted at arm's length, for simiar assets or observable market prices 1ess incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use is the present value of the future cash tiows
expected to be derived from an assel or cash-generating unit. in the process of applying the
company's accounting policies, Directors have made judgements in determining whether
assets are impaired, The impairment of nan-financial assels is described in more detail in note
1tp), 2 and 3.

in Goingd concern

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company's ahbility ko continue as a gaing
concern and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to cantinue in tusiness for the
foreseasble future, Furthermare, management is not aware af any material uncertainties that
may cast significant geubl upon the Company's ability to continue as a going cancern.
Therefare, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the Qoing concern basis,

iv) Fair vaiue of financial instruments

Y]

Where the fair values of linanciat assets and financian liabitities recorded on the statement of
financiai position cannot be measured based on guoled prices in active markets, their far
vawe is determined using a wvariety of waluation technigues that include the use of
mathermatical medets. The inputs to these madeals are derived fram observable market data
where passible, tut if this is not available, judgement is required to establish the fair vatues.

The judgements include considerations of liquidity and madel inputs such as votalitity for
longer-dated derivatives and discount rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumplians
for asset-backed securities. The valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail
in note 21 to the financial statements.

impairment of financial assets

Judgement is used Lo assess impairment of financial assets at the end of each reparting date,
in the case of available-for-sale invesiments, the cumuative loss will be estimated to be the
dillereace between the cost of acquisitian and the fair value [ess any impairment losses. The
impairment losses are estimated based on the impact of the future cash flows, Judgement is
required in making expected loss calcdlation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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1.

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

+}

)

dl

Significant accounting fudgments and estimates (continued)
vi) Defarred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised ta the extent it is probabie that taxable income will fre
availabie in future against which they can be utilized, Future taxable profits are estimated
based on business plans which include estimates and assumplions regarding economic
growth, interest, infiation, taxation rates and competitive forces, More details on this are
included in note 1 (k) and note 5,

Income recognition

Management fees and interest income are recognised in profit ar lpss on an accrual Basis in the
period in which they are earned. Management fec relates to fee charged to dlients for managing
their funds. It is based on the market value of the fund balance and charged at the agreed rate
as per the management agreements while interest income on bonds and fixed and call deposits
i recognised using the ellective interest method,

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cast, 1ess accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, il any.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount anly when it is probatie that future
peonomic benefits associated with the item wils flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs incurred to keep assets in narmas operating
condition are recognised in peofit or 10ss in the year o which they relate.

bepreciation is calcufated on Lhe straight-line basis, at annuwal rates estimated to write off the
carrying amounts of the assets over their expected useful lives. The annuar depreciation rates
in use in note 2 are; -

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 200%
Computers 20%

The residual values, usefur lives and methods of depreciation of property and squipment are
reviewed at each financial yeaf-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such
indications exist, and the carrying amounts exceed the estimated recoverabie amounts, the
assetfs are writlen down to their recoverable amounts, For more details, refer to note 10pl.

anitem af property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal of when no future economic
benefits are expacted from its use or disposal. Any gain or 1055 arising on de-recognitian of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal procesds and the carrying amounk
of the asset) is included in protit ar loss when the asset is derecognised,

22



CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 PECEMBER 2D16&

l.

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO ICIES {continued)

e)

f3

Intargible assets and amartisation

Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accuomulated amertisation and accumulated
impairment Iosses, if any. The campany’s intangible assets are computer software and these
have finite useful lives. Amortisation is calfulated on straight line basis at an annual rate of 20%
estimated 1g amartise the carrying amaunts of the assels over their axpected useful lives. The
rate has peen applied in note 3. Intangible assets are assessed (or impairment {nate 1 (p3)
whenaver there is an indication that the intangible asset may baimpaired.

The amortisation expense an computer software is recognised in profit or loss in the expepse
category Cansistent with the function of the intangible assel. Maintenance costs are recognised as
an expense as incurred.

The amartisation perigd and the amortisation methad for an intangible asset with a finite usefyl
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reparting periad, Changes in the expected useful life
ar the expectad pattern of consumption of future econamic penetits embedied in the asset are
considered to madify the amortisation period or method, a5 appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Gains or lgsses arising from derecagnising of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and are recagnised in
profit or nss when the asset is derecagnised,

Financial assets

financial assets are classified, at initial recagnition, as financial assets at fair value through
prafit or ioss, 1gans and receivaties, held-tg-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assels, or as derivatives. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not recordad at fair value threugh prafit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Purchases or saes of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (reguiar way lrades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits ta purchase ar sell the
asset,

Financial assets clgssified as fair value thraugh profit and 10ss include investments held lor
trading and are sulsequently measured at fair value uyated market Bid prices). All related
realised and unrealised gains or losses are included in prafit or joss,

Held to maturity investments are nen-derivative financial assets with fized or determinable
payments and fixed maturities. Financial assets are classified as held toe maturity when the
Company has the positive intenliogn and ability to hold them to maturity. They are subsegquently
measured at amostised cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for
impairment. Amaftised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition .The amaoftisation and lgsses anising from impairment af such investments are
recodnised in profit ar koss,
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1 SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

Q2

Financial assets

Available for sale investments are non-derivative investments that are designated as available
for sale or are not classitied as {a) loans and receivables, () held to maturity, (¢} financial assets
at fair value througn profit and |oss. Avaiable for sale investments are initiaily recognised at
cost plus transaction costs and subsequently re-megsured al fair value (guoted market bid
prices), Unrealised gains or 1osses arising from ¢hangas in the fair value are recognised in in
other comprengnsive income and accomulated in an Available-for-Sale reserve until the asset
is derecognised or deemed to be impaired, at which time the comulative gains or lasses
previously recagnised in equity shall be reclassified to profit or loss,

Laans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinathe payments
tnat are nal gquoted in an active market, Trade receivabies and amoynts due from reldted parties
are rarried at invoice amount which is the fair value oninitial recognition iess provision made for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receiuables and amounts due from related
parties is established when there is abjective evidence that the Company will ot be able to cobect
ail the amaoynts due according to the original terms of receivables, The amount of the pravision
is ihe difference betwesn the carrying amount and the present value of the astimated cash flows
discounted at the assets original effective interest rate, The losses arising from impairment are
recgqnized in profit or loss in ather operating expenses,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses af each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
fimaricial asset or droup of financial assets is impaired. A findncial asset or a group of finandial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is ojective evidence of impairment as a
result of ang or more events that has occurred after the initial recagnition of the asset {an
imcurred 'loss event'y and that 1oss event has an impact on the estimated future casn flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that ¢an be reliably estimdated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is sxperiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankrupkey or where obseryable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated fulure cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with delaolts,

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Far fimancial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether impgirment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant. If the Company determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financia asset, whether
significant or not, it ingludes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and coilectively assesses them for impairment, Assets that are individually
assessad for impatrment and for which an impairment 10ss is, ar continues to be, recagnised are
not included in a collegtive assessment of impairment. The amounl of any impairment [oss
tdentified is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated [utyre cash flows {excloding future expected credit losses that Nave not yet
been incurred) discounted at the linancial asset's original effective interest rate.
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1, SIGHIFHCANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (continued}

q}

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assels carried al amertised cost {tanfinued)

The carrying amouni of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the [oss
is recognised in profit or Ioss, \nterest income (recorded as finance income in profit or loss)
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying ameount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash Hows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss, Loans
together with the associated alipwance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been reatised or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment wss increases or decreases because of
an svent occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recogrised impairment
lpss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account, If a wrike-off 15 later recovered,
the recaovery is credited to other income in profit or [gss.

Availabie-for-sate financial @ssets

For Available-for-sale financial assets, the company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as Available-for sale, ofjeclive evidence would
include a signiticant or prelonged decling in the fair value of the invesiment below ifs cost,
‘Significant’ is evaluated against the originar cost of the investment and ‘prolonged” against the
period in which the fair vawe has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of
impairment, the cumutative toss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
ihe current fair value, 1ess any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in profit
or loss - is removed from OO and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment 1Gsses on equity
investments are not reversed through profit orloss; increases in their fair value after impairment
arerecognised in O\,

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘profonged’ requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the company evawates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair
value of anifyestment is 1ess than its cosl. In the case of debl instruments classified as AFS, the
impairment is assessed based pn the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative 1oss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previcusly recognised in profil or oss.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the
assel, using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment 1ess. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. f, in
a subsequent year, the tair value of 2 debb instrument increases and the increase can be
shjectively retated to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
lgss, the impairment 1ess s reversed through profit or loss,
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CO-OPTRUST INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
YEAR ENOED 31 CECEMBER 2016

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad

hy . Derecognition

i)

k)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assels) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the company's statéement of

financial position) whan;

« The rights to receive cash flows from the gsset have expired,

r

« the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assek or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b)the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, hut has transferred control
of the asset.

Financial viahilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and amount dve to related
parties. All the company's financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair valye and
subseguently measured at amortised cost.

& financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liahility is discharged or
cancelled, or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another Irom the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabillty are svbstantially
modified, such an exchange or modificationis treated as the derecognition of the ariginal liakility
and the recognilion of a new iability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss,

Employee benefit costs

The Company contriputes te a defined contribution Bensfits pension scheme for all its
employees, The scheme is sponsored by the parent company, The Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Limited. The assets pf the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund that is
funged by both the group companies and employees.

The Company also contributes to a statutory defined contributien pension scheme, the Mational
Sacial Security Fund (NS5F). Contributions are determined by local statute and are currently
limited to Kshs 200 per employee per month,

The Company's contributions to the above schemes are charged to profit or loss in the year to
which they refate,

Short-term benefits consist of salaries, bonuses and any nen-moenetary benefils svch as medical
aid contrlbutions and free services.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees, &
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave accrued at the reporting date. The
monetary tability for employees accrued eave entitlement at the end of reporting period is
recognised as an expense accrual,

Taxation
Current incame tax assaels and liahilities for the current peried are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

k)

Taxation {centinued)

Current income tax relaling to items recognised qutside orofit or loss is recoqnised directly in
ather cemorehensive income of equily and nat in profit or [95s,

Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method, for all temparary differences ansing
tetween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extenl that it is probable that future taxabie
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tay 10sses
and the unused tax credits can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferrad tax assets is reviewed at each reporling date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecoanised deferred tax assets are rg-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will ailow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the lality (s settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have heen enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting date.

Deferred tax reiating to items recognised qutside profit or ioss is recegnised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax itéms are recognised in correlation ta the underlying transaction either in
DCl or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabiiities arc offset if a legally enforceahle right exists ta
set aff current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxalion authority.

Yalue Added Tax {VATY

Expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of Value added tax, except:

=  When AT incurred on purchase of assels or services is nat recoverable frem the taxation

authority, in which case, the WwAT is recagnised as part of the cost ot acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, a5 apMicabde,

s When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included

The net amount aof VAT recoveratile from or payable to the taxation autharity is included as
part of receivatles or payabtes in the statement of financial position.

m) Management [ees receivable

Management fees receivatle are carried at originai inveiced amaunt less an estimate made for
doubtful receivables based on a review of all nutstanding amounts at year-end, For betler
management ot the Management fees receivable, the Company records Changes in the carrying
amount tased on the number of days they have been qutstanding. The Company then makes
rrovisions for bad and doubtful debts in profit ar wss far debts which have been outstanding
far over twa years. Bad debts are written atf in the year in which they areadentified,
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES {continuad})

nj

ar

Fair value measurement
The company measures financial instruments such as held for trading and available-for-saie
investments at fair vaiue at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that wouid be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction hetween market participants at the measurement date.

The Company's fair value measvrement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sefl
the asset or transfer the Liability takes piace gither:

= |nthe principal market for the asset or liability, o
* |0 the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagegus market far the asset or
liatvlity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie to by the Company.

The fair vaiue of an asset or a liability i5 measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or fiability, assuming that market participants
actin their economic best interegst.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate econemic henefits using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are availabie to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and fiabitities for which fair value is measyred or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value higrarchy, described as foilows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair vaiue measurement as a whole:

] Level 1 - Quoted (unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets aor
liahilities

] Level 2 - ¥aluation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
Fair value measurement is directly or indirectiy observatle

" Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the 1owest level input that is significant to the

fair value megsurement is unobservatie

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the tinancial statements on a recurring basis,
the company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whoaie) at the end of each reporting period.

for Lhe purpose of fair vaiue disclosures, the company has determined classes of assels and
fiabitities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and in bank accounts and overdrawn

bank balances. For the purpaeses of the statement ot cash flows cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand, bank balances fess bank gverdraft.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

9

r

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the recaverable amount of the asset is estimated. An asset’s récoverable smount is
the higher of an asset's or cash-generating units (COUY fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in Use. Recaverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those fram other assets ar groups of
ass2ts. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
i considered impaired and is written down ta its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
marey and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value 1855 costs of dispasal, recent
market transactions are taken inte account. If no such transactions can be identilied, an
appropriake valuation model s used,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations.
These budgets and farecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
penads, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to projoct future cash flows after the
fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or [oss in expense categories consisient with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recagnised impairment 10sses no langer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amopunt. A previously
recognised impairment 1055 is reversed anly if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset's recoveratle amount since the last impairment oss was recognised,
The reversalis limited so that the carrying amaount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amaunt, or exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
ar amortisation, had no impairment oss been recognised for the asset in pricr years. sSuch
reversal is recaognized in profit or [oss.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in the year in which they are declared.
Proposed dividends are shown as a separate cemponent ar equity until they have been ratified
at the Board of Directors Meeting.

Leases

The determination of whether anarrangement is, or containg, aleaseis based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception date, The arrangement is assessed for whether Fulfilment
af the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement
canveys g right to use the asset or assets, even if thak right is nat explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Company as a lessee

Dperating lease payments are s ecognised as an operating expense in profit or loss ana straight-
line basis gver the l2ase term.
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2. PROPERTY AND EQUIFMEMNT

COST
At 1 January 2016
additions

Al 31 December 2016

ACCUMULATE  OEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year

Al 31 December 2016
MET CARRYING AMOUNT

Al 31 December 20016

COST

At 1 January 2015
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2015
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 Decemhber 2015
NET CARRYING AMDUNT

At 21 December 20115

Computers
KShs Qo0

87

Computers
K&hs 000

3,871
83
(H1}

3.863

3,090
291

3,357

a7

30

Furniturg
& fittings
KShs'00n0

2,600
195

3,295

2,308
121

2,429

866

Furniture

& fitkings

KShs 00
2,500

2,500

2,178
130

Z,308

192

Equipment
K.Shs' 000

428
lel

549

428

430

119

Equipment
KShs'Q00
428

428

428

428

Total
K5hs'Q00

6,791
1,153

7,985

6,093
320

G413

1,571

Total
KShs000

B, 799
B3
¢l

6,791

5,690
421
24

6,093

6949



CO-DPTRUST INVESTMEMT SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETE

COsT
&t 1 January
Additions

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATIDN
Al 1 January
Charge for the year

At 31 December

MET CARRYING aMDUNTS
At 31 Decemnber

Intangible assets redate ta computer saftware which is amartised aver its usetul life,

4,  HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
Treasury bonds
Movement in the year:
At 1 Jandary
Amaortisation
Partial redemption
At 31 December

Maturlty Profile:

Maturing 19-15 years
Maturing 15-20 years

2016 2015
KEhs DO KEhs "000
77,5965 70,453
1661 4,143
79,257 77,596
32.082 21,107
11,543 10,975
44,025 32,082
35,232 45,514
2016 2015
Kehs 'DOO KShs 000
154,584 158,414
£ 270
_ (4,40403
155,232 154,584
101,714 101,431
53,518 53,153
155,232 154 584

The weighted average effective interest rate on governmenlt securities held ta maturity 5t 31

December 2016 was 9.49% (2015 - 9.56%). They will mature within % and 17 years.
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o, DEFERRED TAX

Charge f
20ie (cradit) to 2015
KShs 000 profit or [oss Kshs 000

The provision for deferred tax comprises:
Excess of tax on wear and tear allpwance gver
depreciation (1,189 1,228 (2,417
Provision on acerued leave 10 (203 213
Provision for bad debts 2.30a {1,738 4,046
Provision for bonus 263 263 .
Daferred tax asset 1,392 450 1,842

Charge f

2015 (eradit) to 2014
KShs 'O0D0  profit or loss K5hs 000
The provision for deferred tax comprises.
Excess on wear gnd tear allpwance over
depreciation : (2.417 223 02,1949
Provision on accrued 'eave 213 (95) 118
Provision for bad dehts 4,046 {1,087 2,955
Defarred tax assal 1,842 (959) 8B3
2016 2018
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS Kshs' D00 KEhs' DOO
Treasyry bonds
At 1 January 57 57
Write-off (57 —
&t 31 December - 57
7 AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

CIC Group Limited shares 49,033

Movement inthe year

As at 1 January -
Additions 45,033
Change in fair value {18,632

At 31 December a0, 400
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8.

fay TRADE RECEIVALLES 2016 2015
KShs "000 KShs Q00
Managemenl feas raceivable 39,197 35,973
Impairment allowance for receivables (Note Bib)) (7.693) (13,922)
31,304 22,0581

(hy IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE FOR RECEIYABLES

o

(>

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables amounting to KShs 7.69 millicn wera fully impaired
and provided for. The company considers amounts above 2 years to be fully impaired.
Movements i the provisions for impairment of raceivables were as follows:

2016 2015

K5hs "Q0d) K&hs 000

AL 1 January 13,922 9,864
Additienal provision - 4,058
Write back 16,229 -
Al 31 December 7.6593 13,922

AGEING ANALYSIS
As at 31 December 2016, the ageing analysis of management fees receivables was as follows:

Meither Past FPast due but not impaired Impaired
due nor
impaired
<180 days 180-360 days 1-2 Years > 2 Years Total
KShs 0 KShs'000 K5hs 000 KShs'Q0d0 KEhs 000
2016 15,556 7.413 8535 T.E93 39,197
2015 4915 3,095 14,041 13,922 35973

The company assessas impairment for the above receivables on annual Basis. See note 21 an
eredit risk of brade receivables which explains how the company manages and measures credit
guality of trade receivabiles.

OTHER RECEIVABLES 2016 2015
KShs "0 KShs Q00

Interest receivable on bonds 2,631 16,631
Interest receivable on fixed deposits - 1,288
Prepayments 3,151 4,041
Other receivanles - 4,400
5,782 26,360
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9.

1Q.

11

TAXKATION

ay Statement of financial position:

ty

)

Balance brought forward
Charge for the year

Paid during the year

Under provision in preyious year

Tax recoyverable
Profit oripss:
Current tax at 30% on the taxatne profit for the year

Delerred tax charge (Note 5)
Under provision in preyioys year

Reconciliation of tax expense o tax based on accounting
prafit;

Accounting profit before taxation

Tax at applicable rate of 30%

Tax effect of expenses not elgitle for tax
Tax effect of income not eligittle for tax
Under provision in previous year

SHARE CAFITAL

Authorized, issued and fully paid:-
200,000 ordinary shares of K5hs 100 each

2016
K5hs "G00

{B.596)
20,247
(12,933
-

(1186}

20,247
450
— 96

20,793

63,407
20,B22

{125}
96

20,793

20,000

2015
K5hs 000

(2,615}
23,520
(29 501

(8,596)
23,520
{(2DB)

£e,oh2

74,135

22,241
321

22,562

20000

199,999 ordinary shares are heid by The Co-pperative Bank of Kenya Limited, while 1 ordinary share

iz held by Co-operative Consuitancy & Insurance Agency Limitad.

REGERVES

(al

Retained earnings

This reserve inciudes retained earnings available for distribuotion to the shareholders of the

company. The movement in reserves is shown on page 190,

{by  Awvailable-for-sale reserve

This comprises changes in fair vaue of available-for-sale investments. The reserve is not

distributate,
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12.

13.

14,

DIVIDENDS PAYABLE 20146 2015
K&Shs '000 K5hs 000
25.000 112,999

The board of directors in 2014 declared a first and final dividend of K:hs, 1,900 for each share held
amgunting to K5hs, 200 million of which K5hs, 94,999,000 was paid in 2016 and K5hs, 80,001,000
was paid in 2014, The board's declarationis final.

OTHER FPAYABLES 2016 2015
K5hs 000 KShs ‘000

Other payables 2,740 6,713
Accrued leave 34 710
Y AT payaie 2,637 2,329
c.411 Q,752

QOther payables relates to amounts outstanding on invaices from suppliers and other service providers
as at year end. The amounts are settled upen receipt of invoice from the respective supplier of goods
andfor services.

RELATED PARTY BALAMNCES AND TRANSACTIONS 20la 2015
K5Shs '000 Kshs ‘000
al Due from/ {ka) The Cooperative Bank of Kenya Limited - {354}

The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited is t he parent to the company, which is ultimately owned
hy Co-op Haldings Co-operative Society Limited. The company's Oirectors listed on page 2 are
the Company's key management personnel. The operational indettedness with the Bank relates
o transactions for the purchase and sale of investments, income and expenses, handied for and
on behalf of the Company, which was settled at year-end. In addition, the Company gperates
from Co-operative House, a property of the Bank, and pays rent for the space Gccupied. The Bank
also maintains the payroh for the group and aliocales staff costs to the company,

The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occcurs
in cash. There have been ng guarantees provided or received far any related party receivables
ar payables. Far the year ended 31 December Z01&, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivaties relating to amounts owed by related parties (2015: Nill. This
assessment is undertaken each financial year throvgh examining the financiar position of the
related party and the market in which the refated party @perates.

by Fund managed and income earned from related parties 2016 2015
K5hs '0DO KShs 000

Funds managed for The Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Limited 5taff Retirement Benefit Scheme &, 880,020 6,249,354

Management lees earned from The Co-operative Bank of
Kenya Limited Staff Relirerment Benefil Scheme 14560 35168

The Company contributes to The Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limiled Staff Retirement Benefit
Scheme for all its employees. The Company manages the scheme’s funds received by the
custiadians and hetd in trust. iE thus earns management fees from this scheme,
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14, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {continued)
i Oirectors’ emoluments and  senior  management

compensation 2016 215
KShs 040 KShs Q00

Remuneration to non-executive directors B,284 7.725
Senior management compensation

-Short-term employee benefits 8 784 5,523
-Post-employment benefits _210 __g&2

17,278 14,100

15, INCOME
(a) Management fees 123,275 137,805
Trading commission 5.B7E 529
Write back of bad debs 6,229 -
Interest income 21172 21,160

156,554 159,494

Management fees income is derived from the commission charoed on investment of funds
on behalf of clients. These cients include pension and provident funds, trust funds,
individuyals on personal investment mans or personal pension plans and collective
investment schemes,

{hy OTHER COMPREHENEIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX

2016 2015
KShs OO0 KShs 000
Loss in fair value of guoted equities (Mote 7) (18,633
16 ADMINISTRATION AND ESTASLISHMENT
Directors' emaluments 8,284 7725
Basic salaries iB,.012 32,894
{Other staff costs 1,057 397
Wages 78 213
Pension 2,082 2,834
MSSF 27 45
Medical sxpenses 738 947
Education & Training 133 326
Telephone & postage 295 364
Rent & service charge 2,011 2,161
Subscriptions 39% 3B
Maintenance o5 241
Printing & stationary 402 5465
Legal, licenses and professiona fep 10,047 6,807
Accommodation and bravelling 1276 1,730
Entertainment 24 &3
Audil Tees 1,150 1,064
[nsurance 3,073 3.B25
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la.

17

18,

149,

20,

ADMINISTRATION AND ESTABLISHMENT (Continued

Marketing & advertising

General office expenses

Custopdy fees

Depreciation

Leave liability

amortisation of software

Additional provision

Write-off of investments/other receivables

AMORTISATION OF HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS
Amartisation of securifies (Note 4)
FROFIT BEFORE TAX
Frofit before tas s stated after charging:-
Depreciation
Amaortisation of software
Directors” emoluments:-
-Ag gxpcutives
‘Others

Auditors’ remuneration

And after crediting:-
Interest income

EARNINGS PER SHARE

2016
K5hs 000

481
759
4,380
320
(675)

11,943
57

BT. 795

B48

320
11,243

B.284
1,150

21,172

2015
K Shs 'O

1,339
&80

4,054
421
710
10,975
4, 058
1,116

B5,929

570

421
10,975

T.725
1,064

2l 160

Earnings per share are calculated on the profit after tax of KShs 48,613,577 {2015 Kohs
51,572,488 and on the 200,000 ordinary shares in issue during the vear under review (201%:

200, 000 ordinary shareg).

Diluted sarnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares gutstanding [0 assurme conversion of 3l dilutive potential ordinary shares. There are no

potentialy dilutive instruments.

CASH AND CASH EQUINALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following

amnounts in the statement of financial position;

2016

KShs 'OD0

Bank balances 4623
Fixed deposits _ -
4,623

a7

2015
KShs QD0

4,932
72,000

76,938
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21,

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks faced by the Caompany in respect of its financial instruments are interest raterisk,
credit risk and liguidity risk, The directors review and agree on policies for managing these risks.
The Company maintains a conservative palicy regarding the risks. The Company does not engage
in speculation in the markets. in addition, the company does not speculate ar trade in derivative
fimancial instrurments,

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise investments held for trading;
investments held-to-maturity; available-for-sale investments; cash and cash equivalents; trade
and other receivables; and trade and other payabtes.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wilt fluctuate
because af changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. The risk can arise from dealing
and pasitian taking. The Coampany manages market risk by establishing positian lirnits within
overall investment criteria and policy, and management reports are done an daily basis to
support @ review regime

The caompany is affected by price and inkerest rate risks which have been described below;
Equity Price risk

The campany is expased to eguity price risk in respect of its guoted eguity securities, the
investment in $1C group Ltd (see note 73

The foulowing table demanstrates the sensitivity to a reasenably possible change in share prices,

with all ather variabies held constant, on the Campany's ather comprehensive and eguity.

Appreciation / (depreciation) of

Share price Effect on eguity
Vedr 2qlé K3hs KSh=
Availabie-for-saig investments 1%/(1%) +/- 304,904
Year 2015
Available-for-sale investments 1%/ 1%) T

interest rate risk management

interest rate risk is the risk that the value and cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due lo changes in market interest rates. Excess funds held by the Company are invested in
Treasury bonds, fixed and call depasits.,
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21.

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 08JECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

Intorest rate risk management (cantinued)

The following table sets out the carrying amounls by maturity, of the Company's financial

instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk;

Uptaol 1 monthto
31 December 2016 manth lyear Ll-dY¥ears 5-20 Years
KShs 000 KEShs'000 KShs 000 KSh='00

Held to maturity

investments -
Bank Balances 4,623
{Hher receivables -
Management fees

receivable

{}ther payables

155 232

Al 31 December 2016 4,623 - - 155,232
31 December 2015

Haid to maturity

invest ments - - - 154,584
Held for trading

investments - 57

Management fees

receivable

{ther receivabies

Bank balances TH937

ther pavables -

At 31 December 2015 76,932 a7 . 154,584

Man-

Interest
bearing
KShs'000

2626

31,504
(2. 740)

31,390

22,051
22,320

{5,713

37,658

Total
Kahs'DOO

155232
4,623
2,626

31,504
(2,740)

191,245

154,584
7
22.051
22,320
76,932
B, 713

269,231

The following table demaonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possitike change in the interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, on the company's profit before tax and equity. The sensitivity
compulations assurme that financial assets maintain a constant rate of return from one year to the next.

2016

K5hs'DOA

Effect on profit before tax of a +5% change in interest rates B.B85
Effect on equity of 3 +5% change in interest rates £.664
Effect on profit before tax of a -5% change in interest rates «B,8B85)
Effect on equity of a -5% change in interest rates (£,664)

39

2015
K5hs'Q00

10,232
7162
(10,2323

71620
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21.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued?

Liguitlity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting abligatiens from its
financial liabilities. The company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as [ar as possible,
that it will always be able to meel its obligations when they fall due, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the company's reputation. In the course of its operatiens the company
investsits capital in forms that vary inliquidity ranging from government securities that are readily
convertible and receivahles. Simultanesusly il carries current liabilities in form of payables and
Bank overdrafts. The entity matches its current assets to the current liabilities falling due to
mitigate the risk of {ow liquidity.

The Campany's financial fiabilities amaount te K5hs. 304 million {2015: Kshs t3D. Lrillion) and are
all shart term. There |s ne requirement for callateral.

Credit risk management
The largest concentrations of credit exposure within the company relate to cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivaldes.

The Company only places significant amounls of funds with the parent company which operates a
ank which has a strong credit rating and does net consider the credit risk exposure to be sigrilicant.
The Company is exposed to credit risk in its management fees receivables and a provision for
impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the company wilr nat
be able to collect all the amaovnts due according to the original terms of the trade debts.

The Company deals only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances are
manitored on an ongoing basis with the resudt that the company's exposure to had debts is not
significant. Since the Company trades only with recognised third parties, management deems there
is no requirement for collateral. The amount that best represents the Company's maximum credit
risk at 31 Decernber 2D16 is made up as follows:

2016 2015
KShs Kshs
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
Cash and cash eguivalents 4,623 4,623 76,932 76,932
Trade and cther receivables 44,979 44 979 62,333 62,333
Held to maturity investments
honds 165,232 133,498 154,584 122,488
Held for Trading investments . - 57 =T
Total 204,834 183,100 293,906 261,810
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21,

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ANG POLICIES (rontinued)
Fair value
Determination af fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Campany uses the fallowing hierarchy for determining and disclasing the fair value of
financiar instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets far identical assets oriiahilities, This
1evel includes treasury bgnds listed in Nairobi Securities exchange (NSE ).

Level 2 - ather technigues (4 which all inputs which have a significant effect an the recorded
fair value are gbservatne, either directly or indirectly; and

Lovel 3 - inputs for the asset or liabinty that are not based on observable market data
{unahservable inputs).

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of
the fair value hierarchy. This hiergrehy requires the use of observable market data where
availatwe, The company considers relevant and observatne market prices in it s valuations where
passibile;

Lesel 1 Leyel 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 December 20316 K5hs'Q00  KShs'000 K.Shs'"0{0 KShs'Qo0
Financial asset megsured af fair value
Available-far-sale investments:-
Sharcs 30,400 - - 30,400

finanrial assets for which fair values
have been disclosed
Held-to-maturity
Treasury bonds 133,498 - - 133 498

As at 31 December 2015
Financial asset measured at fair value
Hetd-for-trading investments:-
Treasury bands 57 - ) 57

Financial assets for which fair values
hawve been disclased
Held-to-maturity
Treasury bonds 122, 4BE - - 122,483

Assels whose fair vajues aporasimate carrying amounts
For financial assets and financial liabilities that have g short term maturity {loss than three months)

the carrying amounts approsimate their fair value, Theseinclude, trade and gther regeivahles, bank
balances, commercial paper, due fram related party balances and other payables.
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21.

22.

FINAMCEAL RESH MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND FOLICIES (continued)
Fair value {continued)
Fair value of financial assets and Eiabilities

The table set aut below is a comparisen by categery af carrying amounts and fair values of all
the compary’s financial instruments.

2014 2015
KShs 0 KShs' 000

Carrying LCarrying
amaunk Fair valua armaunt Fair value
ash and bank balance 4,623 4,625 TH, 932 76,932
Held ta maturity investraents bonds 155,232 133,496 154,564 122,4BE
Availahle far sale investments 30,400 30,490 - -
Trade receivables 31,504 22051 22,051 22.051
Held for trading investments - . &7 57
Trade payables (27400 (2, 7405 (6,713 (6,713
Due to related parties - - 354 {354y
219,019 1B7.B32 246,557 214,461

The foifowing descrihes the methedaiagies and assumplions used to determine fair values far those
financial instruments which are not recorded at fair value in the financial statements:

Fized rate fimancial instruments
For quoted debl, the fair values are determined based on quoted market prices. For those notes issued
where guoted market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based an a current
interest rate yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity and credit spreads. for other
variable rate instruments, an adjustrment is alse made to reflect the change in required spread since
the instrument was first issued,

MAMAGING CAPITAL

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other
reserves attributable to the equity helders of the parent,

The primary abjectives af the Caompany's capital management policy are to ensure that the
company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains healthy capital
ratics in order to suppoert its business and te masimise sharcholder value,

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business,
The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules
established by the Capital Markets Autharity. The Capital Markets Authority sets and monitars
capitat requirements for the fund management induskry as a whole.

The Campany has camplied with a1l externally imposed capita requirements by the Capita Markets
Authority which require the Company to maintain a minimum level of shareholders' funds {paid up
share capitaly at #shs 10 million. The level of sharéholders' fumds at year-end was KShs
20,000,000 (2015 - KShs 20,000,000,
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23, MANAGED FUNDS- INVESTMEMNTS ANG BANK BALANCES 016 2015
KShs 000 K<hs 000
Cash at bank (clients’ aceount) 93,7224 18& B39
Shart-term investments:-
Fixed/Call deposits 4,478,663 5907177
Treasury bonds 23.77B.562 22 358, 448
Corporate hond 2,239 9490 2,545 821
Commercigl paper - Fe.Bdq
Cuoted equities 7,500,729 7.BTTBLZ
37,690,268 38,948,946
Other investments:-
Unquoted equities 181,840 182,985
Offshore 42,320 45,281
Freshold properly 955,553 722,809
1,189,673 951,165
3B.B79,941 39,900,111
This represents total funds received by the custodians and held in trust Fram varigus pensions,
provident fund schemes and ather investors, plus income earned by these funds, Financial
assels have been measured at fair value at year-end. As at year-end, the tatal market value ol
quoted equities was 10.40% below original value {2015 - 1B.79% abave original value).
Included in the fixed deposits is KShs 273,75 million invested for warious pension schemes in
Imperial Bank Limited, which was placed undsr receivership on 13 October 2015, The fank's
branches were subsequently re-gpengd under NIC Bank Limited on 26 July 2016, The fixed
deposits were placed on 30 September 2015 with the expected maturity date being 22 October
2015, Mone of the deposits had been recoived from the hank tiy 21 December 2016, The
company has no aobligation to compensate any of the Pension Schemes since they bear the
markek risk,
2016 2015
KShs 00 KShs ‘GO0
24 COMMITMENTS
Capital: Authorised but not cantracted for 1,260 3,B7T
The cammitment relates principally to purchase of compuler equipment and furniture
equipment.
25 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTIMNG PERIOD

The directors are not aware of events after the reperting date that require disclosure in ot
adjustments to the financial slatements as at the date of this repaort.
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26,

27.

28,

29,

INCORPORATION

The company is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act (Cap 486).

PARENT COMPANY

The Co-eperative bank of Kenya Limited is the parent company to Co-op Trust Investment
Services Limited. The ultimate holding Company is Co-ophaldings Co-operative Society Limited
incorporated in Kenya under the Co-operative Societies Act,

DOMICILE

The company is domiciled in Kenya.

CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs), and are rounded to the
nearest Kahs 1,DOO,
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